Rules

RULE

Department of Agriculture and Forestry
Livestock Sanitary Board

Pet TurtlesCSalmonella (LAC 7:XXI.Chapter 23)

In accordance with the provisions of the Administrative
Procedure Act, R.S. 49:950 et seq., and the law authorizing
the amendment of the Rules and regulations of the Louisiana
Department of Agriculture and Forestry, R.S. 3:2358.2, the
Commissioner of Agriculture and Forestry hereby amends
regulations regarding the testing of pet turtles and eggs for
Salmonella.

The Louisiana pet turtle industry produces and sells over
ten million turtles annually, thereby bringing an estimated
$9-12 million annually into Louisiana's economy.
Louisiana's pet turtle industry depends on sales of pet turtles
in foreign markets because the United States Food and Drug
Administration (USDA) have banned the sale of pet turtles
in the United States. The sale of pet turtles in the U.S. is
banned because of the bacteria Salmonella. Although
Salmonella can be successfully suppressed by the use of
antibiotics, USDA is concerned that the sale of pet turtles
treated with antibiotics will increase the risk of the bacteria
developing a resistance to current antibiotics. USDA will not
consider lifting the ban on the sale of pet turtles in the U.S.
until pet turtles can be successfully treated for Salmonella
with a non-antibiotic product.

Louisiana's pet turtle industry has been able to maintain a
market for pet turtles because some foreign countries are
importing pet turtles to be raised and harvested for food.
These countries are not requiring the pet turtles to be tested
for Salmonella. Testing for Salmonella is expensive, with
each test costing approximately $280. Since the average lot
of pet turtles tested annually is approximately 5,000, the
annual cost of Salmonella testing to Louisiana pet turtle
farmers is $1,400,000. The cost of these tests cannot be
passed on to the purchasers of pet turtles because of the
rapid decline in prices. Therefore, these Rules are necessary
in order to allow pet turtle farmers to use a non-antibiotic
treatment and to avoid the financial burden of unnecessary
testing.

These Rules comply with and are enabled by R.S.
3:2358.2. No preamble concerning the proposed Rules is
available.

Title 7
AGRICULTURE AND ANIMALS
Part XXI. Diseases of Animals
Chapter 23.  Pet Turtles
§2301. Definitions
A. In addition to the definitions listed below, the
definitions in R.S 3:2358.3 shall apply to these regulations.
%* k%
Baquacil/VantacilCa chemical product classified as a
polyhexamethydme biguamide dissolved in water to give a
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concentration of 50 ppm or a concentration as approved by
the department.
& 3k sk

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
3:2358.2.

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Agriculture, Office of Animal Health Services, LR 12:224 (April
1986), amended by the Department of Agriculture and Forestry,
Office of Animal Health Services, LR 17:350 (April 1991),
amended by the Department of Agriculture and Forestry, Office of
the Commissioner, LR 26:1567 (August 2000), amended by the
Department of Agriculture and Forestry, Livestock Sanitary Board,
LR 31:2210 (September 2005).

§2305. Collection of Egg and Turtle Samples

A. In order to ensure a representative sample from the
turtle group and to prevent cross-contamination the
following procedures shall be followed.

1. Licensed turtle farmers shall inform the department
in a timely manner of their intention to ship turtle hatchlings
or eggs to arrange certification procedures.

2. Upon notification by the farmer, a department
employed veterinarian shall inspect the group of turtles or
turtle eggs bound for shipment for visible signs of infections,
contagious or communicable diseases. The veterinarian or
designee shall randomly select turtles or eggs for submission
to a certified laboratory for microbiological examination
unless the turtles to be shipped are food turtles in which case
the random selection of turtles and submission to a certified
laboratory may be omitted.

3.-4.

5. The transportation to a certified laboratory for
microbiological examination and handling of the samples of
turtles and eggs shall be performed in such a manner as to
maintain identity and integrity.

6. Licensed turtle farmers shall have the option of:

a. collecting samples under the on-site supervision
of the department-employed veterinarian or designee; or

b. allowing the department veterinarian or designee
to collect the samples.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
3:2358.2, 3:2358.9, 3:2358.10 and 3:2358.12.

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Agriculture and Forestry, Office of Animal Health Services, LR
17:351 (April 1991), amended by the Department of Agriculture
and Forestry, Office of the Commissioner, LR 26:1568 (August
2000), amended by the Department of Agriculture and Forestry,
Livestock Sanitary Board, LR 31:2210 (September 2005).

§2311. Microbiological Test Procedures

A.-C. ..

D. AIll pet turtles that are on turtle farms operated by
licensed turtle farmers shall originate from eggs that are
produced on turtle farms operated by licensed pet turtle
farmers and have been subjected to the egg immersion
method of treatment. All turtles, other than those designated
and shipped as food turtles, shall be randomly sampled and
tested by a certified laboratory for Salmonella. The pond
water in which food turtles are raised shall be tested at least
once every year by a certified laboratory for Vibria Cholera.



AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
3:2358.2 and 3:2358.10.

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Agriculture and Forestry, Office of Animal Health Services, LR
17:351 (April 1991), amended by the Department of Agriculture
and Forestry, Office of the Commissioner, LR 26:1570 (August
2000), LR 30:1445 (July 2004), amended by the Department of
Agriculture and Forestry, Livestock Sanitary Board, LR 31:2210
(September 2005).

§2313. Issuance of Health Certificates

A. Accredited Louisiana-licensed and department-
approved veterinarians will issue official health certificates.

B. Health certificates shall not be issued on groups of
turtles or eggs until the turtles or eggs and pond in which the
turtles are raised have been inspected and tested as required
by these regulations.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
3:2358.2, 3:2358.9 and 3:2358.10.

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Agriculture, Office of Animal Health Services, LR 17:352 (April
1991), amended by the Department of Agriculture and Forestry,
Office of the Commissioner, LR 26:1570 (August 2000), amended
by the Department of Agriculture and Forestry, Livestock Sanitary
Board, LR 31:2211 (September 2005).

§2321. Proper Disposal

A. Because of the danger posed by the emergence of
bacteria resistant to antibiotics used to kill Salmonella and
other harmful bacteria, licensed pet turtle farmers who use
Garosol to treat turtle eggs and/or turtles shall follow
approved disposal procedures, including but not limited to,
the following:

A.l.-B.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
3:2358.2, 3:2358.9 and 3:2358.10.

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Agriculture, Office of Animal Health Services, LR 17:353 (April
1991), amended by the Department of Agriculture and Forestry,
Office of the Commissioner, LR 26:1571 (August 2000), amended
by the Department of Agriculture and Forestry, Livestock Sanitary
Board, LR 31:2211 (September 2005).

Bob Odom

Commissioner
0509#021

RULE

Board of Elementary and Secondary Education

Bulletin 741CLouisiana Handbook for School
AdministratorsCHigh School Graduation Requirements
(LAC 28:CXV.2319)

In accordance with R.S. 49:950 et seq., the Administrative
Procedure Act, the Board of Elementary and Secondary
Education revised Bulletin 741CLouisiana Handbook for
School Administrators in §2319.F-F1.b. This revision to the
BESE policy for Academic Diploma Endorsements is
intended to update the policy based on legislation passed in
Spring 2004 affecting the TOPS Core Curriculum.
Legislation passed in 2004 (Act 472) changes TOPS policy
for graduates in 2007-2008 and beyond to include the
requirement of an additional math or science course from the
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TOPS core. Current policy for the Academic Endorsement
states students must meet the TOPS course requirements
plus take an additional math, science or social studies
course. The change in TOPS legislation would require
graduates in 2007-2008 to meet the current TOPS core and
have two additional courses in order to earn an Academic
Endorsement. This policy requires graduates in 2007-2008
and beyond who receive an Academic Endorsement to meet
the new TOPS core and does not require an additional math,
science or social studies course. This revision is equivalent
to the current course requirements for the Academic
Endorsement.
Title 28
EDUCATION
Part CXV. Bulletin 741CLouisiana Handbook for

School Administrators
Chapter 23. Curriculum and Instruction
§2319. High School Graduation Requirements

A. Standard Diploma

1. The 23 units required for graduation shall include
15 required units and 8 elective units; the elective units can
be earned at technical colleges as provided in §2389.

B. In addition to completing a minimum of 23 Carnegie
credits, students must pass the English language arts and
mathematics components of the GEE 21 and either the
science or social studies portions of GEE 21 to earn a
standard high school diploma.

1. The English language arts and mathematics
components of GEE 21 shall first be administered to
students in the 10th grade.

2. The science and social studies components of the
graduation test shall first be administered to students in the
11th grade.

3. Remediation and retake opportunities will be
provided for students that do not pass the test. Students shall
be offered 50 hours of remediation each year in each content
area they do not pass. Refer to Bulletin 1566CGuidelines for
Pupil Progression, and the addendum to Bulletin
1566CRegulations for the Implementation of Remedial
Education Programs Related to the LEAP/CRT Program,
Regular School Year.

4. Students may apply a maximum of two Carnegie
units of elective credit toward high school graduation by
successfully completing specially designed courses for
remediation.

a. A maximum of one Carnegie unit of elective
credit may be applied toward meeting high school
graduation requirements by an eighth grade student who has
scored at the Unsatisfactory achievement level on either the
English language arts and/or the mathematics component(s)
of the eighth grade LEAP 21 provided the student:

i. successfully completed specially designed
elective(s) for LEAP 21 remediation;

ii. scored at or above the basic achievement level
on those component(s) of the eighth grade LEAP 21 for
which the student previously scored at the Unsatisfactory
achievement level.

C. Prior to or upon the student's entering the tenth grade,
all LEAs shall notify each student and his/her parents or
guardians of the requirement of passing GEE 21.
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1. Upon their entering a school system, students
transferring to any high school of an LEA shall be notified
by that system of the requirement of passing GEE 21.

D. The Certificate of Achievement is an exit document
issued to a student with a disability after he or she has
achieved certain competencies and has met certain
conditions. Refer to Bulletin 1706CRegulations for the
Implementation of the Children with Exceptionalities Act.

E. Minimum Course Requirements for High School
Graduation

English [ 4 units
Shall be English I, II, and III, in consecutive order; and English IV or
Business English.
Mathematics 3 units
(Effective for incoming freshmen 2005-2006 and beyond.)
All students must complete one of the following:
. Algebra I (1 unit) or
e  Algebral-Pt. | and Algebra I-Pt. 2 (2 units) or
. Integrated Mathematics I (1 unit)
The remaining unit(s) shall come from the following:
Integrated Mathematics II, Integrated Mathematics III, Geometry,
Algebra 1II, Financial Mathematics, Advanced Mathematics I,
Advanced Mathematics II, Pre-Calculus, Calculus, Probability and
Statistics, and Discrete Mathematics.
(Effective for incoming freshmen 1997-98 through 2004-2005)
Shall be selected from the following courses and may include a
maximum of 2 entry level courses (designated by E): Introductory
Algebra/Geometry (E), Algebra I-Part 1 (E), Algebra I-Part 2,
Integrated Mathematics 1 (E), Integrated Mathematics II, Integrated
Mathematics III, Applied Mathematics I (E), Applied Mathematics II,
Applied Mathematics III, Algebra I (E), Geometry, Algebra II,
Financial Mathematics, Advanced Mathematics 1, Advanced
Mathematics II, Pre-Calculus, Calculus, Probability and Statistics, and
Discrete Mathematics
Science |
Shall be the following:
1 unit of Biology
1 unit from the following physical science cluster:
Physical Science, Integrated Science, Chemistry I, Physics I, Physics
of Technology I
1 unit from the following courses:
Aerospace Science, Biology II, Chemistry II, Earth Science,
Environmental Science, Physics II, Physics of Technology II,
Agriscience II, an additional course from the physical science cluster,
or a locally initiated science elective.
. Students may not take both Integrated Science and Physical
Science
. Agriscience [ is a prerequisite for Agriscience II and is an
elective course.
Social Studies 3 units
Shall be American History, one-half unit of Civics, one-half unit of
Free Enterprise; and one of the following: World History, World
Geography, or Western Civilization
Health Education 1/2 unit
Physical Education 1 1/2 units
Shall be Physical Education I and Physical Education II, or Adapted
Physical Education for eligible special education students. A
maximum of four units of Physical Education may be used toward

3 units

graduation.
NOTE: The substitution of JROTC is permissible.

Electives 8 units
TOTAL 23 units

F. High School Area of Concentration
1. All high schools shall provide students the
opportunity to complete an area of concentration with an
academic focus and/or a career focus.
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a. To complete an academic area of concentration,
students shall meet the current course requirements for the
Tuition Opportunity Program for Students (TOPS)
Opportunity Award. Graduates in 2004-2005 to 2006-2007
must have one additional Carnegie unit in mathematics,
science, or social studies.

b. To complete a career area of concentration,
students shall meet the minimum requirements for
graduation including four elective primary credits in the area
of concentration and two related elective credits, including
one  computer/technology  course. The  following
computer/technology courses can be used to meet this
requirement.

Course Credit
Computer/Technology Literacy 1
Computer Applications or Business Computer 1
Applications
Computer Architecture 1
Computer Science I, 1T 1 each
Computer Systems and Networking I, I 1 each

Desktop Publishing 1

Digital Graphics & Animation 1/2
Multimedia Presentations 1/2 or 1
Web Mastering or Web Design 1/2
Independent Study in Technology Applications 1
Word Processing 1
Telecommunications 12
Introduction to Business Computer Applications 1
Technology Education Computer Applications 1
Advanced Technical Drafting 1
Computer Electronics I, 11 1 each

G. Academic Endorsement
1. Graduating seniors in 2005 and thereafter who meet
the requirements for a standard diploma and satisfy the
following performance indicators shall be eligible for an
academic endorsement to the standard diploma.
a. Students shall complete the academic area of
concentration.
b. Students shall pass all four components of GEE
21 with a score of basic or above, or one of the following
combinations of scores with the English language arts score
at basic or above:
i. one approaching basic, one mastery or
advanced, basic or above in the remaining two; or
ii. two approaching basic, two mastery or above.
c. Students shall complete one of the following
requirements:
i. senior project;
il. one carnegie unit in an AP course with a score
of three or higher on the AP exam;
iil. one carnegie unit in an IB course with a score
of four or higher on the IB exam; or
iv. three college hours of non-remedial, articulated
credit in mathematics, social studies, science, foreign
language, or English language arts.
d. Students shall meet the current minimum grade-
point average requirement for the TOPS Opportunity Award.
e. Students shall achieve an ACT Composite Score
of at least 23.



H. Career/Technical Endorsement
1. Graduating seniors in 2005 and thereafter who meet
the requirements for a standard diploma and satisfy the
following performance indicators shall be eligible for a
career/technical endorsement to the standard diploma.

a. Students shall meet the current course
requirements for the TOPS Opportunity Award or the TOPS
Tech Award.

b. Students shall complete the carecer area of
concentration.

c. Students shall pass the English language arts,
mathematics, science, and social studies components of the
GEE 21 at the Approaching Basic level or above.

d. Students shall complete a minimum of 90 work
hours of work-based learning experience (as defined in the
DOE Diploma Endorsement Guidebook) and complete one
of the following requirements:

i. industry-based certification from the list of
industry-based certifications approved by BESE; or

ii. three college hours in a career/technical area
that articulate to a postsecondary institution, either by
actually obtaining the credits and/or being waived from
having to take such hours.

e. Students shall meet the current minimum grade-
point average requirement for the TOPS Opportunity Award
or the TOPS Tech Award.

f.  Students shall achieve the current minimum ACT
Composite Score (or SAT Equivalent) for the TOPS
Opportunity Award or the TOPS Tech Award.

I. A Louisiana state high school diploma cannot be
denied to a student who meets the state minimum high
school graduation requirements; however, in those instances
in which BESE authorizes an LEA to impose more stringent
academic requirements, a school system diploma may be
denied.

J. Each school shall follow established procedures for
special requirements for high school graduation to allow
each to address individual differences of all students.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
17:7; R.S. 17:24.4; R. S. 17:183.2; R.S. 17: 395.

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Board of

Elementary and Secondary Education, LR 31:2211 (September
2005).

Weegie Peabody

Executive Director
0509#002

RULE

Student Financial Assistance Commission
Office of Student Financial Assistance

Scholarship/Grant ProgramsCCore Curriculum, Graduate
Students, and Rockefeller State Wildlife Scholarship
(LAC 28:1V.701, 703, and 1107)

The Louisiana Student Financial Assistance Commission
(LASFAC) has amended its Scholarship/Grant Rules (R.S.
17:3021-3025, R.S. 3041.10-3041.15, R.S. 17:3042.1, and
R.S. 17:3048.1)(SGO560R).
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Title 28
EDUCATION
Part IV. Student Financial Assistance- Higher
Education Scholarship and Grant Programs

Chapter 7. Tuition Opportunity Program for

Students (TOPS) Opportunity,

Performance, and Honors Awards
§701.  General Provisions

A.-E.ll.c.

12. A student who successfully completes an
undergraduate degree without having exhausted his period of
award eligibility shall receive an award for the remainder of
his eligibility if he enrolls in graduate or professional school
at an eligible college or university no later than the fall
semester immediately following the first anniversary of the
student's completion of an undergraduate degree and has met
the requirements for continued eligibility set forth in
§705.A.6. The remaining eligibility may not be used to
pursue a second undergraduate degree.

F.-G2.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
17:3021-3025, R.S. 17:3042.1 and R.S. 17:3048.1.

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Student Financial
Assistance Commission, Office of Student Financial Assistance,
LR 22:338 (May 1996), amended LR 23:1645-1648 (December
1997), repromulgated LR 24:635 (April 1998), amended LR
24:1901 (October 1998), LR 25: 256 (February 1999), LR 26:67
(January 2000), LR 26:1262 (June 2000), LR 26:1995 (September
2000), LR 26:2000 (September 2000), repromulgated LR 27:1848
(November 2001), amended LR 28:447 (March 2002), LR 28:2331
(November 2002), LR 29:880 (June 2003), LR 29:2372 (November
2003), LR 30:1161 (June 2004), LR 31:2213 (September 2005).
§703. Establishing Eligibility

A.-Adgii ...

S.a. graduate from an eligible public or nonpublic
Louisiana high school or non-Louisiana high school defined
in §1701.A.1, 2, or 3; and

i.(a). for students graduating in Academic Year
(High School) 2001-2002 and prior, at the time of high
school graduation, an applicant must have successfully
completed 16.5 wunits of high school course work
documented on the student's official transcript as approved
by the Louisiana Department of Education constituting a
core curriculum as follows.

Course

English I

English II

English 111

English IV

Algebra I (one unit) or Applied Algebra 1A and 1B (two units)
Algebra II

Geometry, Trigonometry, Calculus or comparable Advanced
Mathematics

1 Biology

1 Chemistry

1 Earth Science, Environmental Science, Physical Science,
Biology II, Chemistry II, Physics, Physics II, or Physics for
Technology

American History

World History, Western Civilization or World Geography
Civics and Free Enterprise (one unit combined) or

Civics (one unit, nonpublic)

Units

—l=]—=]—|=|=]|~

—|==]~
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Units | Course

1 Fine Arts Survey; (or substitute two units performance courses
in music, dance, or theater; or two units of studio art or visual
art; or one elective from among the other subjects listed in this
core curriculum)
2 Foreign Language, both units in the same language
12 Computer Science, Computer Literacy or Business Computer
Applications (or substitute at least one-half unit of an elective
course related to computers that is approved by the State Board
of Elementary and Secondary Education (BESE); or substitute
at least one-half unit of an elective from among the other
subjects listed in this core curriculum); BESE has approved the
following courses as computer related for purposes of
satisfying the 1/2 unit computer science requirement for all
schools (courses approved by BESE for individual schools are
not included):
Advanced Technical Drafting (1 credit)
Computer/Technology Applications (1 credit)
Computer Architecture (1 credit)
Computer/Technology Literacy (1/2 credit)
Computer Science I (1 credit)
Computer Science II (1 credit)
Computer Systems and Networking I (1 credit)
Computer Systems and Networking II (1 credit)
Desktop Publishing (1/2 credit)
Digital Graphics and Animation (1/2 credit)
Introduction to Business Computer Applications (1 credit)
Multimedia Productions (1 credit)
Technology Education Computer Applications (1 credit)
Telecommunications (1/2 credit)
Web Mastering (1/2 credit)
Word Processing (1 credit)
Independent Study in Technology Applications (1 credit)

(b). for students graduating in Academic Year
(High School) 2002-2003 through 2003-2004, at the time of
high school graduation, an applicant must have successfully
completed 16.5 wunits of high school course work
documented on the student's official transcript as approved
by the Louisiana Department of Education constituting a
core curriculum as follows.

Units | Course

1 English I
English II
English 111
English IV
Algebra I (one unit) or Applied Algebra 1A and 1B (two units)
Algebra II
Geometry, Trigonometry, Calculus or comparable Advanced
Mathematics
1 Biology
1 Chemistry
1 Earth Science, Environmental Science, Physical Science,
Biology II, Chemistry II, Physics, Physics II, or Physics for
Technology
American History
World History, Western Civilization or World Geography
Civics and Free Enterprise (one unit combined) or
Civics (one unit, nonpublic)
Fine Arts Survey; (or substitute two units performance courses
in music, dance, or theater; or two units of studio art or visual
art; or one elective from among the other subjects listed in this
core curriculum)
2 Foreign Language, both units in the same language

—|=l=]=]|~
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Units | Course

12 Computer Science, Computer Literacy or Business Computer
Applications (or substitute at least one-half unit of an elective
course related to computers that is approved by the State Board
of Elementary and Secondary Education (BESE); or substitute
at least one-half unit of an elective from among the other
subjects listed in this core curriculum); BESE has approved the
following courses as computer related for purposes of
satisfying the 1/2 unit computer science requirement for all
schools (courses approved by BESE for individual schools are
not included):

Advanced Technical Drafting (1/2 or 1 credit)

Business Computer Applications (1/2 or 1 credit)

Computer Applications or Computer/Technology Applications
(1/2 or 1 credit)

Computer Architecture (1/2 or 1 credit)

Computer/Technology Literacy (1/2 or 1 credit)

Computer Science I (1/2 or 1 credit)

Computer Science II (1/2 or 1 credit)

Computer Systems and Networking I (1/2 or 1 credit)
Computer Systems and Networking II (1/2 or 1 credit)

Desktop Publishing (1/2 or 1 credit)

Digital Graphics & Animation (1/2 credit)

Introduction to Business Computer Applications (1/2 or 1
credit)

Multimedia Productions or Multimedia Presentations (1/2 or 1
credit)

Technology Education Computer Applications (1/2 or 1 credit)
Telecommunications (1/2 credit)

Web Mastering or Web Design (1/2 credit)

Word Processing (1/2 or 1 credit)

Independent Study in Technology Applications (1/2 or 1

credit)

(c). for students graduating in Academic Year
(High School) 2004-2005 through 2006-2007, at the time of
high school graduation, an applicant must have successfully
completed 16.5 wunits of high school course work
documented on the student's official transcript as approved
by the Louisiana Department of Education constituting a
core curriculum as follows.

Units | Course

1 English I

1 English 11

1 English 11T

1 English IV

1 Algebra I (one unit) or Applied Algebra 1A and 1B (two units)

1 Algebra I1

1 Geometry, Trigonometry, Calculus or comparable Advanced
Mathematics

1 Biology

1 Chemistry

1 Earth Science, Environmental Science, Physical Science,
Biology II, Chemistry II, Physics, Physics II, or Physics for
Technology

1 American History

1 World History, Western Civilization or World Geography

1 Civics and Free Enterprise (one unit combined) or

1 Civics (one unit, nonpublic)

1 Fine Arts Survey; (or substitute two units performance courses
in music, dance, or theater; or two units of studio art or visual
art; or one elective from among the other subjects listed in this
core curriculum)

2 Foreign Language, both units in the same language




Units
1/2

Course

Computer Science, Computer Literacy or Business Computer
Applications (or substitute at least one-half unit of an elective
course related to computers that is approved by the State Board
of Elementary and Secondary Education (BESE); or substitute
at least one-half unit of an elective from among the other
subjects listed in this core curriculum); BESE has approved the
following courses as computer related for purposes of
satisfying the 1/2 unit computer science requirement for all
schools (courses approved by BESE for individual schools are
not included):

Advanced Technical Drafting (1/2 or 1 credit)

Business Computer Applications (1/2 or 1 credit)

Computer Applications or Computer/Technology Applications
(1/2 or 1 credit)

Computer Architecture (1/2 or 1 credit)

Computer Electronics I (1/2 or 1 credit)

Computer Electronics II (1/2 or 1 credit)
Computer/Technology Literacy (1/2 or 1 credit)

Computer Science I (1/2 or 1 credit)

Computer Science II (1/2 or 1 credit)

Computer Systems and Networking I (1/2 or 1 credit)
Computer Systems and Networking II (1/2 or 1 credit)

Desktop Publishing (1/2 or 1 credit)

Digital Graphics & Animation (1/2 credit)

Introduction to Business Computer Applications (1/2 or 1
credit)

Multimedia Productions or Multimedia Presentations (1/2 or 1
credit)

Technology Education Computer Applications (1/2 or 1 credit)
Telecommunications (1/2 credit)

Web Mastering or Web Design (1/2 credit)

Word Processing (1/2 or 1 credit)

Independent Study in Technology Applications (1/2 or 1
credit)

(d). Beginning with the graduates of Academic
Year (High School) 2007-2008, at the time of high school
graduation, an applicant must have successfully completed
17.5 units of high school course work that constitutes a core
curriculum and is documented on the student's official
transcript as approved by the Louisiana Department of
Education as follows.

Units | Course

1 English [
English I
English 111
English IV
Algebra I (one unit) or Applied Algebra 1A and 1B (two units)
Algebra II
Geometry, Trigonometry, Calculus or comparable Advanced
Mathematics
1 Biology
1 Chemistry
1 Earth Science, Environmental Science, Physical Science,
Biology II, Chemistry II, Physics, Physics 11, or Physics for
Technology or Agriscience I and II (both for one unit;
provided however, that such Agriscience unit shall not be
considered a science elective for the purpose of the math or
science elective requirement below)
1 An elective from among other math or science subjects listed
in this core curriculum
American History
World History, Western Civilization or World Geography
Civics and Free Enterprise (one unit combined) or
Civics (one unit, nonpublic)
Fine Arts Survey; (or substitute two units performance courses
in music, dance, or theater; or two units of studio art or visual
art; or one elective from among the other subjects listed in this
core curriculum)

Uy U (U] NI JUN
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Units | Course

2 Foreign Language, both units in the same language

172 Computer Science, Computer Literacy or Business Computer
Applications (or substitute at least one-half unit of an elective
course related to computers that is approved by the State Board
of Elementary and Secondary Education (BESE) or substitute
at least one-half unit of an elective from among the other
subjects listed in this core curriculum). BESE has approved the
following courses as computer related for purposes of
satisfying the 1/2 unit computer science requirement for all
schools (courses approved by BESE for individual schools are
not included):
Advanced Technical Drafting (1/2 or 1 credit)
Business Computer Applications (1/2 or 1 credit)
Computer Applications or Computer/Technology Applications
(1/2 or 1 credit)
Computer Architecture (1/2 or 1 credit)
Computer Electronics I (1/2 or 1 credit)
Computer Electronics II (1/2 or 1 credit)
Computer/Technology Literacy (1/2 or 1 credit)
Computer Science I (1/2 or 1 credit)
Computer Science II (1/2 or 1 credit)
Computer Systems and Networking I (1/2 or 1 credit)
Computer Systems and Networking II (1/2 or 1 credit)
Desktop Publishing (1/2 or 1 credit)
Digital Graphics & Animation (1/2 credit)
Introduction to Business Computer Applications (1/2 or 1
credit)
Multimedia Productions or Multimedia Presentations (1/2 or 1
credit)
Technology Education Computer Applications (1/2 or 1 credit)
Telecommunications (1/2 credit)
Web Mastering or Web Design (1/2 credit)
Word Processing (1/2 or 1 credit)
Independent Study in Technology Applications (1/2 or 1
credit)

ASaii.-H3. ..

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
17:3021-3025, R.S. 17:3042.1 and R.S. 17:3048.1.

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Student Financial
Assistance Commission, Office of Student Financial Assistance,
LR 22:338 (May 1996), repromulgated LR 24:636 (April 1998),
amended LR 24:1902 (October 1998), LR 24:2237 (December
1998), LR 25:257 (February 1999), LR 25:655 (April 1999), LR
25:1794 (October 1999), LR 26:64 and 67 (January 2000), LR
26:689 (April 2000), LR 26:1262 (June 2000), LR 26:1602 (August
2000), LR 26:1996, 1999 and 2001 (September 2000), LR 26:2268
(October 2000), LR 26:2753 (December 2000), LR 27:36 (January
2001), LR 27:702 (May 2001), LR 27:1219 and 1219 (August
2001), repromulgated LR 27:1850 (November 2001), amended LR
28:772 (April 2002), LR 28:2330 and 2332 (November 2002), LR
29:125 (February 2003), LR 29:2372 (November 2003), LR
30:1162 (June 2004), LR 30:1471 (July 2004), LR 30:2019
(September 2004), LR 31:2213 (September 2005).

Chapter 11.  Rockefeller State Wildlife Scholarship
§1107. Maintaining Eligibility

A. To continue receiving the Rockefeller State Wildlife
Scholarship, recipients must meet all of the following
criteria:

1. have received the scholarship for not more than
seven academic years (five undergraduate and two
graduate); and

2. at the close of each academic year (ending with the
spring semester or quarter), have earned at least 24 hours
total credit during the fall, winter and spring terms at an
institution defining 12 semester or eight quarter hours as the
minimum for full-time undergraduate status or earn at least
18 hours total graduate credit during the fall, winter and

Louisiana Register Vol. 31, No. 09 September 20, 2005



spring terms at an institution defining nine semester hours as
the minimum for full-time graduate status unless granted an
exception for cause by LASFAC; and

3. achieve a cumulative grade point average of at least
2.50 as an undergraduate student at the end of each academic
year or achieve a cumulative grade point average of at least
3.00 as a graduate student at the end of each academic year;
and

4. continue to enroll each subsequent semester or
quarter (excluding summer sessions and intersessions) at the
same institution unless granted an exception for cause and/or
approval for transfer of the award by LASFAC; and

5. continue to pursue a course of study leading to an
undergraduate or graduate degree in wildlife, forestry or
marine science.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
17:3021-3036, R.S. 17:3042.1 and R.S. 17:3048.1.

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Student Financial
Assistance Commission, Office of Student Financial Assistance,
LR 22:338 (May 1996), repromulgated LR 24:640 (April 1998),
amended LR 24:1909 (October 1998), repromulgated LR 27:1859
(November 2001), amended LR 31:2215 (September 2005).

George Badge Eldredge

General Counsel
0509#008

RULE

Tuition Trust Authority
Office of Student Financial Assistance

START Savings ProgramCMiscellaneous Provisions
(LAC 28:VI1.315)

The Louisiana Tuition Trust Authority has amended its

START Savings Program Rules (R.S. 17:3091, et
seq.)(ST0561R)
Title 28
EDUCATION

Part VI. Student Financial AssistanceCHigher
Education SavingsCTuition Trust Authority
Chapter 3. Education Savings Account
§315. Miscellaneous Provisions

A. - B.10.

11. For the year ending December 31, 2004, the
Louisiana Education Tuition and Savings Fund earned an
interest rate of 4.72 percent.

12. For the year ending December 31, 2004, the
Earnings Enhancements Fund earned an interest rate of 5.12
percent.

C.-R. ...

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
17:3091-3099.2.

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Tuition Trust
Authority, Office of Student Financial Assistance, LR 23:718 (June
1997), amended LR 24:1274 (July 1998), LR 26:1263 (June 2000),
repromulgated LR 26:2267 (October 2000), amended LR 27:1221
(August 2001), LR 27:1884 (November 2001), LR 28:1761
(August 2002), LR 28:2335 (November 2002), LR 29:2038
(October 2003), repromulgated LR 29:2374 (November 2003),
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amended LR 30:791 (April 2004), LR 30:1472 (July 2004),
LR 31:2216 (September 2005).

George Badge Eldredge

General Counsel
0509#009

RULE

Department of Environmental Quality
Office of the Secretary

Brownfields Cleanup Revolving Loan Fund Program
(LAC 33:VL.1101, 1103, 1105, 1107, 1109,
1111, 1113, 1115, 1117, and 1119)(IA005)

Under the authority of the Environmental Quality Act,
R.S. 30:2001 et seq., and in accordance with the provisions
of the Administrative Procedure Act, R.S. 49:950 et seq., the
secretary has adopted the Inactive and Abandoned
Hazardous Waste and Hazardous Substance Site
Remediation regulations, LAC 33:VL.1101, 1103, 1105,
1107, 1109, 1111, 1113, 1115, 1117, and 1119 (Log #IA005).

This Rule implements the Louisiana Brownfields Cleanup
Revolving Loan Fund Program, which was created and
authorized by Act 655 of the 2004 Regular Legislative
Session. The Rule will provide for eligibility and ranking
criteria for applicants and properties, loan procedures,
eligible and ineligible costs, and other loan requirements.
This loan program will provide below-market-rate interest
loans to local government, qualified non-profit, and private
entities to clean up brownfields properties. Brownfields are
real property, the expansion, redevelopment, or reuse of
which may be complicated by the presence or potential
presence of a hazardous substance, pollutant, or
contaminant. This program seeks to promote the cleanup,
redevelopment, and reuse of these brownfields properties,
thereby returning currently idled, abandoned, and underused
properties to productive use. This will, in turn, result in
increased jobs, state and local tax revenues, and community
revitalization. There are currently estimated to be 450,000 to
600,000 brownfields in the United States, and it is believed
that Louisiana has its proportionate share. This loan program
will provide an affordable source of funding to assist in the
cleanup of these properties. In addition, this funding will
complement local brownfields program activities that
already exist in the state. The basis and rationale for this rule
are to promote the cleanup, redevelopment, and reuse of
brownfields throughout the state. Brownfields revolving loan
programs have already been used throughout the United
States, and also in Louisiana, to successfully promote
brownsfields redevelopment.

This Rule meets an exception listed in R.S. 30:2019(D)(2)
and R.S. 49:953(G)(3); therefore, no report regarding
environmental/health benefits and social/economic costs is
required. This Rule has no known impact on family
formation, stability, and autonomy as described in R.S.
49:972.



Title 33
ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY
Part VI. Inactive and Abandoned Hazardous Waste and
Hazardous Substance Site Remediation

Chapter 11.  Brownfields Cleanup Revolving Loan
Fund Program
§1101. Introduction

A. The Louisiana Legislature has found that the cleanup,
redevelopment, and reuse of brownfields sites in the state
should be encouraged and facilitated for the benefit of the
citizens of the state by way of economic development,
health, and aesthetics. The legislature has also found that
providing loans for the cleanup of brownfields sites will
result in benefits to the public by reducing risk to public
health and the environment.

B. The purpose of these regulations is to establish
procedures for the establishment and operation of a
Brownfields Cleanup Revolving Loan Fund Program that
will make low-interest loans available to political
subdivisions, public trusts, quasi-governmental
organizations, nonprofit organizations, or private entities for
the cleanup of brownfields properties.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
30:2001 et seq. and in particular R.S. 30:2551-2552.

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Environmental Quality, Office of the Secretary, Legal Affairs
Division, LR 31:2217 (September 2005).

§1103. Authority

A. Act 655 of the 2004 Regular Session of the Louisiana
Legislature enacted R.S. 30:2551-2552, which authorize the
creation of a Brownfields Cleanup Revolving Loan Fund.
This act also authorizes the department to make loans to
political subdivisions, public trusts, quasi-governmental
organizations, nonprofit organizations, or private entities for
the cleanup of brownfields properties.

B. Act 655 of 2004 further provides authority for the
department to establish regulations and procedures for the
loan program and authorizes political subdivisions, public
trusts,  quasi-governmental  organizations, = nonprofit
organizations, or private entities to make loans from the
fund.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
30:2001 et seq. and in particular R.S. 30:2551-2552.

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Environmental Quality, Office of the Secretary, Legal Affairs
Division, LR 31:2217 (September 2005).

§1105. Definitions

ApplicantCany entity that submits an application for a
loan in accordance with these regulations.

BondsCbonds, notes, renewal notes, certificates of
indebtedness, refunding bonds, interim certificates,
debentures, warrants, commercial paper, or other obligations
or evidences of indebtedness authorized to be issued by the
department.

Brownfields  SiteCreal property, the expansion,
redevelopment, or reuse of which may be complicated by the
presence or potential presence of a hazardous substance,
pollutant, or contaminant. Such property may also be
referred to as a brownfield or as brownfields property.

DepartmentCthe Department of Environmental Quality.

Eligible CostsCthose project costs that are reasonable,
necessary, and allocable to the project, permitted by
appropriate federal and state cost principles and approved in
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the loan agreement, and that are not prohibited by federal or
state regulations or guidance.

FundCthe Brownfields Cleanup Revolving Loan Fund.

In-Kind ContributionsCnon-cash third-party contributions
made directly to a federally assisted project or program,
including donated time and effort, real and nonexpendable
personal property, and goods and services that meet the
requirements of applicable federal guidance.

LoanCa loan of money from the Brownfields Cleanup
Revolving Loan Fund.

Nonprofit ~ OrganizationCany  corporation,  trust,
association, cooperative, or other organization that is
operated primarily for scientific, educational, service,
charitable, or similar purposes in the public interest; is not
organized principally for profit; and uses net proceeds to
maintain, improve, or expand the operation of the
organization.

Responsible PersonCa responsible person as defined in
R.S.30:2285.2.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
30:2001 et seq. and in particular R.S. 30:2551-2552.

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Environmental Quality, Office of the Secretary, Legal Affairs
Division, LR 31:2217 (September 2005).

§1107. Eligibility for Participation in the Program

A. Applicant Eligibility. The applicant must meet all of
the following requirements to be eligible to participate in the
Brownfields Cleanup Revolving Loan Fund Program.

1. The applicant must be authorized to incur debt and
enter into legally binding agreements.

2. The applicant must own the brownfields site to be
remediated using loan funds prior to the initial disbursement
of funds.

3. The applicant must not be a responsible person as
defined in LAC 33:VIL.1105.

4. The applicant must demonstrate the financial ability
to repay the loan in a timely fashion.

5. The applicant must not be subject to any unpaid
fines or penalties for lack of compliance with environmental
laws or regulations at the brownfields site subject to the
loan.

6. The applicant must not be subject to any past-due
fees owed to the department.

7. The credit history of the applicant must be in good
standing.

8. Applicants for loans made from federal brownfields
funding sources must meet requirements for such applicants
provided in federal guidance.

B. Site Eligibility. All sites must meet the following
requirements in order to be eligible and to remain eligible to
participate in the Brownfields Cleanup Revolving Loan
Fund Program.

1. Only brownfields sites located in the state of
Louisiana are eligible.

2. The site must be eligible for participation in the
Louisiana Voluntary Remediation Program as provided in
LAC 33:VI.Chapter 9, and the applicant must enter the
program by submitting a completed voluntary remediation
application for the site to the department within 120 days of
the execution of the loan agreement, unless an extension is
granted by the administrative authority. The site must remain
in the Louisiana Voluntary Remediation Program to remain
eligible for the loan program. All application and oversight
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fees associated with the voluntary remediation shall be paid
in a timely fashion in accordance with those regulations.

3. Cleanup of the site shall be accomplished within 18
months of the date of the execution of the loan agreement,
unless an extension is granted by the administrative
authority.

4. The cleanup of contamination associated with
motor fuels underground storage tanks that are eligible for
the Louisiana Motor Fuels Underground Storage Tank Trust
Fund is not eligible for the loan program.

5. Sites at which only petroleum contamination is
present (petroleum-only sites) must meet eligibility
requirements for petroleum sites found in federal guidance.

6. Sites at which loans would be funded from federal
brownfields funding sources must meet all requirements
provided in federal guidance.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
30:2001 et seq. and in particular R.S. 30:2551-2552.

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Environmental Quality, Office of the Secretary, Legal Affairs
Division, LR 31:2217 (September 2005).

§1109. Ineligible and Eligible Costs

A. Ineligible Costs. Loan funds cannot be used for:

1. payment of penalties or fines, or for federal cost-
sharing requirements;

2. indirect costs or for any administrative costs such
as direct costs associated with grant administration incurred
to comply with the Uniform Administrative Requirements
for Grants in 40 CFR Part 30 (however, loan funds may be
used for programmatic costs);

3. payment of any fees or
reimbursements required by the department;

4. site acquisition or development/redevelopment and
construction activities that are not corrective actions;

5. pre-cleanup activities (i.e., site investigation and
identification of the nature and extent of contamination and
associated data collection);

6. monitoring and data collection necessary to apply
for, or comply with, environmental permits under other state
or federal laws, unless such a permit is a required component
of the corrective action;

7. ordinary operating expenses of
government or nonprofit or private organization;

8. personal injury compensation or damages arising
out of the project;

9. purchase of any equipment costing more than
$5,000;

10. cleanup of a substance that occurs in a natural
condition at a site; or

11. any other costs prohibited by federal regulation or
guidance.

B. Eligible Costs. Loan funds may be used for:

1. programmatic costs that are integral to achieving
the purposes of the loan as described in the most current
edition of the federal “Proposal Guidelines for Brownfields
Assessment, Revolving Loan Fund, and Cleanup Grants”
guidance document or its equivalent;

2. preparation of a voluntary remediation application,
including development of the voluntary remedial action
plan, as described in LAC 33:V1.911.B;

3. remediation of an eligible site pursuant to and in
conformance with the Louisiana Voluntary Remediation
Program;

oversight cost

the local
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4. preparation of a voluntary remedial action report, as
described in LAC 33:V1.913.C.1;

5. required public notice, public hearing, and other
community involvement activities associated with the
remediation of an eligible site; and

6. purchase of environmental insurance.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
30:2001 et seq. and in particular R.S. 30:2551-2552.

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Environmental Quality, Office of the Secretary, Legal Affairs
Division, LR 31:2218 (September 2005).

§1111. Loan Requirements

A. The maximum loan amount shall be $200,000 per
brownfields site and shall not exceed the estimated cost of
the project. Under special circumstances this maximum loan
amount may be increased by the department. The department
may award loans that are less than the total project cost for a
brownfields site. Loan amounts cannot be increased after the
loan award due to cost overruns or other reasons. The
borrower must apply for another loan to get additional funds.

B. The interest rate for loans will be updated by the
department as needed and will be less than the current prime
interest rate. Loan agreements may provide for reduction or
forgiving of interest rates for early repayment of the loan.
There shall be no penalties imposed for early repayment of a
loan.

C. The term of the loan (the time period over which the
loan must be paid back) shall not exceed 20 years from the
date of the completion of the project. The actual term for
each loan shall be determined by the department and the
department may require a shorter loan term based on
circumstances. Loan principal and interest repayment
schedules shall be set by the department, with the first
installment being due within one year of the date of the
project's completion.

D. A match (cost-share) of up to 20 percent of the loan
amount may be required of the applicant by the department
for any loan made. Eligible "in-kind" contributions may be
allowed as cost-shares by the department.

E. Applicants must demonstrate their ability to repay the
loans. The department may require a loan recipient to
provide security or collateral for the loan, including the
subject property. A local government or nonprofit applicant
may be required to provide evidence of a dedicated revenue
source to repay the loan.

F. Applicants subject to oversight by the State Bond
Commission must comply with R.S. 30:2552.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
30:2001 et seq. and in particular R.S. 30:2551-2552.

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Environmental Quality, Office of the Secretary, Legal Affairs
Division, LR 31:2218 (September 2005).

§1113. Loan Application Process

A. The department may choose to accept loan
applications on a continuous basis as funding permits or may
announce specific application periods for acceptance of loan
applications. If the department announces specific
application periods, loan applications must be received on or
before the deadline set by the department.

B. Applicants for loans shall complete and submit to the
department an application package in a format specified by
the department, including a Brownfields Cleanup Revolving
Loan Fund Application Form that will be provided by the



department. The application package must also include, but
is not limited to:

1. a complete description of the project, including the
sources and uses of funds, the project schedule, the
estimated cost to complete the project, the estimated
completion date, the amount of loan funds requested, and the
source of other funding, if needed, to complete the project;

2. the last three years of the borrower’s financial
statements, which shall include the income statement,
balance sheet, and cash flow statement, and tax returns;

3. an interim financial statement no more than 90 days
old;

4. two years of financial projections, which must
include an income statement, balance sheet, cash flow
statement, and notes to the financial statements for each
year;

5. an approved remedial
described in LAC 33:V1.911.B.3;

6. a written access agreement providing the
department and its authorized representatives full access to
the site;

7. an agreement to maintain financial records of the
project, to conduct financial audits of these financial records,
and to make the records available to the department
promptly upon request;

8. if a cost-share is required by the department during
this loan application period, a description of how the
applicant will provide the cost-share for the project;

9. all information regarding the site required by the
department to assist the department in determining eligibility
of the site for participation in the loan program;

10. other information regarding the project requested in
the application package to assist the department in ranking
the project for funding;

11. proof of ownership of the property, or a purchase
agreement with the current owner of the property, including
evidence of clear title;

12. an appraisal of the estimated value of the property
after the voluntary remedial action is complete;

13. discussion and evidence, as requested in the
application form, demonstrating the eligibility under these
regulations of the applicant and the property for a revolving
loan;

14. a comprehensive redevelopment plan describing the
future redevelopment and use of the property, including cost
estimates for the redevelopment plan, and any economic and
community benefits resulting from the cleanup and
redevelopment of the property; and

15. other items specified in the application form or
otherwise required by the department.

C. The department may request clarification or further
information from applicants after receiving the applications.
The department also reserves the right to reject incomplete
applications.

D. Brownfields Cleanup Revolving Loan Fund
applications accepted by the department may be ranked
according to prioritization criteria to be established by the
department.

E. Applicants will be accepted for loan funding based
upon ranking and site-specific criteria, state-wide priorities,
funds currently allocated and available for lending, and other
relevant factors as determined by the department.

investigation report as
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AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
30:2001 et seq. and in particular R.S. 30:2551-2552.

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Environmental Quality, Office of the Secretary, Legal Affairs
Division, LR 31:2218 (September 2005).

§1115. Loan Agreements, Closing of Loans, and
Disbursement of Loan Funds

A. Upon selection of an applicant to receive a loan, the
department will prepare and execute a loan agreement with
the applicant. The loan agreement will provide for:

1. the loan term;
the repayment schedule;
the interest rate;
provisions in case of default;
a cost-share, if required;
6. timelines and budgets for completing various
phases of the project of voluntary remediation;
7. provisions for disbursement of loan funds to the
borrower;
8. any required security or collateral for the loan; and
9. other necessary provisions as determined by the
department.

B. No loan funds shall be disbursed to the borrower until
the loan agreement is executed and until such costs are
incurred by the borrower.

C. Disbursement requests shall be of the form and type
required by the department and shall be supplemented with
copies of all invoices for each cost incurred. The borrower
shall maintain complete documentation of all project costs
for audit purposes. The borrower shall be responsible for
maintaining financial control of the project by carefully
reviewing all disbursement requests and supplemental
documentation before submitting disbursement requests to
the department. The borrower must certify each
disbursement request before submittal.

D. Disbursement requests must be received by the date
established by the department.

E. The borrower shall promptly remit each disbursement
to the firm or individual to whom payment is due, and the
borrower is solely responsible for paying those firms or
individuals. The department may at its discretion make
certain payments directly to such firms or individuals as
provided in specific loan agreements.

F. Documentation of project costs paid for with
revolving loan funds, as well as disbursement requests and
invoices, must record and account for costs separately from
any project costs paid or to be paid for from other funding
sources.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
30:2001 et seq. and in particular R.S. 30:2551-2552.

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Environmental Quality, Office of the Secretary, Legal Affairs
Division, LR 31:2219 (September 2005).

§1117. Recordkeeping, Confidentiality of Records, and
Inspection of Records and Participating Sites

A. The applicant must maintain complete financial and
other records as required in the loan application and loan
agreement, and make them available promptly to the
department upon request as provided in Subsection B of this
Section. Financial records must account for and record costs
and expenditures to be funded with revolving loan funds
separately from costs and expenditures to be funded from
other funding sources. Recordkeeping shall meet the

nbkwn
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requirements of applicable federal guidance, and all records
shall be kept by the borrower until the loan is completely
repaid or at least three years after the cleanup is completed,
whichever is later.

B. From the time of first submission of the loan
application, throughout all stages of remediation, and at any
time during the applicant's participation in the loan program,
authorized representatives of the department shall have the
right to inspect any and all projects, and any and all
incidental works, areas, facilities, and premises otherwise
pertaining to the project for which the application was made.
The department shall further have the same right to inspect
any and all books, accounts, records, contracts or other
instruments, documents, or information possessed by the
applicant or entity representing the applicant that relates to
the receipt, deposit, or expenditure of loan funds or to the
planning, design, construction, and operation of any
facilities that may have been constructed as a result of such
loan funds. By submittal of a revolving loan fund
application, the applicant shall be deemed to consent and
agree to the right of reasonable inspection and the applicant
shall allow the department all necessary and reasonable
access and opportunity for such purposes.

C. Any requests for confidentiality of any documents
submitted by an applicant or loan recipient must be handled
in accordance with and will be governed by LAC
33.1.Chapter 5.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
30:2001 et seq. and in particular R.S. 30:2551-2552.

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Environmental Quality, Office of the Secretary, Legal Affairs
Division, LR 31:2219 (September 2005).

§1119. Prioritization of Applicants and Sites to Receive
Loan Funds

A. Applicants may be prioritized for receipt of loan
funds based on the ranking criteria in this Section. These
factors may be further elaborated, refined, or detailed in the
loan application.

B. The criteria (not in order of importance) for ranking
applicants are as follows:

1. the potential of the site for redevelopment and
productive reuse;

2. the potential for creation of temporary and
permanent jobs and/or increased state and local tax revenues
by the cleanup, redevelopment, and reuse of the site;

3. the potential of the project to create greenspace;

4. the ability of the applicant to repay the loan;

5. other cleanup funds available to the applicant to
supplement revolving loan fund dollars;

6. funds available to the applicant to redevelop the
property;

7. the degree of need for community revitalization in
the area surrounding the site, as evidenced by significant
deterioration, job loss, majority low-income households, or
other factors as determined by the department;

8. the estimated value of the remediated property as
compared to the estimated cost of the cleanup of that
property; and

9. other ranking factors provided by the department.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
30:2001 et seq. and in particular R.S. 30:2551-2552.
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HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Environmental Quality, Office of the Secretary, Legal Affairs
Division, LR 31:2220 (September 2005).

Herman Robinson, CPM

Executive Counsel
0509#053

RULE

Department of Health and Hospitals
Office of the Secretary
Bureau of Health Services Financing

Home Health Program—Ambulatory Assistance
(LAC 50:XIII.Chapter 133)

The Department of Health and Hospitals, Office of the
Secretary, Bureau of Health Services Financing adopts LAC
50:X111.13301-13305 in the Medical Assistance Program as
authorized by R.S. 36:254 and pursuant to Title XIX of the
Social Security Act. This Rule is promulgated in accordance
with the provisions of the Administrative Procedure Act,
R.S. 49:950 et seq.

Title 50
PUBLIC HEALTH—MEDICAL ASSISTANCE
Part XIII. Home Health
Subpart 3. Equipment, Supplies, and Appliances
Chapter 133. Ambulatory Assistance
§13301. Canes and Crutches

A. Requests for canes (wooden or metal), quad canes
(four-prong) and all types of crutches may be approved if the
recipient's condition impairs ambulation and he/she has a
potential for ambulation.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
36:254 and Title XIX of the Social Security Act.

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Health and Hospitals, Office of the Secretary, Bureau of Health
Services Financing, LR 31:2220 (September 2005).

§13303. Walkers and Walker Accessories

A. A standard walker and related accessories may be
covered if all of the following criteria are met:

1. it is prescribed by a physician for a recipient with a
medical condition that impairs ambulation;

2. the recipient has a potential for ambulation; and

3. he/she has a need for greater stability and security
than can be provided by a cane or crutches.

B. Wheeled Walker. A wheeled walker is a walker with
two, three, or four wheels. A wheeled walker shall be
approved only when the recipient is unable to use a standard
walker due to severe neurological disorders, restricted use of
one hand, or to other medically related reasons. The request
must contain supporting documentation from the prescribing
physician that substantiates why a wheeled walker is needed
rather than a standard walker.

C. Heavy Duty Walker. A heavy duty walker may be
approved for patients who meet the criteria for a standard
walker and who weigh more than 300 pounds.

D. Heavy Duty, Multiple Braking System, Variable
Wheel Resistance Walker

1. A heavy duty, multiple braking system, variable
wheel resistance walker is a four-wheeled, adjustable height,



folding-walker that has all of the following characteristics:

a. capable of supporting individuals who weigh
more than 350 pounds; and

b. has hand operated brakes that:

i. cause the wheels to lock when the hand levers
are released;
ii. can be set so that either one or both can lock
the wheels; and
iii. are adjustable so that the individual can control
the pressure of each hand brake;

c. there is an additional braking mechanism on the
front crossbar; and

d. at least two wheels have brakes that can be
independently set through tension adjustability to give
varying resistance.

2. A heavy duty, multiple braking system, variable
wheel resistance walker is considered medically necessary
for individuals whose weight is greater than 350 pounds, and
who meet coverage criteria for a standard walker, and who
are unable to use a standard walker due to a severe
neurological disorder or other condition causing the
restricted use of one hand. Obesity, by itself, is not
considered a medically necessary indication for this walker.

E. Leg Extensions. Leg extensions are considered
medically necessary for individuals 6 feet tall or more.

F. Armrests. Armrest attachments are considered
medically necessary when the individual's ability to grip is
impaired.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
36:254 and Title XIX of the Social Security Act.

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Health and Hospitals, Office of the Secretary, Bureau of Health
Services Financing, LR 31:2220 (September 2005).

§13305. Non-Covered Items

A. The following items shall not be covered by
Medicaid:

1. Walker with Enclosed Frame. A walker with
enclosed frame is a folding wheeled walker that has a frame
that completely surrounds the patient and an attached seat in
the back.

2. Enhancement Accessories. An enhancement
accessory is one that does not contribute significantly to the
therapeutic function of the walker, cane or crutch. It may
include, but is not limited to:

a. style;

b. color;

c. hand operated brakes (other than those described
for a heavy duty, multiple braking system, variable wheel
resistance walker);

d. seat attachments; and

e. tray attachments or baskets (or equivalent).

3. Walking Belts. Walking belts is a belt used to
support and guide the individual in walking.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
36:254 and Title XIX of the Social Security Act.

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Health and Hospitals, Office of the Secretary, Bureau of Health
Services Financing, LR 31:2221 (September 2005).

Frederick P. Cerise, M.D., M.P.H.

Secretary
05094064
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RULE

Department of Health and Hospitals
Office of the Secretary
Bureau of Health Services Financing

Intermediate Care Facilities for the Mentally Retarded
(LAC 50:VIIL.Chapters 301-331)

Editor's Note: The following Chapters have been re-codified
and are being repromulgated to show current placement.

Title 50
PUBLIC HEALTH—MEDICAL ASSISTANCE
Part VII. Long Term Care
Subpart 3. Intermediate Care
Facilities for the Mentally Retarded
Chapter 301. General Provisions
§30101. Foreword

A. The ICF/MR standards for payment specify the
requirements of federal and state law and regulations
governing services provided by intermediate care facilities
for the mentally retarded and persons with other
developmental disabilities (ICF/MR).

B. The Medicaid Program is administered by the
Louisiana Department of Health and Hospitals (DHH) in
cooperation with other federal and state agencies.

C. Standards are established to ensure minimum
compliance under the law, equity among those served,
provision of authorized services, and proper disbursement. If
there is a conflict between material in these standards and
the federal and state laws or policies governing the program,
the state laws or policies governing the program have
precedence. These standards provide the ICF/MR with
information necessary to fulfill the provider enrollment
contract with the agency. It is the ICF/MR facility's
responsibility to keep these standards current. The standards
are the basis for surveys by federal and state agencies, are
part of the enrollment contract, and are necessary for the
ICF/MR to remain in compliance with federal and state
laws.

D. Monitoring of an ICF/MR's compliance with state and
federal regulations is the responsibility of DHH's Bureau of
Health Services Financing (BHFS).

E. The Bureau of Health Services Financing (BHSF)
Health Standards Section (HSS) is responsible for
determining an ICF/MR's compliance with state licensing
requirements and compliance with specific Title XIX
certification requirements which include physical plant,
staffing, dietary, pharmaceuticals, active treatment, and other
standards. Minimum licensure requirements for ICF/MRs
are covered in the booklet entitled Licensing Requirements
for Residential Care Providers and Subpart I of the Code of
Federal Regulations, Chapter 42:483.400-483.480.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
36:254 and Title XIX of the Social Security Act.

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Health and Human Resources, Office of Family Security, LR
13:578 (October 1987), amended by the Department of Health and
Hospitals, Office of the Secretary, Bureau of Health Services
Financing, LR 25:676 (April 1999), repromulgated LR 31:2221
(September 2005).

Louisiana Register Vol. 31, No. 09 September 20, 2005



§30103. Definitions and Acronyms Specific to Mental
Retardation and Other Developmental
Disabilities

A. Definitions regarding Mental Retardation are adopted
from the American Association on Mental Deficiency
Manual on Terminology and Classification in Mental
Retardation, 1977 Edition.

B. Definitions for Developmental Disabilities are taken
from the 1983 amended R.S. 28:330-444 based on Public
Law 95-602.

C. All clients must meet the criteria for mental
retardation and other developmental disabilities in order to
qualify for Title XIX reimbursement for ICF/MR services.

AAMRCAmerican Association of Mental Retardation
(formerly the AAMDCAmerican Association of Mental
Deficiency).

AbuseCthe infliction of physical or mental injury to a
client or causing a client's deterioration to such an extent that
his/her health, moral or emotional well-being is endangered.
Examples include, but are not limited to: sexual abuse,
exploitation or extortion of funds or other things of value.

Active TreatmentCan aggressive and consistent program
of specialized and generic training, treatment, health and
related services directed toward the acquisition of behaviors
necessary for the client to function with as much self
determination and independence as possible and the
prevention and deceleration of regression or loss of current
optimal functional status.

Acuity Factor—an adjustment factor which will modify
the direct care portion of the Inventory for Client and
Agency Planning (ICAP) rate based on the ICAP level for
each resident.

Adaptive BehaviorCthe effectiveness or degree with
which the individual meets the standards of personal
independence and social responsibility expected for his age
and cultural group. Since these exceptions vary for different
age groups, deficits in adaptive behavior will vary at
different ages.

Administrative and Operating Costs—include:

a. in-house and contractual salaries;

b. Dbenefits;

c. taxes for administration and plant operation
maintenance staff;

d. utilities;

accounting;

insurances;

maintenance staff;

maintenance supplies;

laundry and linen;

housekeeping; and

k. other administrative type expenditures.

AgencyCSee Medicaid Agency.

AmbulatoryCan ability to walk about.

ANSICAmerican National Standards Institute.

ApplicantCan individual whose written application for
Medicaid has been submitted to the agency but whose
eligibility has not yet been determined.

ARTCaccredited record technician.

Attending PhysicianCa physician currently licensed by
the Louisiana State Board of Medical Examiners, designated
by the client, family, agency, or responsible party as

R
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responsible for the direction of overall medical care of the
client.

AutismCa condition characterized by disturbance in the
rate of appearance and sequencing of developmental
milestones:

a. abnormal responses to sensations;

b. delayed or absent speech and language skills
while specific thinking capabilities may be present; and

c. abnormal ways of relating to people and things.

BHSFCBureau of Health Services Financing. See
Health Services Financing.

Board Certified Social Worker (BCSW)Ca person
holding a Master of Social Work (MSW) degree who is
licensed by the Louisiana State Board of Certified Social
Work Examiners.

Capacity for Independent LivingCthe ability to maintain
a full and varied life in one's own home and community.

Capital Costs—include:

a. depreciation;

b. interest expense on capital assets;

c. leasing expenses;

d. property taxes; and

e. other expenses related to capital assets.

Care Related Costs—include in-house and contractual
salaries, benefits, taxes, and supplies that help support direct
care but do not directly involve caring for the patient and
ensuring their well being (e.g., dietary and educational).
Care related costs would also include personal items, such as
clothing, personal hygiene items (soap, toothpaste, etc), hair
grooming, etc.

Cerebral PalsyCa permanently disabling condition
resulting from damage to the developing brain, which may
occur before, during or after birth and results in loss or
impairment of control over voluntary muscles.

CertificationCa determination made by the Department
of Health and Hospitals (DHH) that an ICF/MR meets the
necessary requirements to participate in Louisiana as a
provider of Title XIX (Medicaid) Services.

Change in Ownership (CHOW)Cany change in the legal
entity responsible for the operation of an ICF/MR.

Chief Executive Officer (CEO)Can individual licensed,
currently registered, and engaged in the day to day
administration/management of an ICF/MR.

ClientCan applicant for or recipient of Title XIX
(Medicaid) ICF/MR services.

Code of Federal Regulations (CFR)Cthe regulations
published by the federal government. Section 42 includes
regulations for ICF/MRs.

Comprehensive Functional AssessmentCidentifies the
client's need for services and provides specific information
about the client's ability to function in different
environments, specific skills or lack of skills, and how
function can be improved, either through training,
environmental adaptations, or provision of adaptive,
assistive, supportive, orthotic, or prosthetic equipment.

Developmental Disabilities (DD)Csevere, chronic
disabilities which are attributable to mental retardation,
cerebral palsy, autism, epilepsy or any other condition, other
than mental illness, found to be closely related to mental
retardation. This condition results in an impairment of
general intellectual functioning or adaptive behavior similar
to that of mental retardation, and requires treatment or



services similar to those required for MR/DD are manifested
before the person reaches age 22 and are likely to continue
indefinitely.

Developmental PeriodCa period from birth to before a
person reaches age 22.

DHH—Department of Health and Hospitals or its
designee.

DHHSCthe federal Department of Health and Human
Services in Washington, D.C.

Direct Care Costs—consist of all costs related to the
direct care interaction with the patient. Direct care costs
include:

a. in-house and contractual salaries;
b. benefits; and
c. taxes for all positions directly related to patient
care, including:

i. medical;

il. nursing;

iii.  therapeutic and training;

iv. ancillary in-house services; and

v. recreational.

Dual DiagnosisCclients who carry diagnoses of both
mental retardation and mental illness.

EnrollmentCprocess of executing a contract with a
licensed and certified ICF/MR provider for participation in
the Medical Assistance Program. Enrollment includes the
execution of the provider agreement and assignment of the
provider number used for payment.

EpilepsyCdisorder of the central nervous system which
is characterized by repeated seizures which are produced by
uncontrolled electrical discharges in the brain.

FacilityCan intermediate care facility for the mentally
retarded and developmentally disabled.

Fiscal IntermediaryCthe private fiscal agent with which
DHH contracts to operate the Medicaid Management
Information System. It processes the Title XIX (Medicaid)
claims for services provided under the Medical Assistance
Program and issues appropriate payment(s).

General Intellectual FunctioningCresults obtained by
assessment with one or more of the individually
administered general intelligence tests developed for that
purpose.

HCFACHealth Care Financing Administration.

Health Services Financing, Bureau of (BHSF)Ca
division of DHH responsible for administering, overseeing,
and monitoring the state's Medicaid Program.

HSSCHealth Standards Section within BHSF, the
section responsible for licensing, certifying and enrolling
ICFs/MR.

ICAP—Inventory for Client and Agency Planning—A
standardized instrument for assessing adaptive and
maladaptive behavior and includes an overall service score.
This ICAP service score combines adaptive and maladaptive
behavior scores to indicate the overall level of care,
supervision or training required.

ICAP Service Level—ranges from 1 to 9 and indicates
the service need intensity. The lower the score the greater is
the client need.

ICAP Service Score—indicates the level of service
intensity required by an individual, considering both
adaptive and maladaptive behavior.
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NOTE: The relationship between the service level and service
score for ICAP support levels is as follows.

ICAP Relationship Graph
ICAP Service ICAP Service ICAP Support
Level Score Levels
Pervasive+

1 1-19 Pervasive
2 20-29
3 30-39 Extensive
4 40-49
5 50-59 Limited
6 60-69
7 70-79
8 80-89 Intermittent
9 90+

Index Factor—this factor will be based on the Skilled
Nursing Home without Capital Market Basket Index
published by Data Resources Incorporated or a comparable
index if this index ceases to be published.

Individual Habilitation Plan (IHP)Cthe written ongoing
program of services developed for each client by an
interdisciplinary team in order for that client to achieve or
maintain his/her potential. The plan contains specific,
measurable goals, objectives and provides for data
collection.

Individual Plan of Care (IPC)Csame as Individual
Habilitation Plan.

Individual Program Plan (IPP)Csame as Individual
Habilitation Plan.

Individual Service Plan (ISP)Csame as Individual
Habilitation Plan.

Interdisciplinary Team (IDT)Ca group of individuals
representing the different disciplines in the formulation of a
client's individual habilitation plan. That team meets at least
annually to develop and review the plans, more frequently if
necessary.

Intermediate Care Facility for the Mentally Retarded
and Developmentally Disabled (ICF/MR)Csame as facility
for the mentally retarded or persons with related conditions.

1.Q.Clntelligence Quotient.

LearningCgeneral cognitive competence—the ability to
acquire new behaviors, perceptions, and information and to
apply previous experiences in new situations.

Legal StatusCa designation indicative of an individual's
competency to manage their affairs.

Level of Care (LOC)Cservice needs of the client based
upon his/her comprehensive functional status.

LicensedCa determination by the Louisiana Department
of Health and Hospitals, Bureau of Health Service
Financing, that an ICF/MR meets the state requirements to
participate in Louisiana as a provider of ICF/MR services.

Living UnitCa place where a client lives including
sleeping, training, dining and activity areas.

LPNClicensed practical nurse.

LSCClife safety code.

LTCClong term care.

Major Life ActivitiesCany one of the following
activities or abilities:

a. self-care;
b. understanding and use of language;
c. learning;
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d. mobility;
e. self-direction;
f. capacity for independent living.

Measurable OutcomesCa standard or goal by which
performance is measured and evaluated.

Mechanical SupportCa device used to achieve proper
body position or balance.

MedicaidCmedical assistance provided according to the
State Plan approved under Title XIX of the Social Security
Act.

Medicaid AgencyCthe single state agency responsible
for the administration of the Medical Assistance Program
(Title XIX). In Louisiana, the Department of Health and
Hospitals is the single state agency.

Medicaid Management Information System
(MMIS)Cthe  computerized claims processing and
information retrieval system which includes all ICF/MR
providers eligible for participation in the Medical Assistance
Program. This system is an organized method for payment
for claims for all Title XIX Services.

Medical Assistance Program (MAP)Canother name for
the Medicaid Program.

MedicareCthe federally administered Health Insurance
program for the aged, blind and disabled under the Title
XVIII of the Social Security Act.

Medicare Part ACthe hospital insurance program
authorized under Part A of Title XVIII of the Social Security
Act.

Medicare Part BCthe supplementary medical insurance
program authorized under Part B of Title XVIII of the Social
Security Act.

Mental Retardation (MR)Csignificantly subaverage
general intellectual functioning existing concurrently with
deficits in adaptive behavior, and manifested during the

developmental period.

NOTE: It shall be emphasized that a finding of low L.Q. is
never by itself sufficient to make the diagnosis of mental
retardation or in evaluating its severity. A low L.Q. shall serve
only to help in making a clinical judgment regarding the
client's adaptive behavioral capacity. This judgment also
includes present functioning, including academic and
vocational achievement, motor skills, and social and emotional
maturity.

Mobil NonambulatoryCthe inability to walk without
assistance, but the ability to move from place to place with
the use of a device such as a walker, crutches, wheelchair or
wheeled platform.

MobilityCmotor development and ability to:

a. use fine and gross motor skills;
b. move the extremities at will.

NeglectCthe failure to provide proper or necessary
medical care, nutrition or other care necessary for a client's
well being.

New FacilityCan ICF/MR newly opened or recently
began participating in the Medical Assistance Program.

NonambulatoryCthe inability to walk without
assistance.

Nursing Facility or FacilityChealth care facilities such
as a private home, institution, building, residence, or other
place which provides maintenance, personal care, or nursing
services for persons who are unable to properly care for
themselves because of illness, physical infirmity or age.
These facilities serve two or more persons who are not
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related by blood or marriage to the operator and may be
operated for profit or nonprofit.

Office for Citizens with Developmental Disabilities
(OCDD)Cthe office within DHH responsible for programs
serving the MR/DD population.

OperationalCadmission of at least one client,
completion of functional assessments(s) and development of
individual program plan(s) for the client(s); and
implementation of the program plan(s) in order that the
facility actually demonstrate the ability, knowledge, and
competence to provide active treatment.

Overall Plan of Care (OPC)Csee
Habilitation Plan.

Pass through Cost Component—includes the provider

Individual

fee.

Peer Group—the administrative and operating per diem
rate and the capital per diem rate are tiered based on peer
group size. Peer groups are as follows:

a. 1-8beds;
b. 9-15beds;
c. 16 -32beds;

d. 33 or more beds.

ProviderCany individual or entity enrolled to furnish
Medicaid services under a provider agreement with the
Medicaid agency.

Qualified Mental Retardation Professional (QMRP)Ca
person who has specialized training and at least one year or
more of experience in treating and/or working directly with
and in direct contact with the Mentally Retarded clients. To
qualify as a QMRP a person must meet the requirements of
42 CFR 483.430.

Rate Year—a one-year period corresponding to the state
fiscal year from July 1 through June 30.

Rebasing—recalculation of the per diem rate
components using the latest available audited or desk
reviewed cost reports.

RecipientCan individual who has been determined
eligible for Medicaid.

Registered Nurse (RN)Ca nurse currently registered and
licensed by the Louisiana State Board of Nursing.

Representative PayeeCa person designated by the
Social Security Administration to receive and disburse
benefits in the best interest of and according to the needs of
the beneficiary.

Responsible PartyCa person authorized by the client,
agency or sponsor to act as an official delegate or agent in
dealing with the Department of Health and Hospitals and/or
the ICF/MR.

Self-CareCdaily activities which enable a person to
meet basic life needs for food, hygiene, appearance and
health.

Self-DirectionCmanagement and control over one's
social and personal life and the ability to make decisions that
affect and protect one's own interests. A substantial
functional limitation in self-direction would require a person
to need assistance in making independent decisions
concerning social and individual activities and/or in handling
personal finances and/or in protecting his own self-interest.

Significant AssistanceChelp needed at least one-half of
the time for one activity or a need for some help in more
than one-half of all activities normally required for self-care.



Significantly Sub-AverageCfor purposes of certification
for ICF/MR an 1.Q. score of below 70 on the Wechsler,
Standford-Binet, Cattell, or comparable test will be
considered to establish significantly sub-average intellectual
functioning.

SNFCSkilled Nursing Facility.

SponsorCan adult relative, friend, or guardian of the
client who has a legitimate interest in or responsibility for
the client's welfare. Preferably, this person is designated on
the admission forms as "responsible party."

Substantial Functional LimitationCa condition that
limits a person from performing normal life activities or
makes it unsafe for a person to live alone to such an extent
that assistance, supervision, or presence of a second person
is required more than half of the time.

Support Levels—describe the levels of support needed
by individuals with mental retardation and other
developmental disabilities. The five descriptive levels of
service intensity using the ICAP assessment are summarized
in Subparagraphs a—e below.

a. Intermittent—supports on an as needed basis.
Characterized as episodic in nature, the person does not
always need the support(s), or short-term supports needed
during life-span transition (e.g., job loss or an acute medical
crisis). Intermittent supports may be high or low intensity
when provided.

b. Limited—supports characterized by consistency
over time, time-limited but not of an intermittent nature, may
require fewer staff members and less costs than more intense
levels of support (e.g., time-limited employment training or
transitional supports during the school to adult provided
period).

c. Extensive—supports characterized by regular
involvement (e.g., daily) in at least some environment (such
as work or home) and not time-limited (e.g., long term
support and long-term home living support).

d. Pervasive—supports characterized by their
constancy, high intensity; provided across environments;
potential life-sustaining nature. Pervasive supports typically
involve more staff members and intrusiveness than do
extensive or time-limited supports.

e. Pervasive Plus—a  time-limited  specific
assignment to supplement required Level of Need services
or staff to provide life sustaining complex medical care or to
supplement required direct care staff due to dangerous life
threatening behavior so serious that it could cause serious
physical injury to self or others and requires additional
trained support staff to be at "arms length" during waking
hours.

Title XIXCsee Medicaid.

Training and Habilitation ServicesCservices intended to
aid the intellectual, sensorimotor and emotional development
of a client as part of overall plans to help the individual
function at the greatest physical, intellectual, social and
vocational level he/she can presently or potentially achieve.

Understanding and Use of LanguageCcommunication
involving both verbal and nonverbal behavior enabling the
individual both to understand others and to express ideas and
information to others.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
36:254 and Title XIX of the Social Security Act.
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HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Health and Human Resources, Office of Family Security, LR
13:578 (October 1987), amended by the Department of Health and
Hospitals, Office of the Secretary, Bureau of Health Services
Financing, LR 25:676 (April 1999), LR 31:1590 (July 2005),
repromulgated LR 31:2222 (September 2005).

Chapter 303. Provider Enrollment
§30301. General Provisions

A. Scope

1. The standards set forth in this and subsequent
sections comply with the Title XIX requirements of the
amended Social Security Act. That Act sets the standards for
the care, treatment, health, safety, welfare and comfort of
Medical Assistance clients in facilities providing ICF/MR
services.

2. These standards apply to ICF/MRs certified and
enrolled by the Louisiana Department of Health and
Hospitals (DHH) for vendor participation.

3. These standards supplement current licensing
requirements applicable to ICF/MRs. Any infraction of these
standards may be considered a violation of the provider
agreement between DHH and the ICF/MR.

4. In the event any of these standards are not
maintained, DHH will determine whether facility
certification will continue with deficiencies as is allowed
under Title XIX regulations or whether termination of the
provider agreement is warranted. Although vendor payment
will not be suspended during the determination period,
deficiencies which may affect the health, safety, rights and
welfare of Medical Assistance clients must be corrected
expeditiously in order for the ICF/MR to continue to
participate.

5. [If a certified ICF/MR is found to have deficiencies
which immediately jeopardize the health, safety, rights and
welfare of its Medical Assistance clients, DHH may initiate
proceedings to terminate the ICF/MR's certification. In the
event of less serious deficiencies, DHH may impose interim
sanctions (see Chapter 323, Sanctions).

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
36:254 and 42 CFR 442- 483.400 and 435.1008.

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Health and Human Resources, Office of Family Security, LR
13:578 (October 1987), amended by the Department of Health and
Hospitals, Office of the Undersecretary, Bureau of Health Services
Financing, LR 25:682 (April 1999), repromulgated LR 31:2223
(September 2005).

§30303. General Admission and Funding

A. Capacity. The ICF/MR will admit only the number of
individuals that does not exceed its rated capacity as
determined by the BHSF's HSS and its capacity to provide
adequate programming.

B. Admission Requirements. Except on a short term
emergency basis, an ICF/MR may not admit individuals as
clients unless their needs can be met and an interdisciplinary
professional team has determined that admission is the best
available plan for them. The team must do the following:

1. conduct a comprehensive evaluation of each
individual that covers physical, emotional, social and
cognitive factors; and

2. perform the following tasks prior to admission:

a. define the individual's need for service without
regard to the availability of those services; and
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b. review all appropriate programs of care,
treatment, and training and record the findings;

3. ensure that the ICF/MR takes the following action
if admission is not the best plan but the individual must
nevertheless be admitted:

a. clearly acknowledges
inappropriate; and

b. initiates plans to actively explore alternatives.

C. Prohibitions on Federal Financial Participation

1. Federal funds in the Title XIX ICF/MR program are
not available for clients whose individual treatment plans are
totally or predominately vocational and/or educational.
ICF/MR services are designed essentially for those
individuals diagnosed as developmentally disabled; having
developmental lags which are considered amendable to
treatment in a 24-hour managed care environment where
they will achieve maximum growth. Services to treat
educational and vocational deficits are available at the
community level while the client lives in his own home or in
another community level placement and are not considered
amendable to treatment in a 24-hour managed care
environment.

2. Admissions through the Court System

a. Court ordered admissions do not guarantee
Medicaid vendor payment to a facility. A court can order that
a client be placed in a particular facility but cannot mandate
that the services be paid for by the Medicaid program.

b. Incarcerated individuals are not eligible for
Medicaid. The only instance in which such an individual
may qualify is if he/she is paroled or released on medical
furlough.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
36:254 and 42 CFR 483.440.

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Health and Human Resources, Office of Family Security, LR
13:578 (October 1987), amended by the Department of Health and
Hospitals, Office of the Undersecretary, Bureau of Health Services
Financing, LR 25:682 (April 1999), repromulgated LR 31:2225
(September 2005).

§30305. Program Enrollment

A. An ICF/MR may enroll for participation in the
Medical Assistance Program (Title XIX) when all the
following criteria have been met:

1. the ICF/MR has received Facility Need Review

that admission is

approval from DHH;

2. the ICF/MR has received approval from
DHH/OCDD;

3. the ICF/MR has completed an enrollment
application for participation in the Medical Assistance
Program;

4. the ICF/MR has been surveyed for compliance with
federal and state standards, approved for occupancy by the
Office of Public Health (OPH) and the Office of the State
Fire Marshal, and has been determined eligible for
certification on the basis of meeting these standards; and

5. the ICF/MR has been licensed and certified by
DHH.

B. Procedures for Certification of New ICF/MRs. The
following procedures must be taken in order to be certified
as a new ICF/MR.

1. The ICF/MR shall apply for a license and
certification.
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2. DHH shall conduct or arrange for surveys to
determine compliance with Title XIX, Title VI (Civil
Rights), Life Safety, and Sanitation Standards.

3. Facilities must be operational a minimum of two
weeks (14 calendar days) prior to the initial certification
survey. Facilities are not eligible to receive payment prior to
the certification date.

a. Operational is defined as admission of at least
one client, completion of functional assessment and
development of individual program plan for each client; and
implementation of the program plan(s) in order for the
facility to actually demonstrate the ability, knowledge, and
competence to provide active treatment.

b. Fire and health approvals must be obtained from
the proper agencies prior to a client's admission to the
facility.

c. The facility must comply with all standards of the
State of Louisiana licensing requirements for residential care
providers.

d. A certification survey will be conducted to verify
that the facility meets all of these requirements.

4. A new ICF/MR shall be certified only if it is in
compliance with all conditions of participation found in 42
CFR 442 and 42 CFR 483.400 et seq.

5. The effective date of certification shall be no sooner
than the exit date of the certification survey.

C. Certification Periods

1. DHH may certify an ICF/MR which fully meets
applicable requirements for a maximum of 12 months.

2. Prior to the agreement expiration date, the provider
agreement may be extended for up to two months after the
agreement expiration date if the following conditions are
met:

a. the extension will not jeopardize the client's
health, safety, rights and welfare; and

b. the extension is needed to prevent irreparable
harm to the ICF/MR or hardship to its clients; or

c. the extension is needed because it is
impracticable to determine whether the ICF/MR meets
certification standards before the expiration date.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
36:254 and 42 CFR 483.440.

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Health and Human Resources, Office of Family Security, LR
13:578 (October 1987), amended by the Department of Health and
Hospitals, Office of the Undersecretary, Bureau of Health Services
Financing, LR 25:682 (April 1999), repromulgated LR 31:2226
(September 2005).

§30307. Ownership

A. Disclosure. All participating Title XIX ICF/MRs are
required to supply the DHH Health Standards Section with a
completed HCFA Form 1513 (Disclosure of Ownership)
which requires information as to the identity of the following
individuals:

1. each person having a direct or indirect ownership
interest in the ICF/MR of 5 percent or more;

2. each person owning (in whole or in part) an interest
of 5 percent or more in any property, assets, mortgage, deed
of trust, note or other obligation secured by the ICF/MR;

3. each officer and director when an ICF/MR is
organized as a corporation;



4. each partner when an ICF/MR is organized as a
partnership;

5. within 35 days from the date of request, each
provider shall submit the complete information specified by
the BHSF/HSS regarding the following:

a. the ownership of any subcontractor with whom
this ICF/MR has had more than $25,000 in business
transactions during the previous 12 months; and

b. information as to any significant business
transactions between the ICF/MR and the subcontractor or
wholly owned suppliers during the previous five years.

B. The authorized representative must sign the provider
agreement.

1. If the provider is a nonincorporated entity and the
owner does not sign the provider agreement, a copy of
power of attorney shall be submitted to the DHH/HSS
showing that the authorized representative is allowed to sign
on the owner's behalf.

2. If one partner signs on behalf of another partner in
a partnership, a copy of power of attorney shall be submitted
to the DHH/HSS showing that the authorized representative
is allowed to sign on the owner's behalf.

3. If the provider is a corporation, the board of
directors shall furnish a resolution designating the
representative authorized to sign a contract for the provision
of services under DHH's state Medical Assistance Program.

C. Change in Ownership (CHOW)

1. A Change in Ownership (CHOW) is any change in
the legal entity responsible for the operation of the ICF/MR.

2. As a temporary measure during a change of
ownership, the BHSF/HSS shall automatically assign the
provider agreement and certification, respectively to the new
owner. The new owner shall comply with all participation
prerequisites simultaneously with the ownership transfer.
Failure to promptly complete with these prerequisites may
result in the interruption of vendor payment. The new owner
shall be required to complete a new provider agreement and
enrollment forms referred to in Continued Participation.
Such an assignment is subject to all applicable statutes,
regulations, terms and conditions under which it was
originally issued including, but not limited to, the following:

a. any existing correction action plan;

b. any expiration date;

c. compliance with applicable health and safety
standards;

d. compliance with the ownership and financial
interest disclosure requirements;

e. compliance with Civil Rights requirements;

f. compliance with any applicable rules for Facility
Need Review;

g. acceptance of the per diem rates established by
DHH/BHSF's Institutional Reimbursement Section; and

h. compliance with any additional requirements
imposed by DHH/BHSF/HSS.

3. For an ICF/MR to remain eligible for continued
participation after a change of ownership, the ICF/MR shall
meet all the following criteria:

a. state licensing requirements;

b. all Title XIX certification requirements;

c. completion of a signed provider agreement with
the department;
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d. compliance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act;
and

e. enrollment in the Medical Management
Information system (MMIS) as a provider of services.

4. A facility may involuntarily or voluntarily lose its
participation status in the Medicaid Program. When a facility
loses its participation status in the Medicaid Program, a
minimum of 10 percent of the final vendor payment to the
facility is withheld pending the fulfillment of the following
requirements:

a. submission of a limited scope audit of the client's
personal funds accounts with findings and recommendations
by a qualified accountant of the facility's choice to the
department's Institutional Reimbursement Section:

i. the facility has 60 days to submit the audit
findings to Institutional Reimbursement once it has been
notified that a limited scope audit is required;

ii. failure of the facility to comply with the audit
requirement is considered a Class E violation and will result
in fines as outlined in Chapter 323, Sanctions;

b. the facility's compliance
recommendations of the limit scope audit;

c. submittal of an acceptable final cost report by the
facility to Institutional Reimbursement;

d. once these requirements are met, the portion of
the payment withheld shall be released by the BHSF's
Program Operations Section.

5. Upon notification of completion of the ownership
transfer and the new owner's licensing, DHH/HSS will
notify the fiscal intermediary regarding the effective dates of
payment and to whom payment is to be made.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
36:254 and 42 CFR 420.205, 440.14, 442.15, 455.100, 455.101,
455.102, and 455.103.

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Health and Human Resources, Office of Family Security, LR
13:578 (October 1987), amended by the Department of Health and
Hospitals, Office of the Undersecretary, Bureau of Health Services
Financing, LR 25:682 (April 1999), repromulgated LR 31:2226
(September 2005).

§30309. Provider Agreement

A. In order to participate as a provider of ICF/MR
services under Title XIX, an ICF/MR must enter into a
provider agreement with DHH. The provider agreement is
the basis for payments by the Medical Assistance Program.
The execution of a provider agreement and the assignment
of the provider's Medicaid vendor number is contingent
upon the following criteria.

1. Facility Need Review Approval Required. Before
the ICF/MR can enroll and participate in Title XIX, the
Facility Need Review Program must have approved the need
for the ICF/MR's enrollment and participation in Title XIX.
The Facility Need Review process is governed by
Department of Health and Hospitals regulations promulgated
under authority of Louisiana R.S. 40:2116.

a. The approval shall designate the appropriate
name of the legal entity operating the ICF/MR.

b. If the approval is not issued in the appropriate
name of the legal entity operating the ICF/MR, evidence
shall be provided to verify that the legal entity that obtained
the original Facility Need Review approval is the same legal
entity operating the ICF/MR.

with the

Louisiana Register Vol. 31, No. 09 September 20, 2005



2. The ICF/MR's Medicaid Enrollment Application.
The ICF/MR shall request a Title XIX Medicaid enrollment
packet from the Medical Assistance Program Provider
Enrollment Section. The information listed below shall be
returned to that office as soon as it is completed:

a. two copies of the Provider Agreement Form with
the signature of the person legally designated to enter into
the contract with DHH;

b. one copy of the Provider Enrollment Form (PE
50) completed in accordance with accompanying
instructions and signed by the administrator or authorized
representative;

c. one copy of the Title XIX Utilization Review
Plan Agreement Form showing that the ICF/MR accepts
DHH's Utilization Review Plan;

d. copies of information and/or legal documents as
outlined in §30307 (Ownership).

3. The Effective Date of the Provider Agreement. The
ICF/MR must be licensed and certified by the BHSF/HSS in
accordance with provisions in 42 CFR 442.100-115 and
provisions determined by DHH. The effective date of the
provider agreement shall be determined as follows.

a. If all federal requirements (health and safety
standards) are met on the day of the BHSF/HSS survey, then
the effective date of the provider agreement is the date the
on-site survey is completed or the day following the
expiration of a current agreement.

b. If all requirements are specified in Subparagraph
a above are not met on the day of the BHSF/HSS survey, the
effective date of the provider agreement is the earliest of the
following dates:

i. the date on which the provider meets all

requirements; or

ii. the date on which the provider submits a
corrective action plan acceptable to the BHSF/HSS; or

iii. the date on which the provider submits a
waiver request approved by the BHSF/HSS; or

iv. the date on which both Clause ii and Clause iii
above are submitted and approved.

4. The ICF/MR's "Per Diem" Rate. After the ICF/MR
facility has been licensed and certified, a per diem rate will
be issued by the department.

5. Provider Agreement Responsibilities.  The
responsibilities of the various parties are spelled out in the
Provider Agreement Form. Any changes will be promulgated
in accordance with the Administrative Procedure Act.

6. Provider Agreement Time Periods. The provider
agreement shall meet the following criteria in regard to time
periods.

a. It shall not exceed 12 months.

b. It shall coincide with the certification period set
by the BHSF/HSS.

c. After a provider agreement expires, payment may
be made to an ICF/MR for up to 30 days.

d. The provider agreement may be extended for up
to two months after the expiration date under the following
conditions:

i. it is determined that the extension will not
jeopardize the client's health, safety, rights and welfare; and

ii. it is determined that the extension is needed to
prevent irreparable harm to the ICF/MR or hardship to its
clients; or
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iii. it is determined that the extension is needed
because it is impracticable to determine whether the ICF/MR
meets certification standards before the expiration date.

7. Tuberculosis (TB) Testing as Required by the OPH.
All residential care facilities licensed by DHH shall comply
with the requirements found in LAC S5I1:1L.Chapter 5
regarding screening for communicable disease of employees,
residents, and volunteers whose work involves direct contact
with clients. For questions regarding TB testing, contact the
local office of Public Health.

8. Criminal History Checks. Effective July 15, 1996,
the Office of State Police will perform criminal history
checks on nonlicensed personnel of health care facilities, in
accordance with R.S. 40:1300.51-R.S. 40:1300.56.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
46:153 and 42 CFR 431.107, 442.10, 442.12, 442.13, 442.15,
442.16, 442.100 and 442.101.

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Health and Human Resources, Office of Family Security, LR
13:578 (October 1987), amended by the Department of Health and
Hospitals, Office of the Secretary, Bureau of Health Services
Financing, LR 25:679 (April 1999), repromulgated LR 31:2227
(September 2005).

Chapter 305. Admission Review
§30501. Admission Process

A. ICF/MRs will be subject to a review of each client's
need for ICF/MR services.

B. Interdisciplinary Team (ID Team). Before admission
to an ICF/MR, or before authorization for payment, an
interdisciplinary team of health professionals will make a
comprehensive medical, social and psychological evaluation
of each client's need for care in the ICF/MR.

1. Other professionals as appropriate will be included
on the team, and at least one member will meet the
definition of Qualified Mental Retardation Professional
(QMRP) as stated in these standards.

2. Appropriate participation of nursing services on
this team should be represented by a Louisiana licensed
nurse.

C. Exploration of Alternative Services. If the
comprehensive evaluations recommend ICF/MR services for
a client whose needs could be met by alternative services
that are currently unavailable, the ICF/MR will enter this
fact in the client's record and begin to look for alternative
services.

D. ICF/MR Submission of Data

1. Evaluative data for medical certification for
ICF/MR level of care will be submitted to the appropriate
regional Health Standards Office on each client. This will
include the following information:

a. initial application;

b. applications for clients transferring from one
ICF/MR to another;

c. applications for clients transferring from an acute
care hospital to an ICF/MR;

d. applications for clients who are patients in a
mental health facility; and

e. applications for clients already in an ICF/MR
program.

2. Time Frames for Submission of Data. A complete
packet of admission information must be received by
BHSF/HSS within 20 working days following the
completion of the ISP for newly admitted clients.



a. Notice within the 20-day time frame will also be
required for readmissions and transfers.

b. If an incomplete packet is received, denial of
certification will be issued with the reasons(s) for denial.

c. Ifadditional information is subsequently received
within the initial 20-working-day time frame, and the client
meets all requirements, the effective date of certification is
the date of admission.

d. If the additional information is received after the
initial 20-working-day time frame and the client meets all
requirements, the effective date of certification is no earlier
than the date a completed packet is received by HSS.

3. Data may be submitted before admission of the
client if all other conditions for the admission are met.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
36:254, Title XIX of the Social Security Act, and 42 CFR 456.350-
456.438.

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Health and Human Resources, Office of Family Security, LR
13:578 (October 1987), amended by the Department of Health and
Hospitals, Office of the Secretary, Bureau of Health Services
Financing, LR 25:697 (April 1999), repromulgated LR 31:2228
(September 2005).

§30503. Certification Requirements

A. The following documentation and procedures are
required to obtain medical certification for ICF/MR
Medicaid vendor payment. The documentation should be
submitted to the appropriate HSS regional office.

1. Social evaluation:

a. must not be completed more than 90 days prior to
admission and no later than date of admission; and

b. must address the following:

i. family, educational and social history including
any previous placements;

ii. treatment history that discusses past and
current interventions, treatment effectiveness, and
encountered negative side effects;

iii. current living arrangements;

iv. family involvement, if any;

v. availability and utilization of community,
educational, and other sources of support;

vi. habilitation needs;

vii. family and/or client expectations for services;

viil. prognosis for independent living; and

ix. social needs and recommendation for ICF/MR
placement.

2. Psychological evaluation:

a. must not be completed more than 90 days prior to
admission and no later than the date of admission; and

b. must include the following components:

i. comprehensive measurement of intellectual
functioning;

ii. a developmental and psychological history and
assessment of current psychological functioning;

iii. measurement of adaptive behavior using
multiple informants when possible;

iv. statements regarding the reliability and validity
of informant data including discussion of potential informant
bias;

—_

v. detailed description of adaptive behavior
strengths and functional impairments in self-care, language,
learning, mobility, self-direction, and capacity for
independent living;
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vi. discussion of whether impairments are due to a
lack of skills or noncompliance and whether reasonable
learning opportunities for skill acquisition have been
provided; and

vii. recommendations for least restrictive treatment
alternative, habilitation and custodial needs and needs for
supervision and monitoring to ensure safety.

3. A psychiatric evaluation must be completed if the
client has a primary or secondary diagnosis of mental illness,
is receiving psychotropic medication, has been hospitalized
in the past three years for psychiatric problems, or if
significant psychiatric symptoms were noted in the
psychological evaluation or social assessment. The
psychiatric evaluation:

a. shall not be completed more than 90 days prior to
admission and no later than the date of admission;

b. should include a history of present illness, mental
status exam, diagnostic impression, assessment of strengths
and weaknesses, recommendations for therapeutic
interventions, and prognosis; and

c. may be requested at the discretion of HSS to
determine the appropriateness of placement if admission
material indicates the possible need for psychiatric
intervention due to behavior problems.

4. Physical, occupational, or speech therapy
evaluation(s) may be requested when the client receives
services or is in need of services in these areas.

5. An individual service plan (ISP) developed by the
interdisciplinary team, completed within 30 days of
admission that describes and documents the following:

a. habilitation needs;

b. specific objectives that are based on assessment
data;

c. specific services, accommodations, and/or
equipment needed to augment other sources of support to
facilitate placement in the ICF/MR; and

d. participation by the client, the parent(s) if the
client is a minor, or the client's legal guardian unless

participation is not possible or inappropriate.
NOTE: Document the reason(s) for any nonparticipation by
the client, the client's parent(s), or the client's legal guardian.

6. Form 90-L (Request for Level of Care
Determination) must be submitted on each admission or
readmission. This form must:

a. not be completed more than 30 days before
admission and not later than the date of admission;

b. be completed fully and include prior living
arrangements and previous institutional care;

c. be signed and dated by a physician licensed to
practice in Louisiana. Certification will not be effective any
earlier than the date the Form 90-L is signed and dated by

the physician;
d. indicate the ICF/MR level of care; and
e. include a diagnosis of mental

retardation/developmental disability or related condition as
well as any other medical condition.
7. Form 148 (Notification of Admission or Change):

a. must be submitted for each new admission to the
ICF/MR;

b. must be submitted when there is a change in a
client's status: death, discharge, transfer, readmission from a
hospital;
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c. for clients' whose application for Medicaid is
later than date of admission, the date of application must be
indicated on the form.

8. Transfer of a Client

a. Transfer of a Client Within an Organization

i. Form 148 must be submitted by both the
discharging facility and the admitting facility. It should
indicate the date the client was discharged from the
transferring facility plus the name of the receiving facility
and the date admitted.

ii. An updated individual service plan must be
submitted from the discharging facility to the receiving
facility. The previous plan can be used but must show any
necessary revisions that the receiving facility ID team feels
appropriate and/or necessary.

iii. The receiving facility must submit minutes of
an ID team meeting addressing the reason(s) for the transfer,
the family and client's response to the move, and the
signatures of the persons attending the meeting.

b. Transfer of a Client Not Within the Same
Organization. Certification requirements involving the
transfer of a client from one ICF/MR facility to another not
within the same organization or network will be the same as
for a new admission.

i. The discharging facility will notify HSS of the
discharge by submitting Form 148 giving the date of
discharge and destination.

ii.  The receiving facility must follow all steps for
a new admission.

9. Readmission of a Client Following Hospitalization

a. Form 148 must be submitted showing the date
Medicaid billing was discontinued and the date of
readmission to the facility.

b. Documentation must be submitted that specifies
the client's diagnosis, medication regime, and includes the
physician's signature and date. The documentation can be:

i.  Form 90-L;

ii.  hospital transfer form;
hospital discharge summary; or

iv. physician's orders.

c. An updated ISP must be submitted showing
changes, if any, as a result of the hospitalization.

10. Readmission of a Client Following Exhausted
Home Leave Days

a. Form 148 must be submitted showing the date
billing was discontinued and the date of readmission.

b. An updated ISP must be submitted showing
changes, if any, as a result of the extended home leave.

11. Transfer of a Client from an ICF/MR Facility to a
Nursing Facility. When a client's medical condition has
deteriorated to the extent that they cannot participate in or
benefit from active treatment and require 24-hour nursing
care, the ICF/MR may request prior approval from HSS to
transfer the client to a nursing facility by submitting the
following information:

a. Form 148 showing that transfer to a nursing
facility is being requested;

b. Form 90-L completed within 30 days prior to
request for transfer indicating that nursing facility level of
care is needed;

c. Level 1 PASARR completed within 30 days prior
to request for transfer;
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d. ID team meeting minutes addressing the reason
for the transfer, the family and client's response to the move,
and the signatures of the persons attending the meeting; and

e. any other medical information that will support
the need for nursing facility placement.

12. Inventory for Client and Agency Planning (ICAP)
service score.

13. Level of Needs and Services (LONS) summary
sheet.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
36:254 and Title XIX of the Social Security Act.

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Health and Human Resources, Office of Family Security, LR
13:578 (October 1987), amended by the Department of Health and
Hospitals, Office of the Secretary, Bureau of Health Services
Financing, LR 25:698 (April 1999), LR 30:1702 (August 2004),
repromulgated LR 31:2229 (September 2005).

Chapter 307. Records
Subchapter A. Client Records
§30701. General Requirements

A. Written Policies and Procedures. An ICF/MR facility
shall have written policies and procedures governing access
to, publication of, and dissemination of information from
client records.

B. Protection of Records. Client records are the property
of the ICF/MR residents and as such shall be protected from
loss, damage, tampering, or use by unauthorized individuals.
Records may be removed from the ICF/MR's jurisdiction
and safekeeping only in accordance with a court order,
subpoena or statute.

C. Confidentiality. An ICF/MR facility shall ensure
confidential treatment of client records, including
information contained in automatic data banks.

1. The client's written consent, if the client is
determined competent, shall be required for the release of
information to any persons not otherwise authorized under
law to receive it. If the client is not documented as
competent, a member of the family, responsible party or

advocate shall be required to sign.
NOTE: "Blanket" signed authorizations for release of
information from client records are time limited.

2. A record of all disclosures from client's records
shall be kept.

3. All staff shall be trained in the policies regarding
confidentiality during orientation to the ICF/MR and in
subsequent on-the-job and in-service training.

4. Any information concerning a client or family
considered too confidential for general knowledge by the
ICF/MR staff shall be kept in a separate file by the chief
executive officer, his designee, or social worker. A notation
regarding the whereabouts of this information shall be made
in the client's record.

D. Availability of Records. The ICF/MR shall make
necessary records available to appropriate state and federal
personnel upon request.

E. Records Service System

1. The ICF/MR shall maintain an organized central
record service for collecting and releasing client
information. Copies of appropriate information shall be
available in the client living units.

2. A written policy shall be maintained regarding a
"charge out system" by which a client's record may be
located when it is out of file.



3. The ICF/MR shall maintain a master alphabetical
index of all clients.

4. All records shall be maintained in such a fashion as
to protect the legal rights of clients, the ICF/MR, and
ICF/MR staff.

F. General Contents of Records. A written record shall
be maintained for each client.

1. Records shall be adequate for planning and for
continuously evaluating each client's habilitation plan and
documenting each client's response to and progress in the
habilitation plan.

2. Records shall contain sufficient information to
allow staff members to execute, monitor and evaluate each
client's habilitation program.

G. Specifics Regarding Entries into Client Records. The
following procedures shall be adhered to when making
entries into a client's record.

1. All entries shall be legible, signed, and dated by the
person making the entry.

2. All corrections shall be initialed and completed in
such a manner that the original entry remains legible.

3. Entries shall be dated only on the date when they
are made.

4. The ICF/MR shall maintain a roster of signatures,
initials and identification of individuals making entries in
each record.

H. Components of Client Records. Components of client
records shall include, but shall not be limited to, the
following:

1. admission records;

2. personal property records;

3. financial records;

4. medical records.

a. This includes records of all treatments, drugs,
and services for which vendor payments have been made, or
which are to be made, under the Medical Assistance
Program.

b. This includes the authority for and the date of
administration of such treatment, drugs, or services.

c. The ICF/MR shall provide sufficient
documentation to enable DHH to verify that each charge is
due and proper prior to payment.

5. All other records which DHH finds necessary to
determine a ICF/MR's compliance with any federal or state
law, rule or regulation promulgated by the DHH.

I. Retention of Records. The ICF/MR shall retain
records for whichever of the following time frames is longer:

1. until records are audited and all audit questions are
answered;

2. in the case of minors, three years after they become
18 years of age; or

3. three years after the date of discharge, transfer, or
death of the client.

J. Interdicted Client. If the ICF/MR client has been
interdicted, a copy of the legal documents shall be contained
in the client's records.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
36:254 and 42 CFR 433 and 42 CFR 483.400.

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Health and Human Resources, Office of Family Security, LR
13:578 (October 1987), amended by the Department of Health and
Hospitals, Office of the Secretary, Bureau of Health Services
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Financing, LR 25:684 (April 1999), repromulgated LR 31:2230
(September 2005).
§30703. Admission Records
A. At the time of admission to the ICF/MR, information
shall be entered into the client's record which shall identify
and give a history of the client. This identifying information
shall at least include the following:
a recent photograph;
full name;
sex;
date of birth;
ethnic group;
birthplace;
height;
weight;
9. color of hair and eyes;
10. identifying marks;
11. home address, including street address, city, parish
and state;
12. Social Security Number;
13. medical assistance identification number;
14. Medicare claim number, if applicable;

PN B D=

15. citizenship;

16. marital status;

17. religious preference;

18. language spoken or understood;

19. dates of service in the United States Armed Forces,
if applicable;

20. legal competency status if other than competent;

21. sources of support: social security, veterans'

benefits, etc.;

22. father's name, birthplace, Social Security Number,
current address, and current phone number;

23. mother's maiden name, birthplace, Social Security
Number, current address, and current phone number;

24. name, address, and phone number of next of kin,
legal guardian, or other responsible party;

25. date of admission;

26. name, address and telephone number of referral
agency or hospital;

27. reason for admission;

28. admitting diagnosis;

29. current diagnosis, including primary and secondary
DSM III diagnosis, if applicable;

30. medical information, such as allergies and general
health conditions;

31. current legal status;

32. personal attending physician and alternate, if
applicable;

33. choice of other service providers;

34. name of funeral home, if appropriate; and

35. any other useful identifying information. Refer to
Admission Review for procedures.

B. First Month After Admission. Within 30 calendar days
after a client's admission, the ICF/MR shall complete and
update the following:

1. review and update the pre-admission evaluation;

2. develop a prognosis for programming
placement;

3. ensure that an interdisciplinary team completes a
comprehensive evaluation and designs an individual

and
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habilitation plan (IHP) for the client which includes a 24-
hour schedule.

C. Entries into Client Records During Stay at the
ICF/MR. The following information shall be added to each
client's record during his/her stay at the ICF/MR:

1. reports of accidents, seizures, illnesses,
treatments for these conditions;

2. records of immunizations;

3. records of all periods where restraints were used,
with authorization and justification for each, and records of
monitoring in accordance with these standards;

4. reports of at least an annual review and evaluation
of the program, developmental progress, and status of each
client, as required in these standards;

5. behavior incidents and plans to
inappropriate behavior;

6. records of visits and contacts with family and other
persons;

7. records of attendance, absences, and visits away
from the ICF/MR;

8. correspondence pertaining to the client;

9. periodic updates of the admission information (such
updating shall be performed in accordance with the written
policy of the ICF/MR but at least annually); and

10. appropriate authorizations and consents.

D. Entries at Discharge. At the time of a client's
discharge, the QMRP or other professional staff, as
appropriate, shall enter a discharge summary into the client's
record. This summary shall address the findings, events, and
progress of the client while at the ICF/MR and a diagnosis,
prognosis, and recommendations for future programming.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
36:254.

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Health and Human Resources, Office of Family Security, LR
13:578 (October 1987), amended by the Department of Health and
Hospitals, Office of the Undersecretary, Bureau of Health Services
Financing, LR 25:685 (April 1999), repromulgated LR 31:2231
(September 2005).

§30705. Medical Records

A. General Requirements. The ICF/MR shall maintain
medical records which include clinical, medical, and
psychosocial information on each client.

B. Components of Medical Records. Each client's record
shall consist of a current active medical section and the
ICF/MR's medical files or folders.

1. Active Medical Section. The active medical section
shall contain the following information:

a. at least six months of current pertinent
information relating to the active ongoing medical care;

b. physician certification of the clients' need for
admission to the ICF/MR;

c. physician recertification that the client continues
to require the services of the ICF/MR;

d. nurses quarterly physical assessment.
§31101, Client Health and Habilitative Services;

e. quarterly, the pharmacy consultant must review
the drug regimen of each client;

f. certification that each IHP has been periodically
reviewed and revised.

2. Medical Files. As the active medical section
becomes bulky, the outdated information shall be removed
and filed in the ICF/MR's medical files.

and

manage
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AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
36:254 and Title XIX of the Social Security Act.

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Health and Human Resources, Office of Family Security, LR
13:578 (October 1987), amended by the Department of Health and
Hospitals, Office of the Undersecretary, Bureau of Health Services
Financing, LR 25:685 (April 1999), repromulgated LR 31:2231
(September 2005).

§30707. Personal Property Records

A. The ICF/MR shall permit clients to maintain and use
their personal property. The number of personal possessions
may be limited only for health and safety reasons. When
such limitations are imposed, documentation is required in
the client's records.

1. Within 24 hours after admission, the ICF/MR shall
prepare a written inventory of the personal property a client
brings to the ICF/MR.

2. The facility authorized representative shall sign and
retain the written inventory and shall give a copy to the
client, family or responsible party.

3. The ICF/MR shall revise the written inventory to
show if acquired property is lost, destroyed, damaged,
replaced or supplemented.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
36:254 and 42 CFR 483.420.

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Health and Human Resources, Office of Family Security, LR
13:578 (October 1987), amended by the Department of Health and
Hospitals, Office of the Secretary, Bureau of Health Services
Financing, LR 25:686 (April 1999), repromulgated LR 31:2232
(September 2005).

§30709. Financial Records

A. General Requirements. Clients have the right to
maintain their personal funds or to designate someone to
assume this responsibility for them. Clients' income may be
from social security, supplemental security income (SSI),
optional state supplementation, other sources (VA or
insurance benefits, etc.) or earnings of the client. A portion
of the clients' income is used to pay the clients' share
(liability) of the monthly charges for the ICF/MR. The
ICF/MR shall:

1. have written policies and procedures for protecting
clients' funds and for counseling clients concerning the use
of their funds;

2. develop written procedures for the recording and

accounting of client's personal funds;
NOTE: ICF/MRs shall ensure the soundness and accuracy of
the client fund account system.

3. train clients to manage as many of their financial
affairs as they are capable. Documentation must support that
training was provided and the results of that training;

4. maintain current records that include the name of
the person (client or person designated) handling each
client's personal funds;

5. be responsible for the disbursements, deposits,
soundness, and accuracy of the clients: personal funds
account when arrangements are made with a federal or state
insured banking institution to provide banking services for

the clients;
NOTE: All bank charges, including charges for ordering
checks, shall be paid by the ICE/MR and not charged to the
clients' personal funds account(s).
6. maintain current, written individual ledger sheet

records of all financial transactions involving client's



personal funds which the

safeguarding;
NOTE: ICF/MRs shall keep these records in accordance with
requirements of law for a trustee in a fiduciary relationship.

7. make personal fund account records available upon
request to the client, family, responsible party, and DHH.

B. Components Necessary for a Client Fund Account
System. The ICF/MR shall:

1. maintain current, written individual records of all
financial transactions involving clients' personal funds which
the ICF/MR is holding, safeguarding, and accounting;

2. keep these records in accordance with requirements
of law for a trustee in a fiduciary relationship which exists
for these financial transactions;

3. develop the following procedures to ensure a sound
and workable fund accounting system.

a. Individual Client Participation File.
ledger sheet shall consist of the following criteria.
i. A file shall exist for each participating client.
Each file or record shall contain all transactions pertinent to
the account, including the following information:
(a). name of the client and date of admission;
(b). deposits:

facility is holding and

Client=s

(1). date;

(ii). source; and
(iii). amount;

(¢). withdrawals:

(i). date;

(i1).  check/petty cash voucher number;
(ii1). payee (if check is issued);
(iv). purpose of withdrawal; and

(v). amount;

(d). fund balance after each transaction.
NOTE: Checks shall not be payable to "cash" or employees of
the facility.

ii. Maintain receipts or invoices for disbursements
that shall include the following information:
(a). the date;
(b). the amount;
(c). the description of items purchased; and
(d). the signature of the client, family, or
responsible party to support receipt of items.
iii.  Supporting documentation shall be maintained
for each withdrawal as follows:
(a). cash register receipt with canceled check or
petty cash voucher signed by the client; or
(b). invoice with canceled check or petty cash
voucher signed by the client; or
(c). petty cash voucher signed by the client; or
(d). canceled check.

NOTE: Canceled checks written to family members or
responsible parties are sufficient receipts for disbursements if
coupled with information regarding the purpose of
expenditures.

iv.  Supporting documentation shall be maintained
for each deposit as follows:
(a). receipts for all cash received on behalf of the
residents; and
(b). copies of all checks received on behalf of the
residents.
v. All monies, either spent on behalf of the client
or withdrawn by the client, family, or responsible party, shall
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be supported on the individual ledger sheet by a receipt,

invoice, canceled check, or signed voucher on file.
NOTE: It is highly recommended that the functions for actual
disbursement of cash and reconciling of the cash disbursement
record be performed by separate individuals.

vi. The file shall be available to the client, family,
or other responsible party upon request during the normal
administrative work day.

b. Client's Personal Funds Bank Account(s).
ICF/MRs may deposit clients' money in individual or
collective bank account(s). The individual or collective
account(s) shall:

i. be separate and distinct from all ICF/MR
facility accounts;

ii.  consist solely of clients' money and shall not be
commingled with the ICF/MR facility account(s);

iii. personal fund record shall be:

(a). maintained at the facility; and
(b). available daily upon request during banking
hours.

c. Reconciliations of Client's Personal Funds
Account(s). There shall be a written reconciliation, at least
monthly, by someone other than the custodian of the client's
personal funds account(s). "Assets" (cash in bank, both
checking and savings) must equal "liabilities" [ledger sheet
balance(s)]. Collective bank accounts shall be reconciled to
the total of client's ledger sheet balances. The reconciliation
shall be reviewed and approved by someone other than the
preparer or custodian of the client's personal funds account.

d. Unallowable Charges to Client's Personal Funds
Account(s). It is the intent of the State of Louisiana that
ICF/MRs provide total maintenance for recipients. The
client's personal funds should be set aside for individual
wants or to spend as the client sees fit. In the event that a
client desires to purchase a certain brand, he/she has the
right to use his/her personal funds in this manner; however,
the client must be made aware of what the facility is
providing prior to making his/her decision. Written
documentation must be maintained to support that the client
was made aware of products or services the facility is
obligated to provide. Listed below (but not limited to) are
items that shall not be charged to a client's personal funds
account(s), the client's family or responsible party(s):

i. clothing. If a client does not have adequate

seasonal clothing (including shoes, etc.), it is the
responsibility of the facility to provide the clothing;
ii. personal hygiene items;
ili.  haircuts;
iv.  dentures/braces, etc.;
v. eyeglasses;
vi. hearing and other communication aids;
vii. support braces;
viii. any other devices identified by the

interdisciplinary team;

ix. wheelchairs;

x. repair and maintenance of items listed in
Clauses iv-ix;

xi. damage to facility property or the client's
possessions. The client may not be charged for damage to
facility property or the property of others caused by that
individual's destructive behavior. ICF/MRs have a general
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responsibility to maintain the environment as a cost of doing
business. Property of clients damaged or stolen by others
must be replaced by the facility;

xiil. transportation;

xiil. prescription or over-the-counter drugs;

xiv. recreational costs included in the IHP;
xv. medical expenses of any nature;

xvi. tips, gifts, expenses for staff;

xvii. supplies or items to meet goals of IHP.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
36:254 and 42 CFR 483.420(b).

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Health and Human Resources, Office of Family Security, LR
13:578 (October 1987), amended by the Department of Health and
Hospitals, Office of the Secretary, Bureau of Health Services
Financing, LR 25:686 (April 1999), repromulgated LR 31:2232
(September 2005).

§30711. Cash on Hand

A. ICF/MRs shall have a minimum of cash on hand to
meet client's spending needs. Cash on hand shall be
maintained on the imprest petty cash system which includes
pre-numbered petty cash vouchers. Petty cash shall be
maintained at the facility and shall be available to the clients
24 hours a day, seven days a week.

B. The facility shall provide the funds to implement the
petty cash system and replenish it, as necessary, from the
clients' personal funds based on signed vouchers. Vouchers
may be signed by clients, families, or responsible parties.
When residents cannot sign their name, vouchers shall be
signed by two witnesses. Checks issued to replenish the fund
should be made payable to "Custodian of Petty Cash." When
funds are withdrawn from the clients' savings account to
cover signed vouchers, a receipt signed by the custodian of
petty cash shall be maintained in lieu of a canceled check.

C. There shall be a written reconciliation, at least
weekly, by someone other than the custodian of the petty
cash fund. The reconciliation shall be reviewed and
approved by someone other than the preparer or custodian of
the petty cash fund.

NOTE: The facility is responsible for shortages.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
36:254 and Title XIX of the Social Security Act.

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Health and Human Resources, Office of Family Security, LR
13:578 (October 1987), amended by the Department of Health and
Hospitals, Office of the Undersecretary, Bureau of Health Services
Financing, LR 25:687 (April 1999), repromulgated LR 31:2234
(September 2005).

§30713. Access to Funds

A. Clients shall have access to their funds during hours
compatible to banking institutions in the community where
they live. Large ICF/MRs shall post the times when clients
shall have access to their funds.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
36:254.

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Health and Human Resources, Office of Family Security, LR
13:578 (October 1987), amended by the Department of Health and
Hospitals, Office of the Secretary, Bureau of Health Services
Financing, LR 25:688 (April 1999), repromulgated LR 31:2234
(September 2005).

§30715. Closing a Discharged Client's Fund Account

A. When a client is discharged, the ICF/MR shall refund

the balance of a client's personal account and that portion of
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any advance payment not applied directly to the ICF/MR
fee. The amount shall be refunded to the client, family or
other responsible party within 30 days following the date of
discharge. Date, check number, and "to close account"
should be noted on the ledger sheet. When the facility is the
payee for a social security check or other third party
payments, the change in payee should be initiated
immediately by the facility.

NOTE: The facility shall allow the client to withdraw a

minimum of $25 from his/her personal funds account on the

date of discharge.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
36:254 and Title XIX of the Social Security Act.

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Health and Human Resources, Office of Family Security, LR
13:578 (October 1987), amended by the Department of Health and
Hospitals, Office of the Secretary, Bureau of Health Services
Financing, LR 25:688 (April 1999), repromulgated LR 31:2234
(September 2005).

§30717. Disposition of Deceased Client's Personal Funds

A. ICF/MRs, upon a client's death, shall submit written
notification within 10 business days to the next of kin
disclosing the amount of funds in the deceased's account as
of the date of death. The ICF/MR shall hold the funds until
the next of kin notifies the ICF/MR whether a succession
will be opened.

1. Succession Opened. If a succession is to be opened,
the ICF/MR shall release the funds to the administrator of
the estate, if one, or according to the judgment of possession.

2. Succession Not Opened. If no succession is to be
opened, the ICF/MR shall make the funds payable to the
deceased's estate and shall release the funds to the
responsible party of record.

B. Release of Funds. In any case in which funds are
released in accordance with a court order, judgment of
possession, or affidavit, the funds shall be made available to
the persons or parties cited by the court order. The signed
statement shall be attached to the written authority and filed
in the ICF/MR records.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
36:254 and Title XIX of the Social Security Act.

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Health and Human Resources, Office of Family Security, LR
13:578 (October 1987), amended by the Department of Health and
Hospitals, Office of the Secretary, Bureau of Health Services
Financing, LR 25:688 (April 1999), repromulgated LR 31:2234
(September 2005).

§30719. Disposition of Deceased Client's Unclaimed
Personal Funds

A. If the ICF/MR retains the funds and the responsible
party (legal guardian, administrator of the estate, or person
placed in possession by the court judgment) fails to obtain
the funds within three months after the date of death, or if
the ICF/MR fails to receive notification of the appointment
of or other designation of a responsible party within three
months after the death, the ICF/MR shall notify the secretary
of the Department of Revenue, Unclaimed Property Section.
The notice shall provide detailed information about the
decedent, his next of kin, and the amount of funds.

1. The facility shall continue to retain the funds until a
court order specifies that the funds are to be turned over to
secretary of the Department of Revenue.

2. Ifno order or judgment is forthcoming, the ICF/MR
shall retain the funds for five years after date of death.



3. After five years, the ICF/MR is responsible for
delivering the unclaimed funds to the secretary of Revenue.

4. A termination date of the account and the reason for
termination shall be recorded on the client's participation
file. A notation shall read, "to close account." The endorsed
canceled check with check number noted on the ledger sheet
shall serve as sufficient receipt and documentation.

5. Where the legislature has enacted a law governing
the disposition of personal funds belonging to residents of
state schools for the mentally retarded or developmentally
disabled that law shall be applicable.

B. References. References for §§30717 and 30719 are as
follows:

1. Civil Code Article 2951 which deals with deposits
of a deceased person;

2. Code of Civil Procedure, Articles 3421-3434, which
deals with small successions requiring no judicial
proceedings. Section 3431 specifically refers to persons who
die intestate leaving no immovable property and whose sole
heirs are his descendants, ascendants or surviving spouse.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
36:254 and Title XIX of the Social Security Act.

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Health and Human Resources, Office of Family Security, LR
13:578 (October 1987), amended by the Department of Health and
Hospitals, Office of the Secretary, Bureau of Health Services
Financing, LR 25:688 (April 1999), repromulgated LR 31:2234
(September 2005).

Subchapter B. Facility Records
§30739. General Requirements

A. The ICF/MR shall retain such records on file as
required by DHH and shall have them available for
inspection at request for three years from the date of service
or until all audit exceptions are resolved, whichever period is
longer.

B. Provider Agreement. The ICF/MR shall retain a copy
of the Provider Agreement and any document pertaining to
the licensing or certification of the ICF/MR.

C. Accounting Records

1. Accounting records must be maintained in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles as
well as state and federal regulations. The accrual method of
accounting is the only acceptable method for private

providers.
NOTE: Purchase discounts, allowance and refunds will be
recorded as a reduction of the cost to which they related.

2. Each facility must maintain all accounting records,
books, invoices, canceled checks, payroll records, and other
documents relative to client care costs for a period of three
years or until all audit exceptions are resolved, whichever
period is longer.

3. All fiscal and other records pertaining to client care
costs shall be subject at all times to inspection and audit by
DHH, the legislative auditor, and auditors of appropriate
federal funding agencies.

D. Daily Census Records. Each facility must maintain
statistical information related to the daily census and/or
attendance records for all clients receiving care in the
facility.

E. Employee Records

1. The ICF/MR shall retain written verification of
hours worked by individual employees.
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a. Records may be sign-in sheets or time cards, but
shall indicate the date and hours worked.

b. Records shall include all employees even on a
contractual or consultant basis.

2. Verification of criminal background check.

3. Verification of employee orientation and in-service
training.

4. Verification of the employee's
disease screening.

F. Billing Records

1. The ICF/MR shall maintain billing records in
accordance with recognized fiscal and accounting
procedures. Individual records shall be maintained for each
client. These records shall meet the following criteria.

a. Records shall clearly detail each charge and each
payment made on behalf of the client.

b. Records shall be current and shall clearly reveal
to whom charges were made and for whom payments were
received.

c. Records shall itemize each billing entry.

d. Records shall show the amount of each payment
received and the date received.

2. The ICF/MR shall maintain supporting fiscal
documents and other records necessary to ensure that claims
are made in accordance with federal and state requirements.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
36:254, Title XIX of the Social Security Act, 42 CFR 433 and 42
CFR 442.

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Health and Human Resources, Office of Family Security, LR
13:578 (October 1987), amended by the Department of Health and
Hospitals, Office of the Secretary, Bureau of Health Services
Financing, LR 25:690 (April 1999), repromulgated LR 31:2235
(September 2005).

Chapter 309. Transfers and Discharges
§30901. Written Agreements with Outside Resources

A. Each client must have the services which are required
to meet his needs including emergency and other health care.
If the service is not provided directly, there must be a written
agreement with an outside resource. The written agreement
for hospital transfers must be with hospitals within close
proximity and must provide for prompt transfer of clients.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with
R.S. 36:254, Title XIX of the Social Security Act, and CFR
483.410(d), 483.410(d)(1)-483.410(d)(2)(ii) and 483.440(b)(1)-
483.440(b)(5)(ii).

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Health and Human Resources, Office of Family Security, LR
13:578 (October 1987), amended by the Department of Health and
Hospitals, Office of the Secretary, Bureau of Health Services
Financing, LR 25:688 (April 1999), repromulgated LR 31:2235
(September 2005).

§30903. Facility Responsibilities for Planned or
Voluntary Transfer or Discharge Policies

A. Facility record shall document that the client was
transferred or discharged for good cause which means for
any reason that is in the best interest of the individual.

B. Any decision to move a client shall be part of an
interdisciplinary team process. The client, family, legal
representative, and advocate, if there is one, shall participate
in the decision making process.

C. Planning for a client's discharge or transfer shall allow
for at least 30 days to prepare the client and parents/guardian
for the change except in emergencies.

communicable
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D. Planning for release of a client shall include providing
for appropriate services in the client's new environment,
including protective supervision and other follow-up
services which are detailed in his discharge plan.

E. The client and/or legal representative must give their
written consent to all nonemergency situations. Notification
shall be made to the parents or guardians as soon as possible.

F. Both the discharging and receiving facilities shall
share responsibility for ensuring the interchange of medical
and other programmatic information which shall include:

1. an updated active treatment plan;

2. appropriate transportation and care of the client
during transfer; and

3. the transfer of personal effects and of information
related to such items.

G. Representatives from the staff of both the sending and
receiving facilities shall confer as often as necessary to share
appropriate information regarding all aspects of the client's
care and habilitation training. The transferring facility is
responsible for developing a final summary of the client's
developmental, behavioral, social, health, and nutritional
status, and with the consent of the client and/or legal
guardian, providing a copy to authorized persons and
agencies.

H. The facility shall establish procedures for counseling
clients or legal representatives, concerning the advantages
and disadvantages of the possible release. This counseling
shall include information regarding after care services
available through agency and community resources.

I.  All clients being transferred or discharged shall be
given appropriate information about the new living
arrangement. Counseling shall be provided if they are not in
agreement. (See "Involuntary Transfers" if client is being
transferred against his will).

J.  The basic policy of client's right to the most
appropriate placement which will meet his needs shall
govern all transfer/discharge planning. Clients are not to be
maintained in inappropriate placements or replacements in
which their needs cannot adequately be met.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
36:254 and Title XIX of the Social Security Act.

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Health and Human Resources, Office of Family Security, LR
13:578 (October 1987), amended by the Department of Health and
Hospitals, Office of the Secretary, Bureau of Health Services
Financing, LR 25:689 (April 1999), repromulgated LR 31:2235
(September 2005).

§30905. Involuntary Transfer or Discharge

A. Conditions. Involuntary transfer or discharge of a
client may occur only under the following conditions:

1. the transfer or discharge is necessary for the client's
welfare and the client's needs cannot be met in the facility;

2. the transfer or discharge is appropriate because the
client's health has improved sufficiently, therefore, the client
no longer needs the services provided by the facility;

3. the safety of individuals in the facility is
endangered;

4. the health of individuals in the facility would
otherwise be endangered;

5. the client has failed, after reasonable and
appropriate notice, to pay for the portion of the bill for
services for which he/she is liable or when the client loses
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financial eligibility for Medicaid. When a client becomes
eligible for Medicaid after admission to a facility, the facility
may charge the client only allowable charges under
Medicaid; and

6. the facility ceases to operate.

B. When the facility proposes to transfer or discharge a
client under any of the circumstances specified in
Paragraphs A.1-5 above, the client's clinical records must be
fully documented. The documentation must be made by the
following:

1. the client's physician when transfer or discharge is
necessary as specified in Paragraph A.1 or 2 as listed above;
or

2. any physician when transfer or discharge is
necessary as specified in Paragraph A.4 as listed above.
Before an interfacility transfer or discharge occurs the
facility must:

a. notify the client of the transfer or discharge and
the reason for the move. The notification shall be in writing
and in a language and manner that the client understands. A
copy of the notice must be placed in the client's clinical
record and a copy transmitted to:

i. the client;
ii. a family member of the client, if known;
iii. the client's legal representative and legal
guardian, if known;
iv. the Community Living Ombudsman Program;
v. DHH—Health Standards Section;
vi. the regional office of OCDD for assistance
with the placement decision;
vii. the client's physician;
viii.appropriate educational authorities; and
ix. arepresentative of the client's choice;

b. record the reasons in the client's clinical record;

c. a interdisciplinary team conference shall be
conducted with the client, family member or legal
representative and an appropriate agency representative to
update the plan and develop discharge options that will
provide reasonable assurances that the client will be
transferred or discharged to a setting that can be expected to
meet his/her needs;

3. the facility must issue the notice of transfer or
discharge in writing at least 30 days before the resident is
transferred or discharged, except under the circumstances
described in Subparagraph a below:

a. notice may be made as soon as practicable before
transfer or discharge when:

i. the safety of individuals in the facility would
be endangered;

ii. the health of individuals in the facility would
be endangered;

iii. the client's health improves sufficiently to
allow a more immediate transfer or discharge; or

iv. an immediate transfer or discharge is required
by the client's urgent medical needs as determined by a
physician;

b. notice may be made at least 15 days before
transfer or discharge in cases of nonpayment of a bill for
cost of care;

c. the written notice must include:

i. the reason for transfer or discharge;
ii. the effective date of transfer or discharge;



iii.  the location to which the client is transferred or
discharged;

iv. an explanation of the client's right to have
personal and/or third party representation at all stages of the
transfer or discharge process;

v. the address and telephone number of the
Community Living Ombudsman Program;

vi. the mailing address and telephone number of
the agency responsible for the protection of individuals with
developmental disabilities;

vii. names of facility personnel available to assist
the client and family in decision making and transfer
arrangements;

viii. the date, time and place for the follow-up
interdisciplinary team conference to make a final decision on
the client's/legal representative's choice of new facility of
alternative living arrangement;

ix. an explanation of the client's right to register a
complaint with DHH within three days after the follow-up
interdisciplinary team conference;

X. a statement regarding appeal rights that reads:
"You or someone acting on your behalf has the right to
appeal the health facility's decision to discharge you. The
written request for a hearing must be postmarked within 30
days after you receive this notice or prior to the effective
date of the transfer or discharge. If you request a hearing, it
will be held within 30 days after the facility notifies the
Bureau of Appeals of the witnesses who shall testify at the
discharge hearing as well as the documents that will be
submitted as  evidence. You will not be
transferred/discharged from the facility until a decision on
the appeal has been rendered;" and

xi. the name of the director, and the address,
telephone number, and hours of operation of the Bureau of
Appeals of the Louisiana Department of Health and
Hospitals.

C. The facility shall provide all services required prior to
discharge that are contained in the final update of the
individual habilitation plan and in the transfer or discharge
plan.

D. The facility shall be responsible for keeping the
client, whenever medical or other conditions warrant such
action, for as long as necessary even if beyond the proposed
date of transfer or discharge, except in emergency situations.

E. The facility shall provide transportation to the new
residence unless other arrangements are preferred by the
client/legal representative or the receiving facility.

F. Appeal of Transfer or Discharge. If the client appeals
the transfer or discharge, the ICF/MR facility must permit
the client to remain in the facility and must not transfer or
discharge the client from the facility until the final appeal
decision has been reached or a pre-hearing conference is
held at the request of the facility. Failure to comply with
these requirements will result in termination of the facility's
provider agreement.

G. If nonpayment is the basis of a transfer or discharge,
the client shall have the right to pay the balance owed to the
facility up to the date of the transfer or discharge and then is
entitled to remain in the facility.
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H. If an ICF/MR client requests a hearing, the Louisiana
Department of Health and Hospitals shall hold a hearing at
the ICF/MR facility, or by telephone if agreed upon by the
appellant, within 30 days from the date the appeal is filed
with the Bureau of Appeals and witness and exhibit lists are
submitted by the facility. The Louisiana Department of
Health and Hospitals shall issue a decision within 30 days
from the date of the client hearing. The ICF/MR facility
must convince the department by a preponderance of the
evidence that the transfer or discharge is justified. If the
department determines that the transfer is appropriate and no
appeal and/or pre-hearing conference has been lodged with
the Bureau of Appeals, the client must not be required to
leave the ICF/MR facility within 30 days after the client's
receipt of the initial transfer or discharge notice unless an
emergency exists.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
36:254 and Title XIX of the Social Security Act.

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Health and Human Resources LR 13:578 (October 1987), amended
by the Department of Health and Hospitals, Office of the Secretary,
Bureau of Health Services Financing, LR 25:690 (April 1999), LR
30:1700 (August 2004), repromulgated LR 31:2236 (September
2005).

§30907. Mass Transfer of Clients

A. The following provisions shall apply to any mass
transfer.

1. ICF/MR Decertification. When DHH/BHSF
determines that an ICF/MR no longer meets state and federal
Title XIX certification requirements, decertification action is
taken. Usually an advance decertification date is set unless
clients are in immediate danger.

2. ICF/MR Decertification Notice. On the date the
ICF/MR is notified of its decertification, DHH shall begin
notifying clients, families, responsible parties, and other
appropriate agencies or individuals of the decertification
action and of the services available to ensure an orderly
transfer and continuity of care.

3. ICF/MR Closing or Withdrawing from Title XIX
Program. In institutions where an ICF/MR either voluntarily
or involuntarily discontinues its operations or participation
in the Medical Assistance Program, clients, families,
responsible parties, and other appropriate agencies or
individuals shall be notified as far in advance of the effective
date as possible to insure an orderly transfer and continuity
of care.

a. If the ICF/MR is closing its operations, plans
shall be made for transfer.

b. If the ICF/MR is voluntarily or involuntarily
withdrawing from Title XIX participation, the client has the
option of remaining in the ICF/MR on a private-pay basis.

4. Payment Limitation. Payments may continue for
clients up to 30 days following the effective date of the
ICF/MR's decertification.

a. There shall be no payments approved for Title
XIX clients admitted after an ICF/MR receives a notice of
decertification.

b. The payment limitation also applies to Title XIX
clients admitted prior to the decertification notice.
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c. Payment is continued to the ICF/MR for clients
certified prior to the decertification only if the ICF/MR
totally cooperates in the orderly transfer of clients to other

Title XIX facilities or other placements of their choice.
NOTE:

The ICF/MR's failure to comply with the transfer team's
requests may result in denial of reimbursement during the
extension period.

The ICF/MR still retains its usual responsibility during the
transfer/discharge process to notify the BHSF Medicaid
Eligibility Parish Office promptly of all changes in the client's
status.

5. Client Rights. Nothing in the transfer or discharge
plan shall interfere with client's exercise of his rights.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
36:254 and Title XIX of the Social Security Act.

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Health and Human Resources, Office of Family Security, LR
13:578 (October 1987), amended by the Department of Health and
Hospitals, Office of the Secretary, Bureau of Health Services
Financing, LR 25:690 (April 1999), repromulgated LR 31:2237
(September 2005).

Chapter 311. Health Services
§31101. Client Health and Habilitative Services

A. Intermediate Care Facilities for the Mentally
Retarded (ICF/MR)—intermediate care facilities whose
primary purpose is to provide health or habilitative services
for mentally retarded individuals or persons with related
conditions and meet the standards in 42 CFR 442 and
483.400.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
36:254.

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Health and Human Resources, Office of Family Security, LR
13:578 (October 1987), amended by the Department of Health and
Hospitals, Office of the Secretary, Bureau of Health Services
Financing, LR 25:691 (April 1999), repromulgated LR 31:2238
(September 2005).

§31103. Habilitative Treatment Services

A. Active Treatment Services. The facility must provide
or arrange for each client to receive a continuous active
treatment program consisting of needed interventions and
services in sufficient number and frequency to support the
achievement of the objectives identified in the individual
habilitation plan (IHP). These services include but are not
limited to occupational, speech, physical and recreational
therapies; psychological, psychiatric, audiology, social work,

special education, dietary and rehabilitation counseling.
NOTE: Supplies, equipment, etc., needed to meet the goals of
the IHP cannot be charged to the client or their responsible
parties.

B. Active Treatment Components
1. Individual Habilitation Plan. Each client must have
an individual habilitation plan developed by an
interdisciplinary team that represents the professions,
disciplines or service areas that are relevant to identifying
the client's needs as described by the programs that meet
those needs.

a. The facility must document in the individual
habilitation plan (IHP) the presence, or the reason for
absence, at the individual's staffing conference of the client,
family members and relevant disciplines, professions or
service areas as identified in the comprehensive functional
assessment.

b. Within 30 days after admission, the
interdisciplinary team must do assessments or reassessments
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as needed to supplement the preliminary evaluation
conducted prior to admission.

c. The comprehensive functional assessment must
take into consideration the client's age and the implications
for active treatment at each stage as applicable. It must
contain the following components:

i. the presenting problems and disabilities and
where possible, their causes including diagnosis, symptoms,
complaints and complications;

ii. the client's specific developmental strengths;

iii. the client's specific developmental and
behavioral management needs.

d.  An identification of the client's needs for services
without regard to the actual availability of the services.

e. The comprehensive functional assessment must
cover the following developmental areas:

i. physical development and health;

ii. nutritional status;

iii. sensorimotor development;

iv. affective development;

v. speech and language development;

vi. auditory functioning;

vii. cognitive development;

viii.  social development;

ix. adaptive behaviors or independent living skills
necessary for the client to be able to function in the
community;

X. vocational skills as applicable;

xi. psychological development.

2. Specific Objectives. Within 30 days after
admission, the interdisciplinary team must prepare for each
client an IHP that states specific objectives necessary to
meet the client's needs, as identified by the comprehensive
functional assessment, and states the plan for achieving these
objectives.

a. Components for these objectives must be:

i. stated separately, in terms of a
behavioral outcome;

ii.  be assigned projected completion dates;

iii. be expressed in behavioral terms that provide
measurable indices of performance;

iv. be organized to reflect a developmental
disability;

v. be assigned priorities.

b. A copy of each client's individual habilitation
plan must be made available to all relevant staff, including
staff of other agencies who work with the client, the client,
parents, if the client is a minor, or legal guardian. The
individual's habilitation plan must be implemented within 14
calendar days of its development.

c. The facility must develop and make available to
relevant staff an active treatment schedule that outlines the
current active treatment program.

d. Each written training program designed to
implement these objectives in the individual habilitation plan
must specify:

i. the methods to be used;

ii.  the schedule for use of the methods;

iii.  the person responsible for the program;

iv. the type of data and frequency of data
collection necessary to be able to assess progress toward the
desired objectives;

single



v. the client
applicable; and

vi. a provision for the appropriate expression and
the replacement of inappropriate behavior, if applicable, with
behavior that is adaptive or appropriate.

e. The IHP must also:

i. describe relevant interventions to support the
individual toward independence;

ii. identify the location where program strategy
information (which must be accessible to any person
responsible for implementation) can be found;

iii. include, for those clients who lack them,
training in personal skills essential for privacy and
independence (including skills and activities of daily living)
until it has been demonstrated that the client is
developmentally incapable of applying them;

iv. plans for discharge.

f.  The IHP must identify mechanical supports, if
needed, to achieve proper body position, balance, or
alignment. This plan must specify:

i. the reason for each support;

ii. the situation in which each is to be applied;

iii.  a schedule for the use of each support.

g. Clients who have multiple disabling conditions
must be provided the opportunity to spend a major portion of
each working day out of bed and outside the bedroom area,
moving about by various methods and devices whenever
possible.

h. The IHP must include opportunities for client
choice and self management.

3. Documentation. The facility must document data
relevant to the accomplishment of the criteria specified in
the client's individual habilitation plan objectives. This data
must meet certain criteria:

a. data must be
outcomes;

b. significant events related to the client's individual
habilitation plan and assessment and that contribute to an
overall understanding of his ongoing level and quality of
function must be documented;

c. the individual habilitation plan must be reviewed
by a qualified mental retardation professional at least
quarterly or as needed and revised as necessary, including
but not limited to, situations in which the client:

i. has successfully completed an objective or
objectives identified in the individual habilitation plan;

ii.  is regressing or losing skills;

iii. is failing to progress toward
objectives after reasonable efforts have been made;

iv. is being considered for training toward new
objectives;

d. at least annually, the comprehensive assessment
of each client must be reviewed by the interdisciplinary team
for relevancy and updated as needed. The individual
habilitation plan must be revised as needed or at least by the

three hundred sixty-fifth day after the last review.
NOTE: For admission requirements, refer to Chapter 303,
Provider Enrollment.
AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
36:254.
HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Health and Human Resources, Office of Family Security, LR
13:578 (October 1987), amended by the Department of Health and

inappropriate behavior(s), if

documented in measurable

identified
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Hospitals, Office of the Secretary, Bureau of Health Services
Financing, LR 25:691 (April 1999), repromulgated LR 31:2238
(September 2005).
§31105. Professional Services

A. Physician Services

1. The health care of each client shall be under the
continuing supervision of a Louisiana licensed physician.
The facility must ensure the availability of physician
services 24 hours a day. The facility must provide or obtain
preventive and general medical care plus annual physical
examinations of each client.

2. The client, the family or the responsible party shall
be allowed a choice of physicians.

3. If the client does not have a personal physician, the
ICF/MR shall provide referrals to physicians in the area,
identifying physicians that participate in the Medicaid
Program.

NOTE: The cost of physician services cannot be charged to
the client or their responsible parties.

B. Nursing Services
NOTE: The cost for nursing services cannot be charged to the
client or their legal representative.

1. The facility must provide each client nursing
services as prescribed by a physician or as identified by the
individual habilitation plan and client needs. Nursing
services must include:

a. the development, with a physician, of a medical
care plan of treatment for a client when the physician has
determined that an individual client requires such a plan;

b. twenty-four-hour nursing service as indicated by
the medical care plan or other nursing care as prescribed by
the physician or as identified by client needs;

c. review of individual client health status on a
quarterly or more frequent basis;

d. training clients and staff as needed in appropriate
health and hygiene methods and self-administration of
medications;

e. notify the physician of any changes in the client's
health status.

2. If the facility utilizes only licensed practical nurses
to provide health services, it must have a formal
arrangement with a registered nurse licensed to practice in
Louisiana to be available for verbal or on-site consultation to
the licensed practical nurse.

C. Dental Services. The facility must provide or arrange
for comprehensive diagnostic and treatment services for
each client from qualified personnel, including licensed
dentists and dental hygienists either through organized
dental services in-house or through arrangement. The facility
must ensure that dental treatment services include dental
care needed for relief of pain and infections, restoration of
teeth and maintenance of dental health. The facility must
ensure the availability of emergency treatment on a 24-hour
per day basis by a licensed dentist.

NOTE: The cost for these dental services cannot be charged to

the client or their responsible party.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
36:254 and Title XIX of the Social Security Act.

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Health and Human Resources, Office of Family Security, LR
13:578 (October 1987), amended by the Department of Health and
Hospitals, Office of the Secretary, Bureau of Health Services
Financing, LR 25:691 (April 1999), repromulgated LR 31:2239
(September 2005).
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§31107. Pharmaceutical Services

A. The facility must provide or arrange for the provision
of routine and emergency drugs and biologicals to its clients.
Drugs and biologicals may be obtained from community or
contract pharmacists or the facility may maintain a licensed
pharmacy.

B. Routine administration of medications shall be done
at the facility where the client resides. Clients may not be
transported elsewhere for the sole purpose of medication
administration.

C. The ICF/MR shall neither expect, nor require, any
provider to give a discount or rebate for prescription services
rendered by the pharmacists.

D. The ICF/MR shall order at least a one month supply
of medications from a pharmacy of the client's, family's, or
responsible party's choice. Less than a month's supply is
ordered only when the attending physician specifies that a
smaller quantity of medication is necessary for a special
medical reason.

E. The ICF/MR chief executive officer or the authorized
representative shall certify receipt of prescribed medications
by signing and dating the pharmacy billing.

NOTE: The costs for drugs and biologicals cannot be charged
to the client, family or responsible party including any
additional charges for the use of the unit dose or blister pack
system of packing and storing medications.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
36:254 and Title XIX of the Social Security Act

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Health and Human Resources, Office of Family Security, LR
13:578 (October 1987), amended by the Department of Health and
Hospitals, Office of the Secretary, Bureau of Health Services
Financing, LR 25:691 (April 1999), repromulgated LR 31:2240
(September 2005).

§31109. Aids and Equipment

A. The facility must furnish, maintain in good repair, and
teach clients to use and to make informed choices about the
use of dentures, eyeglasses, hearing and other
communication aids, braces, and other devices identified by
the interdisciplinary team as needed by the client.

NOTE: The costs for aids and equipment cannot be charged to
the clients or their legal representatives.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
36:254 and Title XIX of the Social Security Act

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Health and Human Resources, Office of Family Security, LR
13:578 (October 1987), amended by the Department of Health and
Hospitals, Office of the Secretary, Bureau of Health Services
Financing, LR 25:691 (April 1999), repromulgated LR 31:2240
(September 2005).

§31111. Nutritional Services

A. The facility must provide a nourishing, well-balanced
diet for each client, including modified and specially
prescribed diets. The nutritional component must be under
the guidance of a licensed dietitian.

NOTE: Nutritional services are included in the per diem rate.
Residents of ICF/MR facilities are not eligible for food
stamps, commodities, or other subsidized food programs.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
36:254 and Title XIX of the Social Security Act

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Health and Human Resources, Office of Family Security, LR
13:578 (October 1987), amended by the Department of Health and
Hospitals, Office of the Secretary, Bureau of Health Services
Financing, LR 25:691 (April 1999), repromulgated LR 31:2240
(September 2005).
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§31113. Clothing

A. The facility should provide adequate seasonal
clothing for the client. Adequate is defined as a seven-day
supply in good repair and properly fitting. Work uniforms or
special clothing/equipment for training will be provided in
addition to the seven-day supply.

B. The facility must maintain a current -clothing
inventory for each client.

1. A client with adequate clothing may purchase
additional clothing using his/her personal funds if he/she
desires.

2. If a client desires to purchase a certain brand, the
client has the right to use his/her personal funds in this
manner; however, the client must be made aware of what the
facility is providing prior to making his/her decision.

NOTE: For more information on services that must be

provided by the ICF/MR facility or may be purchased by the

client, see §33101, Income Consideration in Determining

Payment.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
36:254 and Title XIX of the Social Security Act.

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Health and Human Resources, Office of Family Security, LR
13:578 (October 1987), amended by the Department of Health and
Hospitals, Office of the Secretary, Bureau of Health Services
Financing, LR 25:691 (April 1999), repromulgated LR 31:2240
(September 2005).

Chapter 313. Client Behavior Management
§31301. Written Policies and Procedures

A. A facility must develop and implement written
policies and procedures for the management of conduct
between staff and clients. These policies and procedures
will:

1. specify conduct to be allowed and not allowed by
staff and/or clients;

2. provide for client choice and self determination to
the extent possible;

3. be readily available to all clients, parent(s), staff,
and legal guardians;

4. Dbe developed with the participation of clients to the
extent possible.

B. A facility must develop and implement written
policies and procedures for the management of inappropriate
client behavior. These policies and procedures must:

1. specify all facility approved interventions to
manage inappropriate client behavior;

2. designate these interventions on a hierarchy ranging
from the most positive and least restrictive to the least
positive and most restrictive;

3. insure that, prior to the use of more restrictive
techniques, the client's record document that programs
incorporating the use of less intrusive or more positive
techniques have been tried first and found to be ineffective;

4. address the use of:

a. time-out rooms;

b. physical restraints;

c. drugs used to manage inappropriate behavior;

d. application of painful or noxious stimuli;

e. the staff members who may authorize use of a

particular intervention;
f. a mechanism for monitoring and controlling use
of the intervention.



AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
36:254, R.S. 40.2009.2, R.S. 40:2009.20, R.S. 403.2, 42 CFR
483.420, 483.440, and 483.450.

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Health and Human Resources, Office of Family Security, LR
13:578 (October 1987), amended by the Department of Health and
Hospitals, Office of the Secretary, Bureau of Health Services
Financing, LR 25:693 (April 1999), repromulgated LR 31:2240
(September 2005).

§31303. Interventions to Manage Inappropriate Client
Behavior

A. Safety and Supervision. Interventions to manage
inappropriate client behavior must be used within sufficient
safeguards and supervision to insure that the safety, welfare,
and civil and human rights of clients are adequately
protected. These interventions must:

1. never be used:

a. for disciplinary purposes;

b. for the convenience of staff; or

c. as a substitute for an active treatment program;

2. never include corporal punishment;

3. never include discipline of one client by another
except as part of an organized system of self government as
set forth in facility policy.

B. Individual Plans and Approval. Individual programs
to manage inappropriate client behavior must be
incorporated into the client's individual program plan and
must be reviewed, approved, and monitored by the Specially
Constituted Committee. Written informed consent by the
client or legal representative is required prior to
implementation of a behavior management plan involving
any risks to client's rights. (See Chapter 315, Client Rights,
which addresses informed consent.)

C. Standing Programs. Standing or as needed programs
to control inappropriate behavior are not permitted. To send
a client to his room when his behavior becomes
inappropriate is not acceptable unless part of a systematic
program of behavioral interventions for the individual client.

D. Time-out Rooms

1. Use of time-out rooms is not permitted in group or
community homes.

2. In institutional settings, it is permitted only when
professional staff is on-site and only under the following
conditions:

a. the placement in a time-out room is part of an
approved systematic behavior program as required in the
individual program to manage inappropriate behavior
discussed under §31303.A.1-3; emergency placement is not
allowed,;

b. the client is under direct constant visual
supervision of designated staff;

c. if the door to the room is closed, it must be held
shut only by use of constant physical pressure from a staff
member;

d. placement in time-out room does not exceed one
hour;

e. clients are protected from hazardous conditions
while in time-out rooms;

f. arecord is kept of time-out activities.
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E. Physical Restraint. Physical restraint is defined as
any manual method or physical or mechanical device that
the individual cannot remove easily and which restricts free
movement.

1. Examples of manual methods include:

a. therapeutic or basket holds; and

b. prone or supine containment.

2. Examples of physical or mechanical devices
include:

a. barred enclosure which must be no more than 3
feet in height and must not have tops;

b. chair with a lap tray used to keep an ambulatory
client seated;

c. wheelchair tied to prevent movement of a
wheelchair mobile client;

d. straps used to prevent movement while client is
in chair or bed.

3. Physical restraints can be used only:

a. when absolutely necessary to protect the client
from injuring himself or others in an emergency situation;

b. when part of an individual program plan intended
to lead to less restrictive means of managing the behavior
the restraints are being used to control;

c. as a health related protection prescribed by a
physician but only if absolutely necessary during a specific
medical, dental, or surgical procedure or while a medical
condition exists;

d. when the following conditions are met:

i. orders for restraints are not obtained for use on
a standing or on an as needed basis;

ii. restraint authorizations are not in effect longer
than 12 consecutive hours and are obtained as soon as
possible after restraint has occurred in emergency situations;

iii. clients in restraints are checked at least every
30 minutes and released as quickly as possible. Record of
restraint checks and usage is required;

iv. restraints are designed and used so as not to
cause physical injury and so as to cause the least possible
discomfort;

v. opportunities for motion and exercise are
provided for not less than 10 minutes during each two-hour
period and a record is kept; and

vi. restraints are applied only by staff who have
had training in the use of these interventions.

F. Drugs. Drugs used for control of inappropriate
behavior may be used only under the following conditions:

1. drugs must be used only in doses that do not
interfere with the client's daily living activities;

2. drugs used for control of inappropriate behavior
must be approved by the interdisciplinary team, the client,
legal representative, and specially constituted committee.
These drugs must be used only as part of the client's
individual program plan that is directed toward eliminating
the behavior the drugs are thought to control;

3. prior to the use of any program involving a risk to
client protection and rights, including the use of drugs to
manage inappropriate behavior, written informed consent
must be obtained from:

a. client; or
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b. family, legal representative, or advocate if client
is a minor or client is mentally unable to understand the
intended program or treatment;

4. informed consent consists of permission given
voluntarily on a time limited basis not to exceed 365 days by
the client or the legally appropriate party after having been
informed of the:

a. specific issue treatment or procedure;

b. client's specific status with regard to the issue;
c. attendant risks regarding the issue;

d. acceptable alternatives to the issue;

e. right to refuse;

f.  consequences of refusal;

5. drugs must not be used until it can be justified that
the beneficial effects of the drug on the client's behavior
clearly outweighs the potentially harmful effects of the drug;

6. drugs must be clearly monitored in conjunction
with the physician, the pharmacist, and facility staff;

7. unless clinical evidence justifies that this is
contraindicated, drugs for control of inappropriate behavior
must be gradually reduced at least annually in a carefully
monitored program conducted in conjunction with the
interdisciplinary team.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
36:254, R.S. 40.2009.2, R.S. 40:2009.20, R.S. 403.2, 42 CFR
483.420, 483.440, and 483.450.

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Health and Human Resources, Office of Family Security, LR
13:578 (October 1987), amended by the Department of Health and
Hospitals, Office of the Secretary, Bureau of Health Services
Financing, LR 25:693 (April 1999), repromulgated LR 31:2241
(September 2005).

Chapter 315. Client Rights
§31501. Written Policies

A. The ICF/MR will establish written policies that
safeguard clients' rights and define their responsibilities. The
ICF/MR chief executive officer and ICF/MR staff will be
trained in, and will adhere to, client rights policies and
procedures. ICF/MR personnel will protect and promote
clients' civil rights and rights to a dignified existence, self-
determination, communication with and access to persons
and services inside and outside the facility and to exercise
their legal rights. The chief executive officer will be
responsible for staff compliance with client rights policies.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
46:153, R.S. 28.390, 42 CFR 483.420 and 483.410 (1), (2), (3),
Title XIX of the Social Security Act, Section 601 of Title VI of the
Civil Rights Act of 1964; Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of
1973; and Age Discrimination Act of 1975.

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Health and Human Resources, Office of Family Security, LR
13:578 (October 1987), amended by the Department of Health and
Hospitals, Office of the Secretary, Bureau of Health Services
Financing, LR 25:694 (April 1999), repromulgated LR 31:2242
(September 2005).

§31503. Notification of Rights

A. All clients, families, and/or responsible parties will
sign a statement that they have been fully informed verbally
and in writing of the following information at the time of
admission and when changes occur during the client's stay in
the facility:

1. the facility's rules;

2. their rights;
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3. their responsibilities to obey all reasonable rules
and respect the personal rights and private property of
clients; and

4. rules for conduct at the time of their admissions and
subsequent changes during their stay in the facility.

B. Changes in client right policies will be conveyed both
verbally and in writing to each client, family, and/or
responsible party at the time of or before the change.

C. Receipt of the change will be acknowledged in
writing by:

1. each client who is capable of doing so;

2. client's family; and/or

3. responsible party.

D. A client's written acknowledgment will be witnessed
by a third person.

E. Each client must be fully informed in writing of all
services available in the ICF/MR and of the charges for these
services including any charges for services not paid for by
Medicaid or not included in the facility's basic rate per day
charges. The facility must provide this information either
before or at the time of admission and on a continuing basis
as changes occur in services or charges during the client's
stay.

XUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
46:153, R.S. 28.390, 42 CFR 483.420 and 483.410 (1), (2), (3),
Title XIX of the Social Security Act, Section 601 of Title VI of the
Civil Rights Act of 1964; Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of
1973; and Age Discrimination Act of 1975.

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Health and Human Resources, Office of Family Security, LR
13:578 (October 1987), amended by the Department of Health and
Hospitals, Office of the Secretary, Bureau of Health Services
Financing, LR 25:694 (April 1999), repromulgated LR 31:2242
(September 2005).

§31505. Statute Authority

A. Civil Rights Act of 1964 (Title VI). Title VI of the
Civil Rights Act of 1964 states: "No persons in the United
States shall, on the grounds of race, color, or national origin,
be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of,
or be subjected to discrimination under any program or
activity receiving federal financial assistance." The facility
will meet the following criteria in regards to the above-
mentioned Act.

1. Compliance. The facility will be in compliance with
Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and will not
discriminate, separate, or make any distinction in housing,
services, or activities based on race, color, or national origin.

2. Written Policies. The facility will adopt and
implement written policies for compliance with the Civil
Rights Act. All employees and contract service providers
who provide services to clients will be notified in writing of
the Civil Rights policy.

3. Community Notification. The facility will notify
the community that admission to the ICF/MR, services to
clients, and other activities are provided without regard to
race, color, or national origin.

a. Notice to the community may be given by letters
to and meetings with physicians, local health and welfare
agencies, paramedical personnel, and public and private
organizations having interest in equal opportunity.

b. Notices published in newspapers and signs
posted in the facility may also be used to inform the public.



4. Housing. All clients will be housed without regard
to race, color, or national origin.

a. ICF/MRs will not have dual accommodations to
effect racial segregation.

b. Biracial occupancy of rooms on a
nondiscriminatory basis will be required. There will be a
policy prohibiting assignment of rooms by race.

c. Clients will not be asked if they are willing to
share a room with a person of another race, color, or national
origin.

d. Client transfer will not be used to evade
compliance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964.

5. Open Admission Policy. An open admission policy
and desegregation of ICF/MR will be required, particularly
when the facility previously excluded or primarily serviced
clients of a particular race, color, or national origin.
Facilities that exclusively serve clients of one race have the
responsibility for taking corrective action, unless
documentation is provided that this pattern has not resulted
from discriminatory practices.

6. Client Services. All clients will be provided
medical, nonmedical, and volunteer services without regard
to race, color, or national origin. All administrative, medical
and nonmedical services are covered by this requirement.

7. Al ICF/MR staff will be permitted to provide client
services without regard to race, color, or national origin.

a. Medical, paramedical, or the professional
persons, whether engaged in contractual or consultative
capacities, will be selected and employed in a
nondiscriminatory manner.

b. Opportunity for employment will not be denied
to qualified persons on the basis of race color, or national
origin.

c. Dismissal from employment will not be based
upon race, color, or national origin.

B. Rehabilitation Act of 1973—Section 504. Facilities
will comply with Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of
1973 that states: "No qualified person shall, on the basis of
handicap, be excluded from participation in, be denied the
benefits of, or otherwise be subjected to discrimination
under any program or activity which receives or benefits
from federal financial assistance."

C. Age Discrimination Act of 1975. This Act prohibits
discrimination on the basis of age in programs or activities
receiving federal financial assistance. All ICF/MRs must be
in compliance with this Act.

D. Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990. All ICF/MR
facilities must be in compliance with this Act.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
46:153, R.S. 28.390, 42 CFR 483.420 and 483.410 (1), (2), (3),
Title XIX of the Social Security Act, Section 601 of Title VI of the
Civil Rights Act of 1964; Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of
1973; and Age Discrimination Act of 1975.

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Health and Human Resources, Office of Family Security, LR
13:578 (October 1987), amended by the Department of Health and
Hospitals, Office of the Secretary, Bureau of Health Services
Financing, LR 25:694 (April 1999), repromulgated LR 31:2242
(September 2005).

§31507. Client Rights

A. The facility must comply with 42 CFR 483.420 and
with the provisions below.

1. Each client must:
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a. be fully informed by a physician of his health and
medical condition unless the physician decides that
informing the client is medically contraindicated;

b. be given the opportunity to participate in
planning his total care and medical treatment;

c. be given the opportunity to refuse treatment; and

d. give informed, written consent before
participating in experimental research.

2. If the physician decides that informing the client of
his health and medical condition is medically
contraindicated, he must document this decision in the
client's record.

3. Each client must be transferred or discharged only
in accordance with the discharge plans in the IHP (see
Chapter 311, Health Services).

4. Each client must be:

a. encouraged and assisted to exercise his rights as a
client of the facility and as a citizen; and

b. allowed to submit complaints or
recommendations concerning the policies and services of the
ICF/MR to staff or to outside representatives of the client's
choice or both, free from restraining, interference, coercion,
discrimination, or reprisal. This includes the right to due
process.

5. Each client must be allowed to manage his personal
financial affairs and taught to do so to the extent of
individual capability. If a client requested assistance from
the facility in managing his personal financial affairs:

a. the request must be in writing; and

b. the facility must comply with the record keeping
requirements of Chapter 307, Subchapters A and B, Client
Records and Facility Records.

6. Freedom from Abuse and Restraints

a. Each client must be free from physical, verbal,
sexual or psychological abuse or punishment.

b. Each client must be free from chemical and
physical restraints unless the restraints are used in
accordance with §31303, Interventions to Manage
Inappropriate Client Behavior.

7. Privacy

a. Each client must be treated with consideration,
respect, and full recognition of his dignity and individuality.

b. Each client must be given privacy during
treatment and care of personal needs.

c. Each client's records, including information in an
automatic data base, must be treated confidentially.

d. Each client must give written consent before the
facility may release information from his record to someone
not otherwise authorized by law to receive it.

e. A married client must be given privacy during
visits by his spouse.

NOTE: If both husband and wife are residents of the facility,
they must be permitted to share a room.

8. No client may be required to perform services for
the facility. Those clients who by choice work for the facility
must be compensated for their efforts at prevailing wages
and commensurate with their abilities.

9. Each client must be allowed to:

a. communicate, associate, and meet privately with
individuals of his choice, unless this infringes on the rights
of another client;

b. send and receive personal mail unopened; and
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c. have access to telephones with privacy for
incoming and outgoing local and long distance calls except
as contraindicated by factors identified within his individual
program plan.

10. Each client must be allowed to participate in social,
religious, and community group activities.

11. Each client must be allowed to retain and use his
personal possessions and clothing as space permits.

12. Each client may be allowed burial insurance
policy(s). The facility administrator or designee, with the
client's permission, may assist the resident in acquiring a
burial policy, provided that the administrator, designee, or
affiliated persons derive no financial or other benefit from
the resident's acquisition of the policy.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
36:254, Title XIX of the Social Security Act, and 42 CFR 483.420.

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Health and Human Resources, Office of Family Security, LR
13:578 (October 1987), amended by the Department of Health and
Hospitals, Office of the Secretary, Bureau of Health Services
Financing, LR 25:694 (April 1999), repromulgated LR 31:2243
(September 2005).

§31509. Violation of Rights

A. A person who submits or reports a complaint
concerning a suspected violation of a client's rights or
concerning services or conditions in an ICF/MR or who
testifies in any administrative or judicial proceedings arising
from such complaints will have immunity from any criminal
or civil liability therefore, unless that person has acted in bad
faith with malicious purpose, or if the court finds that there
was an absence of a justifiable issue of either law or fact by
the complaining party.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
36:254, Title XIX of the Social Security Act, and 42 CFR 483.420.

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Health and Human Resources, Office of Family Security, LR
13:578 (October 1987), amended by the Department of Health and
Hospitals, Office of the Secretary, Bureau of Health Services
Financing, LR 25:694 (April 1999), repromulgated LR 31:2244
(September 2005).

Chapter 317. Complaints
§31701. Purpose and Scope

A. Under the provisions of R.S. 40:2009.13-40:2009.20
and 14:4032 federal regulation 42 CFR 483.405, 483.420,
483.440 and the state Operations Manual published by the
Department of Health and Hospitals and Health Care
Financing Administration, the following procedures are
established for receiving, evaluating, investigating, and
correcting grievances concerning client care in ICF/MR
licensed and certified ICF/MR facilities. The procedures in
this Chapter 317 also provide mandatory reporting of abuse
and neglect in ICF/MR facilities.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
36:254, R.S. 40:2009.13, R.S. 40:2009.20, R.S. 14:4032, Title XIX
of the Social Security Act, 42 CFR 483.405, 483.420, and 483.440.

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Health and Human Resources, Office of Family Security, LR
13:578 (October 1987), amended by the Department of Health and
Hospitals, Office of the Secretary, Bureau of Health Services
Financing, LR 25:696 (April 1999), repromulgated LR 31:2244
(September 2005).

§31703. Applicability

A. Any person having knowledge of the alleged abuse or
neglect of a client or knowledge of a client being denied care
and treatment may submit a complaint, preferably in writing.
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B. Any person may submit a complaint if he/she has
knowledge that a state law, standard, rule, correction order,
or certification rule issued by the Department of Health and
Hospitals has been violated.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
36:254, R.S. 40:2009.13, R.S. 40:2009.20, R.S. 14:4032, Title XIX
of the Social Security Act, 42 CFR 483.405, 483.420, and 483.440.

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Health and Human Resources, Office of Family Security, LR
13:578 (October 1987), amended by the Department of Health and
Hospitals, Office of the Secretary, Bureau of Health Services
Financing, LR 25:696 (April 1999), repromulgated LR 31:2244
(September 2005).

§31705. Duty to Report

A. All incidents or allegations of abuse and/or neglect
must be reported by telephone or fax within 24 hours to
DHH's Health Standards Section. This must be followed by a
copy of the results of the facility's internal investigation
within five working days. Complete investigative reports
with all pertinent documents shall be maintained at the
facility. Failure to submit this information timely could
result in a deficiency and/or a sanction. Those who must
make a report of abuse and/or neglect are:

1. physicians or other allied health professionals;
social services personnel;
facility administration;
psychological or psychiatric treatment personnel;
registered nurses;
licensed practical nurses; and
. direct care staff.

B. Penalties for Failure to Make Complaint. Any person
who knowingly and willfully fails to report an abuse or
neglect situation shall be fined not more than $500 or
imprisoned not more than two months or both. The same
sanctions shall apply to an individual who knowingly and
willingly files a false report. Penalties for committing cruelty
or negligent mistreatment to a resident of a health care
facility shall be not more than $10,000 or imprisoning with
or without hard labor for more than 10 years, or both.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
36:254, R.S. 40:2009.13, R.S. 40:2009.20, R.S. 14:4032, Title XIX
of the Social Security Act, 42 CFR 483.405, 483.420, and 483.440.

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Health and Human Resources, Office of Family Security, LR
13:578 (October 1987), amended by the Department of Health and
Hospitals, Office of the Secretary, Bureau of Health Services
Financing, LR 25:696 (April 1999), repromulgated LR 31:2244
(September 2005).

§31707. Where to Submit Complaint

A. A complaint can be filed as follows:

1. it may be submitted in writing to the Health
Standards Section at Box 3767, Baton Rouge, LA
70821-3767; or

2. it may be made by calling Health Standards Section
at 1-888-810-1819, or (225) 342-0082, and the FAX number
(225) 342-5292;

3. in addition, it may be submitted to any local law
enforcement agency.

B. DHH's Referral of Complaints for Investigation

1. Complaints involving clients of ICF/MRs received
by DHH shall be referred to the Health Standards Section.

2. If it has been determined that complaints involving
alleged violations of any criminal law concerning a facility
are valid, the investigating office of DHH shall furnish
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copies of the complaints for further investigation to the
Office of the Attorney General, Medicaid Fraud Control
Unit.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
36:254, R.S. 40:2009.13, R.S. 40:2009.20, R.S. 14:4032, Title XIX
of the Social Security Act, 42 CFR 483.405, 483.420, and 483.440.

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Health and Human Resources, Office of Family Security, LR
13:578 (October 1987), amended by the Department of Health and
Hospitals, Office of the Secretary, Bureau of Health Services
Financing, LR 25:696 (April 1999), repromulgated LR 31:2244
(September 2005).

§31709. Disposition of Complaints

A. After the investigation DHH may take any of the
following actions.

1. Valid Complaint with Deficiencies Written. The
Department of Health and Hospitals shall notify the
administrator who must provide an acceptable plan of
correction as specified below.

a. If it is determined that a situation presents a
threat to the health and safety of the client, the facility shall
be required to take immediate corrective action. DHH may
certify noncompliance, revoke or suspend the license, or
impose sanctions.

b. In all other instances of violation, an expeditious
correction, not to exceed 90 days, shall be required. If the
provider is unable or unwilling to correct the violation, DHH
may take any of the actions listed in Subparagraph 1.a.

c. In cases of abuse and/or neglect, referral for
appropriate corrective action shall be made to the Office of
the Attorney General, Medicaid Fraud Control Unit.

2. Unsubstantiated Complaint. DHH shall notify the
complainant and the facility of this finding.

3. Repeat Violations. When violations continue to
exist after the corrective action was taken, the Department of
Health and Hospitals may take any of the actions listed in
Subparagraph 1.a.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
36:254, R.S. 40:2009.13, R.S. 40:2009.20, R.S. 14:4032, Title XIX
of the Social Security Act, 42 CFR 483.405, 483.420, and 483.440.

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Health and Human Resources, Office of Family Security, LR
13:578 (October 1987), amended by the Department of Health and
Hospitals, Office of the Secretary, Bureau of Health Services
Financing, LR 25:696 (April 1999), repromulgated LR 31:2245
(September 2005).

§31711. Informal Reconsideration

A. A complainant or a facility dissatisfied with any
action taken by DHH's response to the complaint
investigation may request an informal reconsideration as
provided in R.S. 40:2009.11 et seq.

B. Retaliation by ICF/MR Facility. Facilities are
prohibited from taking retaliatory action against
complainants. Persons aware of retaliatory action or threats
in this regard should contact DHH.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
36:254, R.S. 40:2009.13, R.S. 40:2009.20, R.S. 14:4032, Title XIX
of the Social Security Act, 42 CFR 483.405, 483.420, and 483.440.

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Health and Human Resources, Office of Family Security, LR
13:578 (October 1987), amended by the Department of Health and
Hospitals, Office of the Secretary, Bureau of Health Services
Financing, LR 25:696 (April 1999), repromulgated LR 31:2245
(September 2005).
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§31713. Tracking Incidents

A. For each client who is involved in an accident or
incident, an incident report shall be completed including the
name, date, time, details of accident or incident,
circumstances under which it occurred, witnesses and action
taken.

1. Incidents or accidents involving clients must be
documented in the client's record. These records should also
contain all pertinent medical information.

2. The examples listed below are not all inclusive, but
are presented to serve as a guideline to assist those facility
employees responsible for reporting incident reports.

a. Suspicious Death. Death of a client or on-duty
employee when there is suspicion of death other than by
natural causes.

b. Abuse and/or Neglect.
allegations of abuse and/or neglect.

c. Runaways. Runaways considered dangerous to
self or others.

d. Law Enforcement  Involvement. Arrest,
incarceration, or other serious involvement of residents with
law enforcement authorities.

e. Mass Transfer. The voluntary closing of a facility
or involuntary mass transfer of residents from a facility.

f.  Violence. Riot or other extreme violence.

g. Disasters. Explosions, bombings, serious fires.

h. Accidents/Injuries. Severe accidents or serious
injury involving residents or on-duty employees caused by
residents such as life threatening or possible permanent
and/or causing lasting damage.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
36:254, R.S. 40:2009.13, R.S. 40:2009.20, R.S. 14:4032, Title XIX
of the Social Security Act, 42 CFR 483.405, 483.420, and 483.440.

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Health and Human Resources, Office of Family Security, LR
13:578 (October 1987), amended by the Department of Health and
Hospitals, Office of the Secretary, Bureau of Health Services
Financing, LR 25:696 (April 1999), repromulgated LR 31:2245
(September 2005).

Chapter 319. Utilization Review
§31901. Utilization Review

A. If it is determined by HSS that continued stay is not
needed, the client's attending physician or qualified mental
retardation professional (QMRP) shall be notified within one
working day and given two working days from the
notification date to present his/her views before a final
decision on continued stay is made.

B. If the attending physician or QMRP does not present
additional information or clarification of the need for
continued stay, the decision of the utilization review (UR)
group is final.

C. If the attending physician or QMRP presents
additional information or clarification, the need for
continued stay is reviewed by the physician member(s) of
the UR group in cases involving a medical determination.

D. The decision of the UR group is the final medical
eligibility decision. Recourse for the client is to exercise
his/her appeal rights according to the Administrative
Procedure Act.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
36:254, Title XIX of the Social Security Act, and 42 CFR 456.350
through 456.438.

All incidents or
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HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Health and Human Resources, Office of Family Security, LR
13:578 (October 1987), amended by the Department of Health and
Hospitals, Office of the Secretary, Bureau of Health Services
Financing, LR 25:700 (April 1999), repromulgated LR 31:2245
(September 2005).

Chapter 321. Appeals
§32101. Administrative Appeals

A. DHH reserves the right to reject a request for Title
XIX participation, impose sanctions or terminate
participation status when an ICF/MR:

1. fails to abide by the rules promulgated by DHH;

2. fails to obtain compliance or is otherwise not in
compliance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act;

3. engages in practice not in the best interest of
Medicaid (Title XIX) clients;

4. has previously been sanctioned for violation of state
and/or federal rules; or

5. has previously been decertified from participation
as a Title XIX provider. Prior to such rejection or
termination, DHH may conduct an Informal Reconsideration
at the ICF/MR's request. The ICF/MR also has the right to
an administrative appeal pursuant to the Administrative
Procedure Act.

B. Informal Reconsideration. When an ICF/MR receives
a written notification of adverse action and a copy of the
findings upon which the decision was based, the ICF/MR
may provide written notification to BHSF/HSS within 10
calendar days of receiving the notification, and request an
Informal Reconsideration.

1. The ICF/MR may submit written documentation or
request an opportunity to present oral testimony to refute the
findings of DHH on which the adverse action is based.

2. DHH will review all oral testimony and documents
presented by the ICF/MR and, after the conclusion of the
Informal Reconsideration, will advise the ICF/MR in writing
of the results of the reconsideration which may be that:

a. the original decision has been upheld;
b. the original decision has been modified; or
c. the original decision has been reversed.

C. Evidentiary HearingCGeneral Requirements. The
ICF/MR may also request an administrative appeal. To
request such an appeal, the facility must submit their request,
in writing, within 30 days of the receipt of the adverse action
to the Bureau of Appeals, Box 4183, Baton Rouge, LA
70821-4183. The Bureau of Appeals will attempt to conduct
the hearing within 120 days of the original notice of adverse
action.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
36:254, Title XIX of the Social Security Act, and 42 CFR 431.151 -
431.154.

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Health and Human Resources, Office of Family Security, LR
13:578 (October 1987), amended by the Department of Health and
Hospitals, Office of the Secretary, Bureau of Health Services
Financing, LR 25:700 (April 1999), repromulgated LR 31:2246
(September 2005).

§32103. Notice and Appeal Procedure

A. When DHH imposes a sanction on a health care
provider, it will give the provider written notice of the
imposition. The notice will be given by certified mail and
will include the following:

1. the nature of the violation(s) and whether the
violation(s) is classified as a repeat violation;
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2. the legal authority that established the violation(s);

3. the civil fine assessed for each violation;

4. inform the administrator of the facility that the
facility has 10 days from receipt of the notice within which
to request an informal reconsideration of proposed sanction;

5. inform the administrator of the facility that the
facility has 30 days from receipt of the notice within which
to request an administrative appeal of the proposed sanction
and that the request for an informal reconsideration does not
extend the time limit for requesting an administrative appeal;
and

6. inform the administrator of the facility that the
consequences of failing to request an informal
reconsideration and/or an administrative appeal will be that
DHH's decision is final and that no further administrative or
judicial review may be had.

B. The provider may request an informal reconsideration
of DHH's decision to impose a civil fine. This request must
be written and made to DHH within 10 days of receipt of the
notice of the imposition of the fine.

1. This reconsideration will be conducted by
designated employees of DHH who did not participate in the
initial decision to recommend imposition of a sanction.

2. Oral presentation can be requested by the provider
representative, and if requested, will be made to the
designated employees.

3. Reconsideration will be made on the basis of
documents and oral presentations made by the provider to
the designated employees at the time of the reconsideration.

4. Correction of the deficient practice for which the
sanction was imposed will not be the basis of the
reconsideration.

5. The designated employees will only have the
authority to confirm, reduce or rescind the civil fine.

6. DHH will notify the provider of the results of the
reconsideration within 10 working days after the oral
presentation.

7. This process is not in lieu of the administrative
appeal and does not extend the time limits for filing an
administrative appeal.

C. The facility may request an administrative appeal. If
an administrative appeal is requested in a timely manner, the
appeal will be held as provided in the Administrative
Procedure Act (R.S. 49:950 et seq.) An appeal bond will be
posted with the Bureau of Appeals as provided in R.S.
40:2199(D) or the provider may choose to file a devolutive
appeal. A devolutive appeal means that the civil fine must be
paid in full within 10 days of filing the appeal.

D. The provider may request judicial review of the
administrative appeal decision as provided in the
Administrative Procedure Act.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
36:254 and Title XIX of the Social Security Act.

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Health and Human Resources, Office of Family Security, LR
13:578 (October 1987), amended by the Department of Health and
Hospitals, Office of the Secretary, Bureau of Health Services
Financing, LR 25:701 (April 1999), repromulgated LR 31:2246
(September 2005).

§32105. Collection of Fines

A. Fines are final when:

1. an appeal is not requested within the specified time
limits;



2. the facility admits the violations and agrees to pay
the fine; or

3. the administrative hearing affirms DHH's findings
of violations and time for seeking judicial review has
expired.

B. When civil fines become final, they will be paid in
full within 10 days of their commencement unless DHH
allows a payment schedule in light of documented financial
hardship. Arrangements with DHH for a payment schedule
must commence within 10 days of the fines becoming final.
Interest will begin to accrue at the current judicial rate on the
day the fines become final.

C. If payment of assessed fines is not received within the
prescribed time period after becoming final and the provider
is a Medicaid provider, DHH will deduct the full amount
plus the accrued interest from money otherwise due to the
provider as Medicaid reimbursement in its next (quarterly or
monthly) payment. If the provider is not a Medicaid
provider, DHH will institute civil actions as necessary to
collect fines due.

D. No provider may claim imposed fines or interest as
reimbursable costs, nor increase charges to residents, clients,
or patients as a result of such fines or interest.

E. Civil fines collected will be deposited in the Health
Care Facility Fund maintained by the state treasury.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
36:254 and Title XIX of the Social Security Act.

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Health and Human Resources, Office of Family Security, LR
13:578 (October 1987), amended by the Department of Health and
Hospitals, Office of the Secretary, Bureau of Health Services
Financing, LR 25:701 (April 1999), repromulgated LR 31:2246
(September 2005).

Chapter 323. Sanctions
§32301. Noncompliance

A. When ICF/MRs are not in compliance with the
requirements set forth in the ICF/MR Standards for
Payment, DHH may impose sanctions. Sanctions may
involve:

1. withholding of vendor payments;

2. civil fines;

3. denial of payments for new admissions; or

4. nonfinancial measures such as termination of the
ICF/MR's certification as a Title XIX provider.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
36:254 and Title XIX of the Social Security Act.

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Health and Human Resources, Office of Family Security, LR
13:578 (October 1987), amended by the Department of Health and
Hospitals, Office of the Secretary, Bureau of Health Services
Financing, LR 25:701 (April 1999) repromulgated LR 31:2247
(September 2005).

§32303. Authority

A. Public Law 95-142, dated October 25, 1977, permits
the federal government's Health Care Financing
Administration (HCFA) to impose a fine and/or
imprisonment of facility personnel for illegal admittance and
retention practices. HCFA is also authorized to terminate an
agreement with a Title XIX ICF/MR provider as a result of
deficiencies found during their surveys, which are re-
reviews of the state's surveys. Furthermore, the federal
government's Office of Inspector General (OIG) is
authorized to terminate an agreement with a Title XIX
ICF/MR provider for willful misrepresentation of financial
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facts or for not meeting professionally recognized standards
of health care.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
36:254 and Title XIX of the Social Security Act.

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Health and Human Resources, Office of Family Security, LR
13:578 (October 1987), amended by the Department of Health and
Hospitals, Office of the Secretary, Bureau of Health Services
Financing, LR 25:701 (April 1999), repromulgated LR 31:2247
(September 2005).

§32305. Special Staffing

A. When the secretary of DHH determines that
additional staffing or staff with specific qualifications would
be beneficial in correcting deficient practices, DHH may
require a facility to hire additional staff on a full-time or
consultant basis until the deficient practices have been
corrected. This provision may be invoked in concert with, or
instead of, the sanctions cited in §32307.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
36:254 and Title XIX of the Social Security Act.

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Health and Human Resources, Office of Family Security, LR
13:578 (October 1987), amended by the Department of Health and
Hospitals, Office of the Secretary, Bureau of Health Services
Financing, LR 25:701 (April 1999), repromulgated LR 31:2247
(September 2005).

§32307. Withholding of Vendor Payments

A. Withholding of Vendor Payments. DHH may
withhold vendor payments in whole or in part in the
following situations, which are not all inclusive.

1. Delinquent Staffing Report. When the ICF/MR
provider fails to timely submit a required, completed staffing
report. After DHH notifies the provider of the delinquent
report, vendor payment may be withheld until the completed
report is received.

2. Unapproved Staffing Shortage. When a staffing
report indicates an unapproved staffing shortage, vendor
payment may be withheld until staffing is brought into
compliance.

3. Incorrect/Inappropriate Charges. When DHH
determines that the ICF/MR provider has incorrectly or
inappropriately charged clients, families, or responsible
parties, or there has been misapplication of client funds,
vendor payment may be withheld until the provider does the
following:

a. makes restitution; and
b. submits documentation of such restitution to
BHSF's Institutional Reimbursement Section.

4. Delinquent Cost Report. When an ICF/MR provider
fails to submit a cost report within 90 days from the fiscal
year end closing date, a penalty of 5 percent of the total
monthly payment for the first month and a progressive
penalty of 5 percent of the total monthly payment for each
succeeding month may be levied and withheld from the
vendor's payment for each month that the cost report is due,
not extended, and not received. The penalty is

nonrefundable.
NOTE: DHH's Institutional Reimbursement Section may grant
a 30-day extension of the 90-day time limit, when requested
by the ICF/MR provider, if just cause has been established.
Extensions beyond 30 days may be approved for situations
beyond the ICF/MR provider's control.
5. Cost Reports Errors. Cost reports errors greater
than 10 percent in the aggregate for the ICF/MR provider for

the cost report year may result in a maximum penalty of 10
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percent of the current per diem rate for each month the cost
report errors are not correct. The penalty is nonrefundable.

6. Corrective Action for Audit Findings. Vendor
payments may be withheld when an ICF/MR facility fails to
submit corrective action in response to financial and
compliance audit findings within 15 days after receiving the
notification letter until such time compliance is achieved.

7. Failure to Respond or Adequately Respond to
Requests for Financial/Statistical Information. When an
ICF/MR facility fails to respond or adequately respond to
requests from DHH for financial and statistical information
within 15 days after receiving the notification letter, vendor
payments may be withheld until such time the requested
information is received.

8. Insufficient Medical Recertification. When an
ICF/MR provider fails to secure recertification of a client's
need for care and services, the vendor's payment for that
individual may be withheld or recouped until compliance is
achieved.

9. Inadequate Review/Revision of Plan of Care (IHP).
When an ICF/MR provider repeatedly fails to ensure that an
adequate plan of care for a client is reviewed and revised at
least at required intervals, the vendor's payment may be
withheld or recouped until compliance is achieved.

10. Failure to Submit Response to Survey Reports.
When an ICF/MR provider fails to submit an acceptable
response within 30 days after receiving a survey report from
DHH, HCFA, OIG and the legislative auditor, vendor
payments may be withheld until an adequate response is
received, unless the appropriate agency extends the time
limit.

11. Corrective Action on Complaints. When an
ICF/MR fails to submit an adequate corrective action plan in
response to a complaint within seven days after receiving the
complaint report, vendor payments may be withheld until an
adequate corrective action plan is received, unless the time
limit is extended by the DHH.

12. Delinquent Utilization Data Requests. Facilities
will be required to timely submit utilization data requested
by the DHH. Providers will be given written notice when
such utilization data has not been received by the due date.
Such notice will advise the provider of the date the
utilization data must be received by to avoid withholding of
vendor payments. The due date will never be less than 10
days from the date the notice is mailed to the provider. If the
utilization data is not received by the due date provided in
the notice, the medical vendor's payment will be withheld
until the utilization data is received.

13. Termination or Withdrawal from the Medicaid
Program. When a provider is terminated or withdraws from
the Medicaid Program, vendor payment will be withheld
until all programmatic and financial issues are resolved.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
36:254 and Title XIX of the Social Security Act.

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Health and Human Resources, Office of Family Security, LR
13:578 (October 1987), amended by the Department of Health and
Hospitals, Office of the Secretary, Bureau of Health Services
Financing, LR 25:701 (April 1999), repromulgated LR 31:2247
(September 2005).
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§32309. Civil Fines

A. Louisiana R.S. 40:2199 authorized DHH to impose
monetary sanctions on those health care facilities found to be
out of compliance with any state or federal law or rule
concerning the operation and services of the health care
provider.

1. Any ICF/MR found to be in violation of any state
or federal statute, regulation, or any Department of Health
and Hospitals (DHH) rule adopted pursuant to the Act
governing the administration and operation of the facility
may be sanctioned as provided in the schedule of fines listed
under Paragraph 2 below.

a. A repeat violation is defined as a violation of a
similar nature as a previously cited violation that occurs
within 18 months of the previously cited violation. DHH has
the authority to determine when a violation is a repeat
violation.

b. The opening or operation of a facility without a
license or registration will be a misdemeanor, punishable
upon conviction by a fine of not less than $1,000 nor more
than $5,000.

i. Each day's violations will constitute a separate
offense.

ii. On learning of such an operation, DHH will
refer the facility to the appropriate authorities for
prosecution.

c. Any ICF/MR found to have a violation that poses
a threat to the health, safety, rights, or welfare of a resident
or client may be liable for civil fines in addition to any
criminal action that may be brought under other applicable
laws.

B. Description of Violations and Applicable Civil Fines

1. Class A Violations

a. A Class A violation is a violation of a rule that
creates a condition or occurrence relating to the maintenance
or operation of a facility that results in death or serious harm
to a resident or client. Examples of Class A violations
include, but are not limited to:

1. acts or omissions by an employee or employees
of a facility that either knowingly or negligently resulted in
the death of a resident or client; and

ii. acts or omissions by an employee or employees
of a facility that either knowingly or negligently resulted in
serious harm to a resident or client.

b. Civil fines for Class A violations may not exceed:

i.  $2,500 for the first violation; or

ii.  $5,000 per day for repeat violations.

2. Class B Violations

a. A Class B violation is a violation of a rule in
which a condition or occurrence relating to the maintenance
or operation of a facility is created that results in the
substantial probability that death or serious harm to the
client or resident will result if the condition or occurrence
remains uncorrected. Examples of Class B violations
include, but are not limited to, the following:

i. medications or  treatments
administered or withheld;

ii. lack of functioning equipment necessary to
care for clients;

improperly



iii. failure to maintain emergency equipment in
working order;
iv. failure to employ a sufficient number of
adequately trained staff to care for clients; and
v. failure to implement adequate infection control
measures.
b. Civil fines for Class B violations may not exceed:
i.  $1,500 for the first violation; or
ii.  $3,000 per day for repeat violations.
3. Class C Violations
a. A Class C violation is a violation of a rule in
which a condition or occurrence relating to the maintenance
or operation of the facility is created that threatens the
health, safety, or welfare of a client or resident. Examples of
Class C violations include, but are not limited to, the
following:
i. failure to perform treatments as ordered by the
physician;
ii. improper storage of poisonous substances;
iii. failure to notify physician and family of
changes in condition of the client or resident;
iv. failure to maintain equipment in working
order;
v. inadequate supply of needed equipment;
vi. lack of adequately trained staff necessary to
meet clients' needs; and
vii. failure to adhere to professional standards in
giving care to the client.
b. Civil fines for Class C violations may not exceed:
i.  $1,000 for the first violation;
ii.  $2,000 per day for repeat violations.
4. Class D Violations
a. Class D violations are violations of rules related
to administrative and reporting requirements that do not
threaten the health, safety, rights, or welfare of a client or
resident. Examples of Class D violations include, but are not
limited to, the following:
i. failure to submit written reports of accidents;
ii.  failure to timely submit a Plan of Correction;
ii.  falsification of a record; and
iv. failure to maintain clients financial records as
required by rules or regulations.
b. Civil fines for Class D violations may not
exceed:
i.  $100 for the first violation;
ii.  $250 per day for repeat violations.

5. Class E Violations. Class E violations occur when a
facility fails to submit a statistical or financial report in a
timely manner when such a report is required by a rule.

a. Civil fines for Class E violations may not exceed:
i.  $50 for the first violation;
ii. $100 per day for repeat violations.
C. Maximum Amount for a Civil Fine

1. The aggregate fines assessed for violations
determined in any one month may not exceed $10,000 for a
Class A and Class B violations.

2. The aggregate fines assessed Class C, Class D, and
Class E violations determined in any one month may not
exceed $5,000.
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D. DHH will have the authority to determine whether a
violation is a repeat violation and sanction the provider
accordingly. Violations may be considered repeat violations
by DHH when the following conditions exist:

1. when DHH has established the existence of a
violation as of a particular date and the violation is one that
may be reasonably expected to continue until corrective
action is taken, DHH may elect to treat said continuing
violation as a repeat violation subject to appropriate fines for
each day following the date on which the initial violation is
established, until such time as there is evidence that the
violation has been corrected; or

2. when DHH has established the existence of a
violation and another violation that is the same or
substantially similar to the cited violation occurs within 18
months, the second and all similar subsequent violations
occurring within the 18-month time period will be
considered repeat violations and sanctioned accordingly.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
36:254 and Title XIX of the Social Security Act.

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Health and Human Resources, Office of Family Security, LR
13:578 (October 1987), amended by the Department of Health and
Hospitals, Office of the Secretary, Bureau of Health Services
Financing, LR 25:701 (April 1999), repromulgated LR 31:2248
(September 2005).

Chapter 325. Decertification
§32501. Termination of Certification

A. An ICF/MR may voluntarily or involuntarily lose its
participating status in the Medical Assistance Program.

B. Reasons for Decertification of an ICF/MR

1. The ICF/MR may voluntarily withdraw from the
program for reasons of its own. The owner and administrator
will submit a written notice of withdrawal to the DHH's HSS
at least 60 days in advance.

2. A new owner may decide against participation in
the program. A written 60-day notice of withdrawal will be
submitted to DHH's HSS.

3. DHH may decertify an ICF/MR for failure to
comply with Title XIX standards, thus canceling the
facility's provider agreement.

4. DHH may decertify an ICF/MR if deficiencies pose
immediate jeopardy to the client's health, safety, rights, or
welfare.

5. The ICF/MR may allow its provider agreement to
expire. A written 60-day advance notice of withdrawal will
be submitted to the DHH's HSS.

6. DHH may cancel the provider agreement if and
when it is determined that the ICF/MR is in material breach
of the contract.

C. Recertification of an Involuntarily Decertified
ICF/MR. After involuntary decertification, an ICF/MR
cannot participate as a medical assistance provider unless the
following conditions are met:

1. the reasons for the decertification or nonrenewal of
the contract no longer exist;

2. reasonable assurance exists that the factors causing
the decertification will not recur;

3. the ICF/MR demonstrates compliance with the
required standards for a 60-day period prior to reinstatement
in a participating status; and
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4. a professional medical review reports that clients
are receiving proper care and services.

D. Denial of Payments for New Admissions

1. New Admissions. New admissions refer to the
admission of a person who has never been a Title XIX client
in the ICF/MR or, if previously admitted, had been
discharged or had voluntarily left the ICF/MR. This term
does not include the following:

a. individuals who were in the ICF/MR before the
effective date of denial of payment for new admissions, even
if they become eligible for Title XIX after that date;

b. individuals who, after a temporary absence from
the ICF/MR, are readmitted to beds reserved for them in
accordance with the admission process.

2. Basis for Denial of Payment. DHH may deny
payment for new admissions to an ICF/MR that no longer
meets applicable requirements as specified in these
standards.

a. ICF/MR's deficiencies do not pose immediate
jeopardy (serious threat). If DHH finds that the ICF/MR's
deficiencies do not pose immediate jeopardy to clients'
health, safety, rights, or welfare, DHH may either terminate
the ICF/MRs provider agreement or deny payment for new
admissions.

b. ICF/MR's deficiencies do pose immediate
jeopardy (serious threat). If DHH finds that the ICF/MR's
deficiencies do pose immediate jeopardy to clients' health,
safety, rights, or welfare, and thereby terminates the
ICF/MR's provider agreement, DHH may additionally seek
to impose the denial of payment for new admissions.

3. DHH Procedures. Before denying payments for
new admissions, DHH will be responsible for the following:

a. providing the ICF/MR a time frame of up to 60
days to correct the cited deficiencies and comply with the
standards for ICF/MRs;

b. giving the ICF/MR notice of the intent to deny
payment for new admissions and an opportunity to request
an Informal Reconsideration if the facility has not achieved
compliance at the end of the 60-day period;

c. providing an informal hearing if requested by the
ICF/MR that included the following:

i. giving the ICF/MR the opportunity to present
before a state Medicaid official not involved in the initial
determination, evidence or documentation, in writing or in
person, to refute the decision that the ICF/MR is out of
compliance with the applicable standards for participation;
and

ii. submitting a written decision setting forth the
factual and legal basis pertinent to a resolution of the
dispute.

d. providing the facility and the public at least 15
days advance notice of the effective date of the sanction and
reasons for the denial of payments for new admissions
should the informal hearing decision be adverse to the
ICF/MR.

4. Duration of Denial of Payments and Subsequent
Termination

a. Period of Denial. The denial of payments for new
admissions will continue for 11 months after the month it
was imposed unless, before the end of that period, DHH
determines:
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i. the ICF/MR has corrected the deficiencies or is
making a good faith effort to achieve compliance with the
standards for ICF/MR participation; or

ii. the deficiencies are such that it is now
necessary to terminate the ICF/MR's provider agreement.

b. Subsequent Termination. DHH must terminate an
ICF/MR's provider agreement under the following
conditions:

i. upon finding that the ICF/MR has been unable
to achieve compliance with the standards for participation
during the period that payments for new admissions had
been denied;

ii. effective the day following the last day of the
denial of payments;

iii.  in accordance with the procedures for appeal of
termination set forth in Chapter 321, Appeals.

E. Examples of Situations Determined to Pose
Immediate Jeopardy (Serious Threat). Listed below are some
examples of situations determined to pose immediate
jeopardy (serious threat) to the health, safety, rights, and
welfare of clients in ICF/MR. These examples are not
intended to be all inclusive. Other situations adversely
affecting clients could constitute sufficient basis for the
imposition of sanctions.

1. Poisonous Substances. An ICF/MR fails to provide
proper storage of poisonous substances, and this failure
results in death of or serious injury to a client or directly
threatens the health, safety, or welfare of a client.

2. Falls. An ICF/MR fails to maintain required direct
care staffing and/or a safe environment as set forth in the
regulations, and this failure directly causes a client to fall
resulting in death or serious injury or directly threatens the
health, safety, or welfare of a client. Examples:

a. equipment not properly maintained; or

b. personnel not responding to a client's request for
assistance.

3. Assaults

a. By Other Clients. An ICF/MR fails to maintain
required direct care staffing and fails to take measures when
it is known that a client is combative and assaultive with
other clients, and this failure causes an assault upon another
client, resulting in death or serious injury or directly
threatens the health, safety, and welfare of another client.

b. By Staff. An ICF/MR fails to take corrective
action (termination, legal action) against an employee who
has a history of client abuse and assaults a client causing
death or the situation directly threatens the health, safety,
and welfare of a client.

4. Physical Restraints Resulting in Permanent Injury.
ICF/MR personnel improperly apply physical restraints
contrary to published regulations or fail to check and release
restraints as directed by regulations or physician's written
instructions, and such failure results in permanent injury to a
client's extremity or death or directly threatens the health,
safety and welfare of a client.

5. Control of Infections. An ICF/MR fails to follow or
meet infection control standards as ordered in writing by the
physician, and this failure results in infections leading to the
death of or serious injury to a client or directly threatens the
health, safety, and welfare of a client.



6. Medical Care

a. An ICF/MR fails to secure proper medical
assistance for a client, and this failure results in the death of
or serious injury to the client.

b. A client's condition declined and no physician
was informed, and this failure directly threatens the health,
safety, or welfare of the client. This would also include the
following:

i. failure to follow up on unusual occurrences of
negative findings;
ii. failure to obtain information regarding
appropriate care before and after a client's hospitalization;
iii.  failure to timely hospitalize a client during a
serious illness.

c. ICF/MR personnel have not followed written
physician's orders, and this failure directly threatens the
health, safety, or welfare of a client. This includes failure to
fill prescriptions timely.

7. Natural Disaster/Fire. An ICF/MR fails to train its
staff members in disaster/fire procedures as required by state
rules for licensing of ICF/MRs or an ICF/MR fails to meet
staffing requirements, and such failures result in the death of
or serious injury to a client during natural disaster, fire or
directly threatens the health, safety, or welfare of a client.

8. Decubitus Ulcers (Bed Sores). An ICF/MR fails to
follow decubitus ulcer care measures in accordance with a
physician's written orders, and such failure results in the
death of, serious injury to, or discomfort of the client or
directly threatens the health, safety, and welfare of a client.

9. Elopement. An ICF/MR fails to provide necessary
supervision of its clients or take measures to prevent a client
with a history of elopement problems from wandering away
and such failure results in the death of or serious harm to the
client or directly threatens the health, safety, and welfare of
the client. Examples of preventive measures include, but are
not limited to:

a. documentation that the elopement problem has
been discussed with the client's family and the
Interdisciplinary Team; and

b. that personnel have been trained to make
additional efforts to monitor these clients.

10. Medications

a. An ICF/MR knowingly withholds a client's
medications and such actions results in the death of or
serious harm to the client or directly threatens the health,

safety, and welfare of the client;
NOTE: The client does have the right to refuse medications.
Such refusal must be documented in the client's record and
brought to the attention of the physician and ID team.

b. medication omitted without justification;

c. excessive medication errors;

d. improper storage of narcotics or other prescribed
drugs, mishandling of drugs or other pharmaceutical
problems.

11. Environment/Temperature. An ICF/MR fails to
reasonably maintain its heating and air-conditioning system
as required by regulations, and this failure results in the
death of, serious harm to, or discomfort of a client or creates
the possibility of death or serious injury. Isolated incidents
of breakdown or power failure will not be considered
immediate jeopardy.
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12. Improper Treatments
a. ICF/MR personnel knowingly perform treatment
contrary to a physician's order, and such treatment results in
the death of or serious injury to the client or directly
threatens the health, safety, and welfare of the client.
b. An ICF/MR fails to feed clients who are unable

to feed themselves as set forth in physician's instructions.
NOTE: Meals should be served at the required temperature.

c. An ICF/MR fails to obtain a physician's order for
use of chemical or physical restraints; the improper
application of a physical restraint; or failure of facility
personnel to check and release the restraints periodically as
specified in state regulations.

13. Life Safety. An ICF/MR knowingly fails to
maintain the required Life Safety Code System such as:

a. properly functioning sprinklers, fire alarms,
smoke sensors, fire doors, electrical wiring;

b. the practice of fire or emergency evacuation
plans; or

c. stairways, hallways and exits free from
obstruction; and noncompliance with these requirements
results in the death of or serious injury to a client or directly
threatens the health, safety, and welfare of a client.

14. Staffing. An ICF/MR consistently fails to maintain
minimum staffing that directly threatens the health, safety, or
welfare of a client. Isolated incidents where the facility does
not maintain staffing due to personnel calling in sick or other
emergencies are excluded.

15. Dietary Services. An ICF/MR fails to follow the
minimum dietary needs or special dietary needs as ordered
by a physician, and failure to meet these dietary needs
threatens the health, safety or welfare of a client. The special
diets must be prepared in accordance with physician's orders
or a diet manual approved by the American Dietary
Association.

16. Sanitation. An ICF/MR fails to maintain state and
federal sanitation regulations, and those violations directly
affect and threaten the health, safety, or welfare of a client.
Examples are:

a. strong odors linked to a lack of cleanliness;

b. dirty buildup on floors and walls;

c. dirty utensils, glasses and flatware;

d. insect or rodent infestation.

17. Equipment and Supplies. An ICF/MR fails to
provide equipment and supplies authorized in writing by a
physician as necessary for a client's care, and this failure
directly threatens the health, safety, welfare or comfort of a
client.

18. Client Rights

a. An ICF/MR violates its clients' rights and such
violations result in the clients' distress to such an extent that
their psychosocial functions are impaired or such violations
directly threaten their psychosocial functioning. This
includes psychological abuse.

b. The ICF/MR permits the use of corporal
punishment.

c. The ICF/MR allows the following responses to
clients by staff members and employment supervisors:

i. physical exercise or repeated physical motions;
ii. excessive denial of usual services;
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iii. any type of physical hitting or other painful
physical contacts except as required by medical, dental, or
first aid procedures necessary to preserve the individual's life
or health;

iv. requiring the individual to take on an extremely
uncomfortable position;

v. verbal abuse, ridicule, or humiliation;

vi. requiring the individual to remain silent for a
long period of time;

vii. denial of shelter, warmth, clothing or bedding;
or

viii.  assignment of harsh physical work.

d. The ICF/MR fails to afford the client with the
opportunity to attend religious services.

e. The ICF/MR denies the client the right to bring
his or her personal belongings to the program, to have
access, and to acquire belongings in accordance with the
service plan.

f. The ICF/MR denies a client a meal without a
doctor's order.

g. The ICF/MR does not afford the client with
suitable supervised opportunities for interaction with
members of the opposite sex, except where a qualified
professional responsible for the formulation of a particular
individual's treatment/habilitation plan writes an order to the
contrary and explains the reasons.

NOTE: The secretary of DHH has the final authority to
determine what constitutes "immediate jeopardy" or serious
threat.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
36:254, Title XIX of the Social Security Act, and 42 CFR 442.12-
442.117.

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Health and Human Resources, Office of Family Security, LR
13:578 (October 1987), amended by the Department of Health and
Hospitals, Office of the Secretary, Bureau of Health Services
Financing, LR 25:701 (Apri 1999), repromulgated LR 31:2249
(September 2005).

Chapter 327. Emergency Awareness
§32701. Disaster Preparedness

A. Written Plans. ICFs/MR shall have written procedures
complete with instructions to be followed in the event of an
internal or external disaster such as fire or other emergency
actions, including:

1. specifications of evacuation routes and procedures;

2. instructions for the care of injuries and/or casualties
(client and personnel) arising from such disaster;

3. procedures for the prompt transfer of records;

4. instructions regarding methods of containing fire;
and

5. procedures for notification of appropriate persons.

B. Employee Training. All ICF/MR employees shall be
trained in disaster preparedness as part of employment
orientation. The disaster preparedness training shall include
orientation, ongoing training, and drills for all personnel.
The purpose shall be that each employee promptly and
correctly carry out his/her specific role in the event of a
disaster. The facility shall periodically rehearse these
procedures for disaster preparedness. The minimum
requirements shall be drills once each quarter for each shift.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
36:254 and Title XIX of the Social Security Act.
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HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Health and Hospitals, Office of the Secretary, Bureau of Health
Services Financing, LR 30:1702 (August 2004), repromulgated LR
31:2252 (September 2005)..

Chapter 329. Reimbursement
Subchapter A. Reimbursement Methodology
§32901. Cost Reports

A. Intermediate Care Facilities for the Mentally Retarded
(ICFs-MR) are required to file annual cost reports to the
bureau in accordance with the following instructions.

1. Each ICF-MR is required to report all reasonable
and allowable costs on a regular facility cost report including
any supplemental schedules designated by the bureau.

2. Separate cost reports must be submitted by
central/home offices and habilitation programs when costs of
those entities are reported on the facility cost report.

B. Cost reports must be prepared in accordance with cost
reporting instructions adopted by the bureau using
definitions of allowable and nonallowable cost contained in
the Medicare provider reimbursement manual unless other
definitions of allowable and nonallowable cost are adopted
by the bureau.

1. Each provider shall submit an annual cost report for
fiscal year ending June 30. The cost reports shall be filed
within 90 days after the state's fiscal year ends.

2. Exceptions. Limited exceptions for extensions to
the cost report filing requirements will be considered on an
individual facility basis upon written request by the provider
to the Medicaid director or designee. Providers must attach a
statement describing fully the nature of the exception
request. The extension must be requested by the normal due
date of the cost report.

C. Direct Care Floor

1. A facility wide direct care floor may be enforced
upon deficiencies related to direct care staffing requirements
noted during the HSS annual review or during a complaint
investigation in accordance with LAC 50:1.5501 et seq.

2. For providers receiving pervasive  plus
supplements, the facility wide direct care floor is established
at 94 percent of the per diem direct care payment and the
pervasive plus supplement. The direct care floor will be
applied to the cost reporting year in which the facility
receives a pervasive plus supplement. In no case, however,
shall a facility receiving a pervasive plus supplement have
total facility payments reduced to less than 104 percent of
the total facility cost as a result of imposition of the direct
care floor.

3. For facilities for which the direct care floor applies,
if the direct care cost the facility incurred on a per diem
basis is less than the appropriate facility direct care floor, the
facility shall remit to the bureau the difference between these
two amounts times the number of facility Medicaid days
paid during the cost reporting period. This remittance shall
be payable to the bureau upon submission of the cost report.

4. Upon completion of desk reviews or audits,
facilities will be notified by the bureau of any changes in
amounts due based on audit or desk review adjustments.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
36:254 and Title XIX of the Social Security Act.

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Health and Hospitals, Office of the Secretary, Bureau of Health
Services Financing, LR 31:1592 (July 2005), repromulgated LR
31:2252 (September 2005).



§32903. Rate Determination

A. Resident per diem rates are calculated based on
information reported on the cost report. ICFs-MR will
receive a rate for each resident. The rates are based on cost
components appropriate for an economic and efficient ICF-
MR providing quality service. The resident per diem rates
represent the best judgment of the state to provide
reasonable and adequate reimbursement required to cover
the costs of economic and efficient ICFs-MR.

B. The cost data used in setting base rates will be from
the latest available audited or desk reviewed cost reports.
The initial rates will be adjusted to maintain budget
neutrality upon transition to the ICAP reimbursement
methodology. For rate periods between rebasing, the rates
will be trended forward using the index factor contingent
upon appropriation by the legislature.

C. For dates of service on or after August 1, 2005, a
resident's per diem rate will be the sum of:

1. direct care per diem rate;

2. care related per diem rate;
3. administrative and operating per diem rate;
4. capital rate; and
5. provider fee.
D. Determination of Rate Components

1. The direct care per diem rate shall be a set
percentage over the median adjusted for the acuity of the
resident based on the ICAP, tier based on peer group. The
direct care per diem rate shall be determined as follows.

a. Median Cost. The direct care per diem median
cost for each ICF-MR is determined by dividing the facility's
total direct care costs reported on the cost report by the
facility's total days during the cost reporting period. Direct
care costs for providers in each peer group are arrayed from
low to high and the median (50th percentile) cost is
determined for each peer group.

b. Median Adjustment. The direct care component
shall be adjusted to 105 percent of the direct care per diem
median cost in order to achieve reasonable access to care.

c. Inflationary Factor. These costs shall be trended
forward from the midpoint of the cost report period to the
midpoint of the rate year using the index factor.

d. Acuity Factor. Each of the ICAP levels will have
a corresponding acuity factor. The median cost by peer
group, after adjustments, shall be further adjusted by the
acuity factor (or multiplier) as follows.

ICAP Acuity Factor
Support Level (Multiplier)
Pervasive 1.35
Extensive 1.17
Limited 1.00
Intermittent .90

2. The care related per diem rate shall be a statewide
price at a set percentage over the median and shall be
determined as follows.

a. Median Cost. The care related per diem median
cost for each ICF-MR is determined by dividing the facility's
total care related costs reported on the cost report by the
facility's actual total resident days during the cost reporting
period. Care related costs for all providers are arrayed from
low to high and the median (50th percentile) cost is
determined.
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b. Median Adjustment. The care related component
shall be adjusted to 105 percent of the care related per diem
median cost in order to achieve reasonable access to care.

c. Inflationary Factor. These costs shall be trended
forward from the midpoint of the cost report period to the
midpoint of the rate year using the index factor.

3. The administrative and operating per diem rate
shall be a statewide price at a set percentage over the
median, tier based on peer group. The administrative and
operating component shall be determined as follows.

a. Median Cost. The administrative and operating
per diem median cost for each ICF-MR is determined by
dividing the facility's total administrative and operating costs
reported on the cost report by the facility's actual total
resident days during the cost reporting period.
Administrative and operating costs for all providers are
arrayed from low to high and the median (50th percentile)
cost is determined.

b. Median Adjustment. The administrative and
operating component shall be adjusted to 103 percent of the
administrative and operating per diem median cost in order
to achieve reasonable access to care.

c. Inflationary Factor. These costs shall be trended
forward from the midpoint of the cost report period to the
midpoint of the rate year using the index factor.

4. The capital per diem rate shall be a statewide price
at a set percentage over the median, tier based on peer group.
The capital per diem rate shall be determined as follows.

a. Median Cost. The capital per diem median cost
for each ICF-MR is determined by dividing the facility's
total capital costs reported on the cost report by the facility's
actual total resident days during the cost reporting period.
Capital costs for providers of each peer group are arrayed
from low to high and the median (50th percentile) cost is
determined for each peer group.

b. Median Adjustment. The capital cost component
shall be adjusted to 103 percent of the capital per diem
median cost in order to achieve reasonable access to care.

c. Inflationary Factor. Capital costs shall not be
trended forward.

d. The provider fee shall be calculated by the
department in accordance with state and federal rules.

E. The rates for the 1-8 bed peer group shall be set based
on costs in accordance with §32903.B-D.4.d. The
reimbursement rates for peer groups of larger facilities will
also be set in accordance with §32903.B-D.4.d; however, the
rates will be limited as follows.

1. The 9-15 peer group reimbursement rates will be
limited to 95 percent of the 1-8 bed peer group
reimbursement rates.

2. The 16-32 bed peer group reimbursement rates will
be limited to 95 percent of the 9-15 bed peer group
reimbursement rates.

3. The 33 and greater bed peer group reimbursement
rates will be set in accordance with §32903.B-D.4.d, limited
to 95 percent of the 16-32 bed peer group reimbursement
rates.

F. Rebasing of rates will occur at least every three years
utilizing the most recent audited and/or desk reviewed cost
reports.

G. Adjustments to the Medicaid daily rate may be made
when changes occur that eventually will be recognized in
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updated cost report data (such as a change in the minimum
wage or FICA rates). These adjustments would be effective
until such time as the data base used to calculate rates fully
reflect the change. Adjustments to rates may also be made
when legislative appropriations would increase or decrease
the rates calculated in accordance with this rule. The
secretary of the Department of Health and Hospitals makes
the final determination as to the amount and when
adjustments to rates are warranted.

H. A facility requesting a pervasive plus rate supplement
shall bear the burden of proof in establishing the facts and
circumstances necessary to support the supplement in a
format and with supporting documentation specified by the
DHH ICAP Review Committee.

1. The DHH ICAP Review Committee shall make a
determination of the most appropriate staff required to
provide requested supplemental services.

2. The amount of the Pervasive Plus supplement shall
be calculated using the Louisiana Civil Service pay grid for
the appropriate position as determined by the DHH ICAP
Review Committee and shall be the 25th percentile salary
level plus 20 percent for related benefits times the number of
hours approved.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
36:254 and Title XIX of the Social Security Act.

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Health and Hospitals, Office of the Secretary, Bureau of Health
Services Financing, LR 31:1592 (July 2005), repromulgated LR
31:2253 (September 2005).

§32905. ICAP Requirements

A. An ICAP must be completed for each recipient of
ICF-MR services upon admission and while residing in an
ICF-MR in accordance with departmental regulations.

B. Providers must keep a copy of the recipient's current
ICAP protocol and computer scored summary sheets in the
recipient's file. If a recipient has changed ICAP service level,
providers must also keep a copy of the recipient's ICAP
protocol and computer scored summary sheets supporting
the prior level.

C. ICAPs must reflect the resident's current level of care.

D. Providers must submit a new ICAP to the Regional
Health Standards office when the resident's condition
reflects a change in the ICAP level that indicates a change in
reimbursement.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
36:254 and Title XIX of the Social Security Act.

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Health and Hospitals, Office of the Secretary, Bureau of Health
Services Financing, LR 31:1593 (July 2005), repromulgated LR
31:2254 (September 2005).

§32907. ICAP Monitoring

A. ICAP scores and assessments will be subject to
review by DHH and its contracted agents. The reviews of
ICAP submissions include, but are not limited to:

1. reviews when statistically significant changes occur
within an ICAP submission or submissions;

2. random selections of ICAP submissions;

3. desk reviews of a sample of ICAP submissions; and

4. on-site field reviews of ICAPs.

B. ICAP Review Committee

1. Requests for Pervasive Plus must be reviewed and
approved by the DHH ICAP Review Committee.
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2. The ICAP Review Committee shall represent DHH
should a provider request an informal reconsideration
regarding the Regional Health Standards' determination.

3. The ICAP Review Committee shall make final
determination on any ICAP level of care changes prior to the
appeals process.

4. The ICAP Review Committee shall be made up of
the following:

a. the director of the Health Standards Section or
his/her appointee;

b. the director of Rate and Audit Review Section or
his/her appointee;

c. the assistant secretary for the Office for Citizens
with Developmental Disabilities or his/her appointee;

d. other persons as appointed by the secretary.

C. When an ICAP score is determined to be inaccurate,
the department shall notify the provider and request
documentation to support the level of care. If the additional
information does not support the level of care, an ICAP rate
adjustment will be made to the appropriate ICAP level
effective the first day of the month following the
determination.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
36:254 and Title XIX of the Social Security Act.

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Health and Hospitals, Office of the Secretary, Bureau of Health
Services Financing, LR 31:1594 (July 2005), repromulgated LR
31:2254 (September 2005).

§32909. Audits

A. Each ICF-MR shall file an annual facility cost report
and a central office cost report.

B. ICF-MR shall be subject to financial and compliance
audits.

C. All providers who elect to participate in the Medicaid
Program shall be subject to audit by state or federal
regulators or their designees. Audit selection for the
department shall be at the discretion of DHH.

1. A representative sample of the ICF-MR shall be
fully audited to ensure the fiscal integrity of the program and
compliance of providers with program regulations governing
reimbursement.

2. Limited scope and exception audits shall also be
conducted as determined by DHH.

3. DHH conducts desk reviews of all the cost reports
received. DHH also conducts on-site audits of provider
records and cost reports.

a. DHH seeks to maximize the number of on-site
audited cost reports available for use in its cost projections
although the number of on-site audits performed each year
may vary.

b. Whenever possible, the records necessary to
verify information submitted to DHH on Medicaid cost
reports, including related-party transactions and other
business activities engaged in by the provider, must be
accessible to DHH audit staff in the state of Louisiana.

D. Cost of Out-of-State Audits

1.  When records are not available to DHH audit staff
within Louisiana, the provider must pay the actual costs for
DHH staff to travel and review the records out-of-state.

2. If a provider fails to reimburse DHH for these costs
within 60 days of the request for payment, DHH may place a
hold on the vendor payments until the costs are paid in full.



E. In addition to the exclusions and adjustments made
during desk reviews and on-site audits, DHH may exclude or
adjust certain expenses in the cost-report data base in order
to base rates on the reasonable and necessary costs that an
economical and efficient provider must incur.

F. The facility shall retain such records or files as
required by DHH and shall have them available for
inspection for five years from the date of service or until all
audit exceptions are resolved, whichever period is longer.

G. If DHH:=s auditors determine that a facility=s records
are unauditable, the vendor payments may be withheld until
the facility submits an acceptable plan of correction to
reconstruct the records. Any additional costs incurred to
complete the audit shall be paid by the provider.

H. Vendor payments may also be withheld under the
following conditions:

1. a facility fails to submit corrective action plans in
response to financial and compliance audit findings within
15 days after receiving the notification letter; or

2. a facility fails to respond satisfactorily to DHH:=s
request for information within 15 days after receiving the
department:s letter.

I. If DHH:=s audit of the residents: personal funds
account indicate a material number of transactions were not
sufficiently supported or material noncompliance, then DHH
shall initiate a full scope audit of the account. The cost of the
full scope audit shall be withheld from the vendor payments.

J.  The ICF-MR shall cooperate with the audit process
by:

1. promptly providing all documents needed for
review;

2. providing adequate space for uninterrupted review
of records;

3. making persons responsible for facility records and
cost report preparation available during the audit;

4. arranging for all pertinent personnel to attend the
exit conference;

5. insuring that complete information is maintained in
client's records; and

6. correcting areas of noncompliance with state and
federal regulations immediately after the exit conference
time limit of 15 days.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
36:254 and Title XIX of the Social Security Act.

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Health and Hospitals, Office of the Secretary, Bureau of Health
Services Financing, LR 31:1594 (July 2005), repromulgated LR
31:2254 (September 2005).

§32911. Exclusions from Database

A. Providers with disclaimed audits and providers with
cost reports for other than a 12-month period will be
excluded from the database used to calculate the rates.

B. Providers who do not submit ICAP scores will be paid
at the Intermittent level until receipt of ICAP scores.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
36:254 and Title XIX of the Social Security Act.

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Health and Hospitals, Office of the Secretary, Bureau of Health
Services Financing, LR 31:1594 (July 2005), repromulgated LR
31:2255 (September 2005).

§32913. Leave Days

A. The reimbursement for hospital leave days is 75

percent of the applicable ICF/MR per diem rate.
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AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
36:254 and Title XIX of the Social Security Act.

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Health and Hospitals, Office of the Secretary, Bureau of Health
Services Financing, LR 27:57 (January 2001), repromulgated LR
31:2255 (September 2005).

Subchapter B. Qualifying Loss Review
(Private Facilities)
§32949. Basis for Administrative Review

A. The following is the qualifying loss review process
for private ICF/MR facilities seeking an adjustment to their
per diem rates.

B. Allowable Basis. The following matters are subject to
a qualifying loss review:

1. that rate-setting methodologies or principles of
reimbursement established under the reimbursement plan
were incorrectly applied;

2. that incorrect data or erroneous calculations were
used;

3. the facility demonstrates that the estimated
reimbursement based on its prospective rate is less than 95
percent of the estimated costs to be incurred by the facility in
providing Medicaid services during the period the rate is in
effect in compliance with the applicable state and federal
laws related to quality and safety standards.

C. Nonallowable Basis. The following matters are not
subject to a qualifying loss review:

1. the methodology used to establish the per diem;

2. the use of audited and/or desk reviews to determine
allowable costs;

3. the economic indicators used in the rate setting
methodology;

4. rate adjustments related to changes in federal or
state laws, rules or regulations(e.g., minimum wage
adjustments);

5. rate adjustments related to reduction or elimination
of extraordinary rates.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
36:254 and Title XIX of the Social Security Act.

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Health and Hospitals, Office of the Secretary, Bureau of Health
Services Financing, LR 24:66 (January 1998), repromulgated LR
31:2255 (September 2005).

§32951. Request for Administrative Review

A. Any intermediate care facility for the mentally
retarded (hereafter referred to as facility) seeking an
adjustment to the per diem rate shall submit a written request
for administrative review to the director of Institutional
Reimbursements (hereafter referred to as director) in the
Department of Health and Hospitals (hereafter referred to as
department).

B. Time Frames

1. Requests for administrative review must be
received by DHH within 30 days of either receipt of
notification of rate reduction or promulgation of this rule,
whichever is later. The receipt of the letter notifying the
facility of its rates will be deemed to be five days from the
date of the letter.

2. The department shall acknowledge receipt of the
written request within 30 days after actual receipt.

3. The director shall notify the facility of his decision
within a reasonable time after receipt of all necessary
documentation, including additional documentation or
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information requested after the initial request is received.
Failure to provide a decision within a reasonable time does
not imply approval.

4. 1If the facility wishes to appeal the director=s
decision, the appeal request must be received by the Bureau
of Appeals within 30 days after receipt of the written
decision of the director. The receipt of the decision is
deemed to be five days from the date of the decision.

C. Content of the Request. The facility shall bear the
burden of proof in establishing the facts and circumstances
necessary to support a rate adjustment. Any costs the
provider cites as a basis for relief under this provision must
be calculable and auditable.

1. Basis of the Request. Any facility seeking an
adjustment to the per diem rate must specify all of the
following:

a. the nature of the adjustment sought;

b. the amount of the adjustment sought;

c. the reasons or factors that the facility believes
justify an adjustment.

2. Financial Analysis. An analysis demonstrating the
extent to which the facility is incurring or expects to incur a
qualifying loss shall be provided by the facility unless the
basis for review is one of the following:

a. the rate setting methodology or criteria for
classifying facilities was incorrectly applied; or

b. incorrect data or erroneous calculations were
used in establishment of the facility=s per diem; or

c. the facility has incurred additional costs because
of a catastrophe.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
36:254 and Title XIX of the Social Security Act.

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Health and Hospitals, Office of the Secretary, Bureau of Health
Services Financing, LR 24:66 (January 1998), repromulgated LR
31:2255 (September 2005).

§32953. Basis for Rate Adjustment

A. Factors Considered. The department shall award
additional reimbursement to a facility that demonstrates by
substantiating evidence that:

1. the facility will incur a qualifying loss;

2. the loss will impair a facility=s ability to provide
services in accordance with state and federal health and
safety standards;

3. the facility has satisfactorily demonstrated that it
has taken all appropriate steps to eliminate management
practices resulting in unnecessary expenditures; and

4. the facility has demonstrated that its nonreimbursed
costs are generated by factors generally not shared by other
facilities in the facility=s bed size LOC.

B. Determination to Award Relief. In determining
whether to award additional reimbursement to a facility that
has made the showing required, the director shall consider
one or more of the factors and may take any of the actions:

1. the director shall consider whether the facility has
demonstrated that its nonreimbursed costs are generated by
factors generally not shared by other facilities in the
facility=s bed size LOC. Such factors may include, but are
not limited to, extraordinary circumstances beyond the
control of the facility; or

2. the director may consider, and may require the
facility to provide financial data including, but not limited
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to, financial ratio data indicative of the facility=s
performance quality in particular areas of operations; or

3. the director shall consider whether the facility has
taken every reasonable action to contain costs on a facility-
wide basis. In making such a determination the director may
require the facility to provide audited cost data or other
quantitative data and information about actions that the
facility has taken to contain costs.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
36:254 and Title XIX of the Social Security Act.

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Health and Hospitals, Office of the Secretary, Bureau of Health
Services Financing, LR 24:66 (January 1998), repromulgated LR
31:2256 (September 2005).

§32955. Awarding Relief

A. The director shall make notification of the decision to
award or not award relief in writing.

1. Basis of Adverse Decision

a. The director may determine that the review
request is not within the scope of the purpose for qualifying
loss review.

b. The director may determine that the information
presented does not support the request for rate adjustment.

2. Adverse Decision Appeal. Adverse decisions may
be appealed to the Office of the Secretary, Bureau of
Appeals for the Department of Health and Hospitals, P.O.
Box 4183, Baton Rouge, LA 70821-4183 within 30 days of
receipt of the decision.

3. Awarding Relief

a. Action by Director. In awarding relief under this
provision, the director shall:

i. make any necessary adjustment so as to
correctly apply the reimbursement methodology to the
facility submitting the appeal, or to correct calculations, data
errors or omissions; or

il. increase the facility=s per diem rate by an
amount that can reasonably be expected to ensure continuing
access to sufficient services of adequate quality for Title
XIX Medicaid recipients served by the facility.

b. Scope of Decisions. Decisions by the director to
recognize omitted, additional or increased costs incurred by
any facility; to adjust the facility rates; or to otherwise award
additional reimbursement to any facility shall not result in
any change in the bed size LOC per diem for the remaining
facilities in the bed size LOC, except that the department
may adjust the per diem if the facilities receiving adjustment
comprises over 10 percent of total utilization for that bed
size LOC based on the latest audited and/or desk reviewed
cost reports.

c. Effective Date. The effective date of the
adjustment shall be the later of:

i. the date of occurrence of the rate change upon
which the rate appeal is in response; or

ii. the effective date of this rule.

d. Limitations. The director shall not award relief to
provider in excess of 95 percent of appellant facility=s cost
coverage determined by inflationary trending of the year on
which rates are based. The rate adjustment shall also be
limited to no more than the amount of the rate for the
previous rate year. Any facility awarded relief shall be
audited and cost settled up to, but not over, the amount of the
adjusted rate. Should a single facility that is an entity under
common ownership or control with another facility or group



of facilities be awarded relief, all facilities under common
ownership or control with the facility awarded relief will be
subject to audit and cost settlement up to, but not over, the
amount of their rates.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
36:254 and Title XIX of the Social Security Act.

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Health and Hospitals, Office of the Secretary, Bureau of Health
Services Financing, LR 24:66 (January 1998), repromulgated LR
31:2256 (September 2005).

Chapter 331. Vendor Payments
§33101. Income Consideration in Determining Payment

A. Clients receiving care under Title XIX. The client's
applicable income (liability) will be determined when
computing the ICF/MR's vendor payments. Vendor
payments are subject to the following conditions.

1. Vendor payments will begin with the first day the
client is determined to be categorically and medically
eligible or the date of admission, whichever is later.

2. Vendor payment will be made for the number of
eligible days as determined by the ICF/MR per diem rate
less the client's per diem applicable income.

3. [If a client transfers from one facility to another, the
vendors' payment to each facility will be calculated by
multiplying the number of eligible days times the ICF/MR
per diem rate less the client's liability.

B. Client Personal Care Allowance. The ICF/MR will
not require that any part of a client's personal care allowance
be paid as part of the ICF/MR's fee. Personal care allowance
is an amount set apart from a client's available income to be
used by the client for his/her personal use. The amount is
determined by DHH.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
36:254.

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Health and Human Resources, Office of Family Security, LR
13:578 (October 1987), amended by the Department of Health and
Hospitals, Office of the Secretary, Bureau of Health Services
Financing, LR 25:682 (April 1999), repromulgated LR 31:2257
(September 2005).

§33103. Payment Limitations

A. Temporary Absence of the Client. A client's temporary
absence from an ICF/MR will not interrupt the monthly
vendor payment to the ICF/MR, provided the following
conditions are met:

1. the ICF/MR keeps a bed available for the client's
return; and

2. the absence is for one of the following reasons:

a. hospitalization, which does not exceed seven
days per hospitalization; or
b. leave of absence. A temporary stay outside the
ICF/MR provided for in the client's written individual
habilitation plan. A leave of absence will not exceed 45 days
per fiscal year (July 1 through June 30) and will not exceed
30 consecutive days in any single occurrence. Certain leaves
of absence will be excluded from the annual 45-day limit as
long as the leave does not exceed the 30-consecutive day
limit and is included in the written individual habilitation
plan. These exceptions are as follows:
i.  Special Olympics;
ii. roadrunner-sponsored events;
iii. Louisiana planned conferences;
iv.  trial discharge leave;
v. official state holidays.

2257

NOTE: Elopements and unauthorized absences under the
individual habilitation plan count against allowable leave
days. However, Title XIX eligibility is not affected if the
absence does not exceed 30 consecutive days and if the
ICF/MR has not discharged the client.

3. the period of absence shall be determined by
counting the first day of absence as the day on which the
first 24-hour period of absence expires;

4. a period of 24 continuous hours or more shall be
considered an absence. Likewise, a temporary leave of
absence for hospitalization or a home visit is broken only if
the client returns to the ICF/MR for 24 hours or longer;

5. upon admission, a client must remain in the
ICF/MR at least 24 continuous hours in order for the
ICF/MR to submit a payment claim for a day of service or

reserve a bed;
EXAMPLE: A client admitted to an ICF/MR in the morning
and transferred to the hospital that afternoon would not be
eligible for any vendor payment for ICF/MR services.

6. if a client transfers from one facility to another, the
unused leave days for the fiscal year also transfer. No
additional leave days are allocated as a result of a transfer;

7. the ICF/MR shall promptly notify DHH of absences
beyond the applicable 30- or seven-day limitations. Payment
to the ICF/MR shall be terminated from the thirty-first or
eighth day, depending upon the leave of absence. Payment
will commence after the individual has been determined
eligible for Title XIX benefits and has remained in the
ICF/MR for 30 consecutive days;

8. the limit on Title XIX payment for leave days does
not mean that further leave days are prohibited when
provided for in the individual habilitation plan. After the
Title XIX payment limit is met, further leave days may be
arranged between the ICF/MR and the client, family or
responsible party. Such arrangements may include the
following options:

a. the ICF/MR may charge the client, family or
responsible party an amount not to exceed the Title XIX
daily rate;

b. the ICF/MR may charge the client, family or
responsible party a portion of the Title XIX daily rate;

c. the ICF/MR may absorb the cost into its
operation costs.

B. Temporary Absence of the Client Due to Evacuations.
When local conditions require evacuation of ICF/MR
residents, the following payment procedures apply.

1. When clients are evacuated for less than 24 hours,
the monthly vendor payment is not interrupted.

2. When staff is sent with clients to the evacuation
site, the monthly vendor payment is not interrupted.

3.  When clients are evacuated to a family's or friend's
home at the ICF/MR's request, the ICF/MR shall not submit
a claim for a day of service or leave day, and the client's
liability shall not be collected.

4.  When clients go home at the family's request or on
their own initiative, a leave day shall be charged.

5. When clients are admitted to the hospital for the
purpose of evacuation of the ICF/MR, Medicaid payment
shall not be made for hospital charges.

C. Payment Policy in regard to Date of Admission,
Discharge, or Death

1. Medicaid (Title XIX) payments shall be made
effective as of the admission date to the ICF/MR. If the
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client is medically certified as of that date and if either of the
following conditions is met:

a. the client is eligible for Medicaid benefits in the
ICF/MR (excluding the medically needy); or

b. the client was in a continuous institutional living
arrangement (nursing home, hospital, ICF/MR, or a
combination of these institutional living arrangements) for
30 consecutive days; the client must also be determined
financially eligible for Medical Assistance.

2. The continuous stay requirement is:

a. considered met if the client dies during the first
30 consecutive days;

b. not interrupted by the client's absence from the
ICF/MR when the absence is for hospitalization or leave of
absence which is part of the written individual habilitation
plan.

3. The client's applicable income is applied toward the
ICF/MR fee effective with the date Medicaid payment is to
begin.

4. Medicaid payment is not made for the date of
discharge; however, neither the client, the family, nor
responsible party is to be billed for the date of discharge.

5. Medicaid payment is made for the day of client's

death.
NOTE: The ICF/MR shall promptly notify DHH/BHSF of
admissions, death, and/or all discharges.

D. Advance Deposits
1. An ICF/MR shall neither require nor accept an
advance deposit from an individual whose Medicaid (Title

XIX) eligibility has been established.
EXCEPTION: An ICF/MR may require an advance deposit
for the current month only on that part of the total payment
which is the client's liability.

2. If advance deposits or payments are required from
the client, family, or responsible party upon admission when
Medicaid (Title XIX) eligibility has not been established,
such a deposit shall be refunded or credited to the person
upon receipt of vendor payment.

E. Retroactive Payment. When individuals enter an
ICF/MR before their Medicaid (Title XIX) eligibility has
been established payment for ICF/MR services is made
retroactive to the first day of eligibility after admission.

F. Timely Filing for Reimbursements. Vendor payments
cannot be made if more than 12 months have elapsed
between the month of initial services and submittal of a
claim for these services. Exceptions for payments of claims
over 12 months old can be made with authorization from
DHH/BHSF only.

G. Refunds to Clients

1. When the ICF/MR receives vendor payments, it
shall refund any fees for services collected from clients,
family or responsible party by the end of the month in which
vendor payment is received.

2. Advance payments for a client's liability (applicable
income) shall be refunded promptly if he/she leaves the
ICF/MR.

3. The ICF/MR
procedures for refunds.

a. The proportionate amount for the remaining days
of the month shall be refunded to the client, family, or the
responsible party no later than 30 days following the date of

shall adhere to the following
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discharge. If the client has not yet been certified, the
procedures spelled out in Paragraph 1 above shall apply.

b. No penalty shall be charged to the client, family,
or responsible party even if the circumstances surrounding
the discharge occurred as follows:

i.  without prior notice; or
1i.  within the initial month; or
iii. within some other "minimum stay" period
established by the ICF/MR.

c. Proof of refund of the unused portion of the
applicable income shall be furnished to BHSF upon request.

H. ICF/MR Refunds to the Department

1. Nonparticipating ICF/MR. Vendor payments made
for services performed while an ICF/MR is in a
nonparticipating status with the Medicaid Program shall be
refunded to the Office of Management and Financing, Post
Office Box 629, Baton Rouge, LA 70821-0629. The refund
shall be made payable to the "Department of Health and
Hospitals-Medicaid Program."

2. Participating ICF/MR. A currently participating
Title XIX, ICF/MR shall correct billing or payment errors by
use of appropriate adjustment void or Patient Liability (PLI)
adjustment forms.

I.  Sitters. An ICF/MR will neither expect nor require a
client to have a sitter. However, the ICF/MR shall permit
clients, families, or responsible parties directly to employ
and pay sitters when indicated, subject to the following
limitations.

1. The use of sitters will be entirely at the client's,
family's, or responsible party's discretion. However, the
ICF/MR shall have the right to approve the selection of a
sitter. If the ICF/MR disapproves the selection of the sitter,
the ICF/MR will provide written notification to the client,
family, and/or responsible party, and to the Department of
Health and Hospitals stating the reasons for disapproval.

2. Payment to sitters is the direct responsibility of the
client, family or responsible party, unless:

a. the hospital's policy requires a sitter;

b. the attending physician requires a sitter; or

c. the individual habilitation plan (IHP) requires a

sitter.
NOTE: Psychiatric Hospitals are excluded from this
requirement.

3. Payment to sitters is the direct responsibility of the
ICF/MR facility when:
a. the hospital's policy requires a sitter and the
client is on hospital leave days;
b. the attending physician requires a sitter;
c. the IHP requires a sitter.
4. A sitter will be expected to abide by the ICF/MR's
rules, including health standards and professional ethics.
5. The presence of a sitter does not absolve the
ICF/MR of its full responsibility for the client's care.
6. The ICF/MR is not responsible for providing a
sitter if one is required while the resident is on home leave.
J.  Tips. The ICF/MR shall not permit tips for services
rendered by its employees.
AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
36:254.
HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Health and Human Resources, Office of Family Security, LR
13:578 (October 1987), amended by the Department of Health and



Hospitals, Office of the Secretary, Bureau of Health Services
Financing, LR 25:682 (April 1999), LR 31:1082 (May 2005),
repromulgated LR 31:2257 (September 2005).

Frederick P. Cerise, M.D., M.P.H.

Secretary
05094065

RULE

Department of Health and Hospitals
Office of the Secretary
Bureau of Health Services Financing

Third Party LiabilityCNewborn Notification Requirements

The Department of Health and Hospitals, Office of the
Secretary, Bureau of Health Services Financing promulgates
the following Rule under the Medical Assistance Program as
authorized by R.S. 36:254 and pursuant to Title XIX of the
Social Security Act. This Rule is promulgated in accordance
with the Administrative Procedure Act, R.S. 49:950 et seq.

Rule

The Department of Health and Hospitals, Office of the
Secretary, Bureau of Health Services Financing adopts the
following provisions under the Third Party Liability
Program governing newborn notification requirements for
hospitals.

A. Definitions

Effective Date of BirthCthe date of live birth of a
newborn child.

Health Insurance IssuerCan insurance company,
including a health maintenance organization as defined and
licensed to engage in the business of insurance under Part
XII of Chapter 2 of Title 22, unless preempted as a qualified
employee benefit plan under the Employee Retirement
Income Security Act of 1974.

Third Party Liability (TPL) Notification of Newborn
Child(ren) FormCthe written form developed by the
Department of Health and Hospitals that must be completed
by the hospital to report the birth and health insurance status
of a newborn child.

Qualifying Newborn ChildCa newborn child who meets
the eligibility provisions for the Medicaid Program.

B. Notification Requirements

1. A hospital shall complete the Third Party Liability
(TPL) Notification of Newborn Child(ren) form to report the
birth and health insurance status of a qualifying newborn
child either delivered in their facility, delivered under their
care, or transferred to their facility after birth. The
notification shall only be completed when the hospital
reasonably believes that the following entities would
consider the child to be a qualified newborn and insurance
coverage is available to said child(ren):

a. the health insurance issuer that has issued a
policy of health insurance under which the newborn child
may be entitled to coverage; and

b. the Department of Health and Hospitals.

2. The TPL Notification of Newborn Child(ren) form
shall be completed by the hospital and submitted to any and
all applicable health insurance issuers within seven days of
the birth of a newborn child. Delivery of the notification
form may be established via the U.S. Mail, fax, or e-mail.
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3. The TPL Notification of Newborn Child(ren) form
shall be sent to the Department of Health and Hospitals,
Bureau of Health Services Financing, Third Party
Liability/Medicaid Recovery within seven days of the birth
of the child.

4. This notification shall not be altered, in any respect,
by the hospital and shall be in addition to any other
notification, process or procedure followed by the hospital.
The notification shall not be done in lieu of any other
required notice, process or procedure established in any
other rule, manual, or policy.

Frederick P. Cerise, M.D., M.P.H.

Secretary
0509#063

RULE

Department of Insurance
Office of the Commissioner

Regulation 86CDependent Coverage of Newborn
Children in the Group and Individual Market
(LAC 37:XIII.Chapter 111)

Under the authority of the Louisiana Insurance Code, R.S.
22:1, et seq., and in accordance with the provisions of the
Administrative Procedure Act, R.S. 49:950 et seq., the
Department of Insurance gives notice that it adopts
Regulation 86 relating to procedures to provide health
insurance coverage in the group and individual market to
newborn children who meet the eligibility requirements as
set forth in State Implementation Plan of Title XIX of the
Social Security Act, and to specify the information that is to
be provided by the health insurance issuer to the Secretary of
the Department of Health and Hospitals as well as any health
care provider or health care facility within certain prescribed
time frames in order to allow these persons the option of
making the payment of the incremental increase in the
premium applicable to the health insurance for the newborn
child, and to provide for sanctions.

Title 37
INSURANCE

Part XIII. Regulations
Regulation 86CDependent Coverage of
Newborn Children in the Group and
Individual Market
§11101. Authority

A. This regulation is issued pursuant to the authority
vested in the commissioner under the provisions of R.S.
49:953 of the Administrative Procedure Act, R.S. 22:3 and
22:250.2(E)(2)(b) and (c), and R.S. 22:2504.F, and
22:250.11.E and 22:250.15.A, regarding the coverage of a
newborn child as a dependent in the group and individual
health insurance market and to provide for related matters.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
22:3 to implement and enforce the provisions of R.S.
22:250.2.E.(2)(b) and (c), and 22:250.4.F, and 22:250.11.E, and
22:250.15.A of Part VI-C of Chapter 1 of Title 22 of the Louisiana
Revised Statutes of 1950, as amended.

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Insurance, Office of the Commissioner, LR 31:2259 (September
2005).

Chapter 111.
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§11103. Purpose

A. The purpose of this regulation is to establish
reasonable requirements and standards for the processing of
such coverage by health insurance issuers that assures
compliance with state requirements under Title 22 of the
Louisiana Revised Statutes of 1950, as amended. More
specifically, this regulation is necessary to implement and
enforce the provisions of R.S. 22:250.2.E.(2)(b) and (c), and
R.S. 22:250.4.F, and 22:250.11.E and 22:250.15.A of Part
VI-C of Chapter 1 of Title 22.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
22:3 to implement and enforce the provisions of R.S.
22:250.2.E.(2)(b) and (c), and 22:250.4.F, and 22:250.11.E, and
22:250.15.A of Part VI-C of Chapter 1 of Title 22 of the Louisiana
Revised Statutes of 1950, as amended.

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Insurance, Office of the Commissioner, LR 31:2260 (September
2005).

§11105. Applicability and Scope

A. Except as otherwise specifically provided, the
requirements of this regulation shall apply to health
insurance  issuers, including health  maintenance
organizations, as required pursuant to R.S. 22:2001 et seq.,
of the Louisiana Revised Statutes of 1950, as amended.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
22:3 to implement and enforce the provisions of R.S.
22:250.2.E.(2)(b) and (c), and 22:250.4.F, and 22:250.11.E, and
22:250.15.A of Part VI-C of Chapter 1 of Title 22 of the Louisiana
Revised Statutes of 1950, as amended.

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Insurance, Office of the Commissioner, LR 31:2260 (September
2005).

§11107. Definitions

A. As used in this regulation, these terms shall have the
following meaning.

Cancellation for Nonpayment of PremiumCthe
cancellation of coverage for a newborn child who was added
as a dependent due to the nonpayment of the applicable
premium adjustment for the additional coverage for the
newborn child within the time frames established by law or
in this regulation.

Effective Date of BirthCthe date of the moment of live
birth of a newborn child.

Eligibility ProvisionsCa newborn child who meets the
requirements set forth in the State Plan Medical Assistance
under Title XIX of the Social Security Act.

Health Care FacilityCa facility or institution providing
health care services including, but not limited to, a hospital
(specifically including a neonatal special care unit) or other
licensed inpatient center, ambulatory surgical or treatment
center, diagnostic, laboratory, or imaging center, or
rehabilitation or other therapeutic health setting.

Health Care ProviderCa physician or other health care
practitioner licensed, certified or registered to perform
specified health care services consistent with state law.

Health Insurance IssuerCan insurance company,
including a health maintenance organization as defined and
licensed to engage in the business of insurance under Part
XII of Chapter 2 of Title 22 of the Louisiana Revised
Statutes, unless preempted as a qualified employee benefit
plan under the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of
1974.
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Newborn ChildCan infant from the time of birth
through and until such time as the infant is discharged from
a health care facility to his or her home.

Non-Qualifying Newborn ChildCa newborn child who
does not meet the eligibility requirements of the State Plan
Medical Assistance under Title XIX of the Social Security
Act.

Notice of CancellationCthe written notice sent from the
health insurance issuer to the Secretary of the Department of
Health and Hospitals by certified mail, return receipt
requested, with regard to the cancellation of coverage for a
newborn child. This notice of cancellation may, as a
courtesy, also be sent via electronic means to the Secretary
of the Department of Health and Hospitals; however, such
electronic notice shall not satisfy the notice requirement set
forth in the enabling statute that requires the Notice of
Cancellation be sent by certified mail, return receipt
requested, to the Secretary of the Department of Health and
Hospitals.

Qualifying Newborn ChildCa newborn child who meets
the eligibility provisions of the State Plan Medical
Assistance under Title XIX of the Social Security Act.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
22:3 to implement and enforce the provisions of R.S.
22:250.2.E.(2)(b) and (c), and 22:250.4.F, and 22:250.11.E, and
22:250.15.A of Part VI-C of Chapter 1 of Title 22 of the Louisiana
Revised Statutes of 1950, as amended.

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Insurance, Office of the Commissioner, LR 31:2260 (September
2005).

§11109. Enrollment Notification Procedures for a
Qualifying Newborn Child

A. Upon notification of the birth of a newborn child who
is potentially eligible under Title XIX of the Social Security
Act, the health insurance issuer shall be required to:

1. verify that dependant coverage is available for the
newborn child or make a determination that no coverage is
available for the newborn child;

2. make a determination of the benefit limits with
regard to the newborn child;

3. make a determination of any additional premium, if
applicable, that may be due in order to provide dependent
coverage for the newborn child; and

4. designate a point of contact (which may be a
specific position), with telephone number and physical
address, to represent the health insurance issuer to facilitate
all matters relative to the newborn child.

B. Upon notification of the birth of a newborn child who
is potentially eligible under Title XIX of the Social Security
Act, the health insurance issuer shall be required to notify
the following persons:

1. with regard to
policyholder;

2. with regard to a group policy, both the employer
and the employee;

3. with regard to either an individual policy or a group
policy, the health care facility that rendered any medical
service to the newborn child from the moment of birth until
such time as the infant is discharged from said health care
facility to his or her home.

an individual policy, the



C. The notification that the health insurance issuer is
required to send to the persons referred to in Subsection B
above shall include the following information:

1. verification as to whether the health plan provides
coverage under which the newborn child could be enrolled
as a dependent or, if such coverage is not available under the
health care plan, an explanation of why such coverage is not
available;

2. the additional amount of premium due, if any, in
order to provide dependent coverage for the newborn child,

3. designate a point of contact (which may be a
specific position), with telephone number and physical
address, to represent the health insurance issuer to facilitate
all matters relative to the newborn child; and

4. statement to the policyholder under an individual
policy or the employee and employer under a group plan that
additional information is needed by the health insurance
issuer. A health insurance issuer may request that the
signature of the policyholder of an individual policy or
employee and employer under a group plan be on the
enrollment form. However, the failure of the policyholder or
employee or employer, as applicable, to place a signature on
the enrollment form shall not be a requirement for the
enrollment of the newborn child, as the newborn child is
enrolled as a matter of law.

D. The health insurance issuer shall be required to
provide 90 days written notice to the Secretary of the
Department of Health and Hospitals prior to the cancellation
of health coverage for a potential qualifying newborn child.
This notice shall provide the following documents and/or
information:

1. the group identification/policy number or the

individual identification/policy number, as applicable,
including, but not limited to, the major medical
identification number and the prescription drug

identification number;

2. summary of benefits, including, but not limited to,
an itemization of all covered benefits and applicable co-
payments and deductibles;

3. amount of additional premium due in order to
provide dependent coverage for the newborn child,
including, but not limited to, the total premium (month or
portion of a month) due to effectuate coverage for the
newborn child from the date of birth;

4. the name(s) of the member subscriber of the
newborn child, including, but not limited to, the name(s) of
any and all other dependent(s) and the effective date of
coverage for each person(s) named as a dependent;

5. designate a point of contact (which may be a
specific position), with telephone number and physical
address, to represent the health insurance issuer to facilitate
all matters relative to the newborn child.

E. Additionally, no later than three days after the mailing
of the written notice to the Secretary of the Department of
Health and Hospitals referred to in Subsection D above, the
health insurance issuer shall provide the same documents
and/or information to any and all health care facilities and
any and all health care providers who, prior to or on the date
of the notice of cancellation, have either:

1. submitted a claim to the health insurance issuer for
health care services rendered to the newborn child; or
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2. provided notice to the health insurance issuer that it
is rendering or has rendered health care services to the
newborn child.

F. The Secretary of the Department of Health and
Hospitals shall have 90 days, commencing the day after the
secretary receives the written notice, via certified mail,
return receipt requested, from the health insurance issuer as
provided in Subsection D above, to pay the applicable
additional premium attributable to the newborn child to
retain the newborn child as a covered dependent under the
policy of health insurance.

G. If that portion of the applicable additional premium
attributable to the newborn child being retained as a covered
dependent under the policy of health insurance remains
unpaid after the expiration of the 90 day written notice time
period referred to in Subsection E above to the Secretary of
Department of Health and Hospitals, the health insurance
issuer may thereafter cancel the dependent coverage for the
newborn child effective as of the date of birth of the
newborn child.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
22:3 to implement and enforce the provisions of R.S.
22:250.2.E.(2)(b) and (c), and 22:250.4.F, and 22:250.11.E, and
22:250.15.A of Part VI-C of Chapter 1 of Title 22 of the Louisiana
Revised Statutes of 1950, as amended.

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Insurance, Office of the Commissioner, LR 31:2260 (September
2005).

§11111. Procedures for a Non-Qualifying Newborn Child

A. The health insurance issuer shall be required to
comply with the provisions of the Health Insurance
Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 with regard to the
enrollment procedures relative to dependent coverage for a
non-qualifying newborn child.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
22:3 to implement and enforce the provisions of R.S.
22:250.2.E.(2)(b) and (c), and 22:250.4.F, and 22:250.11.E, and
22:250.15.A of Part VI-C of Chapter 1 of Title 22 of the Louisiana
Revised Statutes of 1950, as amended.

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Insurance, Office of the Commissioner, LR 31:2261 (September
2005).

§11113. Timely Payment of Claims

A. In cases where the time for the payment of a claim
may be effected by the requirements of R.S. 22:250.4 et seq.,
such requirements shall be considered "just and reasonable
grounds" for a health insurance issuer to delay in the
payment of a claim pursuant to R.S. 22:250.31 et seq.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
22:3 to implement and enforce the provisions of R.S.
22:250.2.E.(2)(b) and (c), and 22:250.4.F, and 22:250.11.E, and
22:250.15.A of Part VI-C of Chapter 1 of Title 22 of the Louisiana
Revised Statutes of 1950, as amended.

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Insurance, Office of the Commissioner, LR 31:2261 (September
2005).

§11115. Sanctions

A. A health insurance issuer that does not comply with
any of the time limits for action or notice set forth in this
regulation, or who does not provide all of the information
required in this regulation, shall be subject to the sanctions
set forth in R.S. 22:1457.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
22:3 to implement and enforce the provisions of R.S.
22:250.2.E.(2)(b) and (c), and 22:250.4.F, and 22:250.11.E, and
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22:250.15.A of Part VI-C of Chapter 1 of Title 22 of the Louisiana
Revised Statutes of 1950, as amended.

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Insurance, Office of the Commissioner, LR 31:2261 (September
2005).

§11117. Severability

A. If any section or provision of this regulation or the
application to any person or circumstance is held invalid,
such invalidity or determination shall not affect other
sections or provisions or the application of this regulation to
any persons or circumstances that can be given effect
without the invalid section or provision or application, and
for these purposes the sections and provisions of this
regulation and the application to any persons or
circumstances are severable.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
22:3 to implement and enforce the provisions of R.S.
22:250.2.E.(2)(b) and (c), and 22:250.4.F, and 22:250.11.E, and
22:250.15.A of Part VI-C of Chapter 1 of Title 22 of the Louisiana
Revised Statutes of 1950, as amended.

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Insurance, Office of the Commissioner, LR 31:2262 (September
2005).

§11119. Effective Date

A. This regulation shall be effective upon final
publication in the Louisiana Register.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
22:3 to implement and enforce the provisions of R.S.
22:250.2.E.(2)(b) and (c), and 22:250.4.F, and 22:250.11.E, and
22:250.15.A of Part VI-C of Chapter 1 of Title 22 of the Louisiana
Revised Statutes of 1950, as amended.

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Insurance, Office of the Commissioner, LR 31:2262 (September
2005).

J. Robert Wooley

Commissioner
05094017

RULE

Department of Natural Resources
Office of Conservation

Statewide Order 29-BCHours for Receiving Waste
(LAC 43:XIX.537)

The Louisiana Office of Conservation has amended LAC
43:XIX.Chapter 5 (Statewide Order No. 29-B) in accordance
with the provisions of the Administrative Procedure Act, R.
S. 49:950 et seq., and pursuant to power delegated under the
laws of the state of Louisiana and particularly Title 30 of the
Louisiana Revised Statutes of 1950, Sections 30:4 et seq.
The amendment modifies the specific provision at LAC
43:XIX.537.A which establishes the hours whereby
commercial exploration and production waste disposal
facility and transfer stations may receive waste.

The amendment to the above existing Rule establishes
uniformly consistent hours by which commercial exploration
and production waste disposal facilities and transfer stations
may receive waste. Operators of such facilities will be
allowed to receive waste between the fixed hours of 6 a.m.
and 9 p.m., Central Time Zone.
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Title 43
NATURAL RESOURCES
Part XIX. Office of ConservationCGeneral Operations
Subpart 1. Statewide Order No. 29-B

Chapter 5. Off-Site Storage, Treatment and/or
Disposal of Exploration and Production
Waste Generated from Drilling and
Production of Oil and Gas Wells

§537. Hours of Receiving

A. Commercial facilities and transfer stations shall be
adequately manned during hours of receiving and shall
receive E&P Waste by truck only between the hours of
6 am. and 9 p.m., Central Time, except as provided in
§537.B. below.

B.-C. ..

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
30:4 et seq.

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Natural Resources, Office of Conservation, LR 27:1910 (November
2001), amended LR 31:2262 (September 2005).

James H. Welsh

Commissioner
0509#006

RULE

Department of Social Services
Office of Family Support

Child Care Assistance Program (LAC 67:111.Chapter 51)

The Department of Social Services, Office of Family
Support, has amended the Louisiana Administrative Code,
Title 67, Part III, Subpart 12, Chapter 51, §§5102, 5103,
5104, 5107, 5109, and 5111. Section 5113, Child Care
Provider Disqualifications, in the Notice of Intent published
June 20, 2005, has been omitted from the final Rule as
announced at the public hearing of July 28, 2005, The
agency has determined that further study is necessary before
this proposal is adopted.

Title 67
SOCIAL SERVICES
Part III. Family Support
Subpart 12. Child Care Assistance

Chapter 51.  Child Care Assistance
Subchapter A. Administration, Conditions of Eligibility,
and Funding

§5102. Definitions
skoksk

HouseholdCa group of individuals who live together,
consisting of the head of household, that person's legal
spouse or non-legal spouse, the disabled adult parent who is
unable to care for himself/herself and his/her child(ren) who
are in need of care, and all children under the age of 18 who
are dependent on the head of housechold and/or spouse,
including the minor unmarried parent (MUP) who is not
legally emancipated and the MUP's children.

Intentional Program Violation (IPV)Cany act by a CCAP
client or provider that consists of intentionally making a

false or misleading statement, or misrepresenting,
concealing, or withholding relevant facts.
sksksk



Special Needs Child CareCchild care for a child through
age 17 who because of a mental, physical, or emotional
disability, requires specialized facilities, lower staff ratio,
and/or specially trained staff to meet his or her
developmental and physical needs. Incentive payments up to
25 percent higher than the regular rates can be allowed for a
special needs child if the provider is actually providing the
specialized care.

Training or Employment Mandatory Participant
(TEMP)Ca household member who is required to be
employed or attending a job training or educational program,
including the head of household, the head of household's
legal spouse or non-legal spouse, the MUP age 16 or older
whose child(ren) need child care assistance, and the MUP
under age 16 whose child(ren) live with the MUP and the
MUP's disabled parent/guardian who is unable to care for the
MUP's child(ren) while the MUP goes to school/work.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with 45
CFR Parts 98 and 99 and P.L. 104-193.

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Social Services, Office of Family Support, LR 26:2826 (December
2000), amended LR 27:1932 (November 2001), LR 28:1490 (June
2002), LR 29:43 (January 2003), LR 29:189 (February 2003), LR
30:1484 (July 2004), LR 31:2262 (September 2005).

§5103. Conditions of Eligibility

A -Al. ..

B. Low-income families not receiving FITAP cash
assistance, including former FITAP recipients who are given
priority consideration, must meet the following eligibility
criteria

1.-3. ..

4. Effective September 1, 2002, unless disabled as
established by receipt of Social Security Administration
Disability benefits, Supplemental Security Income, Veterans'
Administration Disability benefits for a disability of at least
70 percent, or unless disabled and unable to care for his/her
child(ren) as verified by a doctor's statement or by worker
determination, the TEMP must be:

a. ..

b. attending a job training or educational program
for a minimum average of, effective April 1, 2003, 25 hours
per week (attendance at a job training or educational
program must be verified, including the expected date of
completion); or

c.-d

5. Household income does not exceed 75 percent of
the State Median Income for a household of the same size.
Income is defined as:

a. the gross earnings of the head of household, that
person's legal spouse, or non-legal spouse and any minor
unmarried parent who is not legally emancipated and whose
children are in need of Child Care Assistance; and

b. recurring unearned income of the following types
for all household members:

i.  Social Security Administration benefits;
ii. Supplemental Security Income;
iii.  Veterans' Administration benefits;
iv. retirement benefits;
v. disability benefits;
vi.  child support/alimony;

vil. unemployment compensation benefits;

viii. adoption subsidy payments, and workers'
compensation benefits.
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6.-7. ..

8. Effective November 1, 2005, the household must be
current on payment of co-payments to any current or
previous provider(s). Verification will be required that co-
payments are not owed when:

a. achange in provider is reported,;

b. atapplication for Child Care Assistance, the most
recent case rejection or closure was due to owing co-
payments or not making necessary co-payments;

c. a child care provider reports that the client owes
co-payments or is not making necessary co-payments.

C.-D. ..

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with 45
CFR Parts 98 and 99, P.L. 104-193, Act 58, 2003 Reg. Session.

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Social Services, Office of Family Support, LR 24:356 (February
1998), amended LR 25:2444 (December 1999), LR 26:2827
(December 2000), LR 27:1932 (November 2001), LR 28:1490
(June 2002), LR 29:43 (January 2003), LR 29:1106 (July 2003),
LR 29:1833 (September 2003), LR 30:496 (March 2004), LR
30:1487 (July 2004), LR 31:101 (January 2005), LR 31:2263
(September 2005).

§5104. Reporting Requirements
Effective February 1, 2004

A .

B. A Low Income Child Care household that is included
in a Food Stamp semi-annual reporting household is subject
to the semi-annual reporting requirements in accordance
with §2013. In addition, these households must report the
following changes within 10 days of the knowledge of the
change:

1. ..

2. an interruption of at least three weeks or a
termination of any TEMP's employment or training; or

3. .

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with 45
CFR Parts 98 and 99, P.L. 104-193, 7 CFR Part 273

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Social Services, Office of Family Support, LR 30:1487 (July 2004),
amended LR:31:2263 (September 2005).

Subchapter B. Child Care Providers
§5107. Child Care Providers

A. The head of household, or parent/caretaker relative in
the case of a STEP participant, shall be free to select a child
care provider of his/her choice including center-based child
care (licensed Class A centers and licensed Class A Head
Start centers which provide before-and-after school care
and/or summer programs), a registered Family Child Day
Care Home (FCDCH) provider, in-home child care, and
public and non-public BESE-regulated schools which
operate kindergarten, pre-kindergarten, and/or before and
after school care programs.

B. A licensed Class A center or licensed Class A Head
Start center must be active in the Child Care Assistance
Program (CCAP) Provider Directory and complete and sign
a Class A provider agreement before payments can be made
to that facility.

C. An FCDCH provider must be registered and active in
the CCAP Provider Directory before payments can be made
to that provider.

1. To be eligible for participation, an FCDCH provider
must complete and sign an FCDCH provider agreement,
complete a request for registration and Form W-9, pay
appropriate fees, furnish verification of Social Security
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number and residential address, provide proof that he/she is
at least 18 years of age, and meet all registration
requirements, including:

a. certification that they, nor any person employed
in their home or on their home property, have never been the
subject of a validated complaint of child abuse or neglect, or
have never been convicted of, or pled no contest to, a crime
listed in R.S. 15:587.1.(C);

b. submission of verification of current certification
in infant/child or infant/child/adult Cardiopulmonary
Resuscitation (CPR) and first aid;

c. submission to criminal background check(s) on
all adults living at the provider's residence or employed by
the provider and working in the provider's home or on the
provider's home property, including the provider; each of
which must be received from State Police indicating no
enumerated conviction;

d. effective March 1, 2002, submission of
verification of 12 clock hours of training in job-related
subject areas approved by the Department of Social Services
annually;

e. retainment of a statement of good health signed
by a physician or his designee which must have been
obtained within the past three years and be obtained every
three years thereafter;

f. submission of a passed inspection by the Office
of State Fire Marshal;

g. usage of only safe children's products and
removal from the premises of any products which are
declared unsafe and recalled as required by R.S.46:2701-
2711. (CCAP FCDCH providers will receive periodic
listings of unsafe and recalled children's products from the
Consumer Protection Section of the Attorney General,
Public Protection Division);

2. All registration functions for FCDCH providers, as
provided in R.S. 46:1441 et seq. and as promulgated in the
Louisiana Register, September 20, 1991, previously
exercised by the Bureau of Licensing, shall be carried out by
the Office of Family Support.

D. An In-Home child care provider must be certified and
active in the CCAP Provider Directory before payments can
be made to that provider.

1. To be eligible for participation, an In-Home child
care provider must complete and sign an In-Home provider
agreement and Form W-9, pay appropriate fees, furnish
verification of Social Security number and residential
address, provide proof that he/she is at least 18 years of age,
and meet all certification requirements, including:

a. certification that he/she has never been the
subject of a validated complaint of child abuse or neglect or
has never been convicted of, or pled no contest to, a crime
listed in R.S. 15:587.1.(C);

b. submission of verification of current certification
in infant/child or infant/child/adult Cardiopulmonary
Resuscitation (CPR) and first aid;

c. submission to a criminal background check
which must be received from State Police indicating no
enumerated conviction;

d. completion of the Health and Safety Standards
Form.
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E. A public or non-public school program must be
certified, must complete and sign a school program provider
agreement and Form W-9, and must be regulated by the
Board of Elementary and Secondary Education (BESE) if a
public school or Brumfield vs. Dodd approved if a non-
public school before payments can be made to that provider.

F. Under no circumstance can the following be
considered an eligible CCAP provider:

1. aperson living at the same residence as the child;

2. the child's parent or guardian, or parent/caretaker
relative in the case of a STEP participant, whether or not that
individual lives with the child;

3. an FCDCH provider, (if the child's non-custodial
parent is residing in the FCDCH and is not working during
the hours that care is needed);

4. aClass B child care center;

5. an individual who has been the subject of a
validated complaint of child abuse or neglect, or has been
convicted of, or pled no contest to, a crime listed in R.S.
15:587.1(C), unless approved in writing by a district judge
of the parish and the local district attorney;

6. an FCDCH provider who resides with or employs a
person in their home or on their home property who has been
the subject of a validated complaint of child abuse or
neglect, or has been convicted of, or pled no contest to, a
crime listed in R.S. 15:587.1.C. unless approved in writing
by a district judge of the parish and the local district
attorney;

7. a person/center providing care outside of the state
of Louisiana.

G.1. A provider shall be denied or terminated as an
eligible CCAP provider if:

a. the agency determines that a condition exists
which threatens the physical or emotional health or safety of
any child in care;

b. an FCDCH provider fails to pass the second
inspection by the Fire Marshal;

c. a provider fails to timely return all requested
forms, fees, etc.;

d. a Class A center's license is revoked or not
renewed;

e. a school child care provider no longer meets the
BESE regulations;

f. a school child care provider is no longer
Brumfield vs. Dodd approved; or

g. a provider violates the terms of the provider
agreement.

2. A provider agreement may be terminated by either
party for any reason upon giving 30 days advance notice to
the other party.

H.1. Quality incentive bonuses are available to:

a. eligible CCAP Class A providers who achieve
and maintain National Association for the Education of
Young Children (NAEYC) accreditation. The bonus will be
paid once each calendar quarter, and will be equal to 20
percent of all child care payments received during the prior
calendar quarter by that provider from the certificate portion
of the Child Care and Development Fund;

b. eligible CCAP FCDCH providers who participate
in the Department of Education (DOE) Child and Adult Care



Food Program. The bonus will be paid once each calendar
quarter, and will be equal to 10 percent of all child care
payments received during the prior calendar quarter by that
provider from the certificate portion of the Child Care and
Development Fund;

c. effective May 1, 2004, eligible CCAP providers
who provide special care for children with special needs.
This special needs care includes but is not limited to
specialized facilities/equipment, lower staff ratio, and
specially trained staff. The amount of these Special Needs
Care Incentive payments will be in accordance with
§§5109.B.1.b. and 5109.B.2.b.

2. These bonus amounts may be adjusted at the
discretion of the assistant secretary, based upon the
availability of funds.

I. CCAP offers Repair and Improvement Grants to
either licensed or registered providers, or to those who have
applied to become licensed or registered, to assist with the
cost of repairs and improvements necessary to comply with
DSS licensing or registration requirements and/or to improve
the quality of child care services.

1. Effective September 1, 2002, the program will pay
for 75 percent of the cost of such a repair or improvement,
up to the following maximums.

a. For Class A Centers the maximum grant amount
will be equal to $100 times the number of children listed in
the licensed capacity, or $10,000, whichever is less.

b. For FCDCH providers the maximum grant
amount will be $600.

c. These amounts may be adjusted at the discretion
of the Assistant Secretary, based upon the availability of
funds.

2. A provider can receive no more than one such grant
for any state fiscal year. To apply, the provider must submit
an application form indicating that the repair or
improvement is needed to meet DSS licensing or registration
requirements, or to improve the quality of child care
services. Two written estimates of the cost of the repair or
improvement must be provided and the provider must certify
that the funds will be used for the requested purpose. If the
provider has already paid for the repair or improvement,
verification of the cost in the form of an invoice or cash
register receipt must be submitted. Reimbursement can be
made only for eligible expenses incurred no earlier than six
months prior to the application. If a provider furnishes
estimates to receive a grant, the grant must be spent for the
requested purpose within three months of the date the grant
is issued.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with 45
CFR Parts 98 and 99, P.L. 104-193, Act 152, 2002 First
Extraordinary Session, Act 13, 2002 Reg. Session, Act 58, 2003
Reg. Session.

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of Social
Services, Office of Family Support, LR 24:357 (February 1998),
amended LR 25:2444(December 1999), LR 26:2827 (December
2000), LR 27:1932 (November 2001), LR 28:349 (February 2002),
LR 28:1491 (June 2002), LR 29:43 (January 2003), LR 29:189
(February 2003), LR 30:496 (March 2004), LR 30:1484, 1487 (July
2004), LR 31:102 (January 2005), LR 31:2263 (September 2005).
§5109. Payment

A. The sliding fee scale used for non-FITAP recipients is
subject to adjustment based on the state median income and
poverty levels, which are published annually. A non-FITAP
household may pay a portion of its child care costs monthly
in accordance with the sliding fee scale, and this shall be
referred to as a "co-payment." The sliding fee scale is based
on a percentage of the state median income.

Sliding Fee Scale for Child Care Assistance Recipients
75 Percent of Projected Median Income

Number in Household 2 3 4 5 DSS%
0-1069 0-1341 0-1613 0-1884 75%
Monthly Household 1070-1608 1342-1997 1614-2386 1885-2774 55%
Income 1609-2147 1998-2653 2387-3158 2775-3664 35%
Above 2147 Above 2653 Above 3158 Above 3664 0%
Number in Household 6 7 8 9 DSS%
0-2156 0-2428 0-2699 0-2971 75%
Monthly Household 2157-3163 2429-3346 2700-3529 2972-3712 55%
Income 3164-4169 3347-4264 3530-4358 3713-4453 35%
Above 4169 Above 4264 Above 4358 Above 4453 0%
Number in Household 10 11 12 13 DSS%
0-3243 0-3514 0-3786 0-4058 75%
Monthly Household 3244-3896 3515-4079 3787-4262 4059-4445 55%
Income 3897-4548 4080-4643 4263-4737 4446-4832 35%
Above 4548 Above 4643 Above 4737 Above 4832 0%
Number in Household 14 15 16 17 DSS%
0-4329 0-4601 0-4873 0-5144 75%
Monthly Household 4330-4628 4602-4811 4874-4995 5145-5178 55%
Income 4629-4927 4812-5021 4996-5116 5179-5211 35%
Above 4927 Above 5021 Above 5116 Above 5211 0%
Number in Household 18
Monthly Household
Income 0-5416 75%

NOTE: Effective October 1, 2005, the household's gross monthly income has been adjusted as reflected in the above tables.
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B.1.-2b. ..

3. The number of hours authorized for payment is
based on the lesser of the following:

a. ..

b. the number of hours the head of household, the
head of household's spouse or non-legal spouse, or the minor
unmarried parent is working and/or attending a job training
or educational program each week, plus one hour per day for
travel to and from such activity; or

B.3.c.-D. ..

E. Payment will not be made for absences of more than
five days by a child in any calendar month or for an
extended closure by a provider of more than five consecutive
days in any calendar month. A day of closure, on a normal
operating day for the provider, is counted as an absent day
for the child(ren) in the provider's care.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with 45
CFR Parts 98 and 99, and P.L. 104-193.

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Social Services, Office of Family Support, LR 24:357 (February
1998), amended LR 25:2445 (December 1999), LR 26:2828
(December 2000), LR 27:1933 (November 2001), LR 28:1491
(June 2002), LR 29:1834 (September 2003), LR 30:1485 (July
2004), LR 31:2265 (September 2005).

§5111. Ineligible Payments

A.-B.2. ..

C. IfIPV is established, Fraud and Recovery will send a
notice to the person to be disqualified and a copy of the
notice to the parish office. The parish office will take action
to disqualify for the appropriate situations:

1.-3. ..

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with 45
CFR Parts 98 and 99, P.L. 104-193, Act 58, 2003 Reg. Session.

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Social Services, Office of Family Support, LR 26:2830 (December
2000), amended LR 30:496 (March 2004), LR:31:2266 (September
2005).

Ann S. Williamson

Secretary
05094045

RULE

Department of Social Services
Office of Family Support

Support Enforcement Services ProgramCChild Support
Payment Distribution (LAC 67:111.2514)

The Department of Social Services, Office of Family
Support, Support Enforcement Services has amended the
Louisiana Administrative Code, Title 67, Part III, Subpart 4,
Support Enforcement Services (SES), the Support
Enforcement Program.

Title 67
SOCIAL SERVICES
Part III. Family Support

Subpart 4. Support Enforcement Services
Chapter 25.  Support Enforcement
Subchapter D. Collection and Distribution of Support

Payments

§2514. Distribution of Child Support Collections

A. Effective October 2, 1998, the agency will distribute
child support collections in the following manner:
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1.-5b. ..

6. Effective April 25, 2005, the state may delay
distribution of Federal Offsets for child support arrears until
the state has been notified by the U.S. Secretary of the
Treasury that the other person filing the joint return has
received his or her proper share of the offset. The delay may
not exceed six months.

B. ..

C. Effective April 25, 2005, when child support is
collected in the form of a foreign currency, the state shall
send the child support payment to the custodial parent within
two business days of receipt of the converted U.S. dollar
payment.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with P.L.
104-193, PL. 105-33, OCSE-AT-98-24, 42USC,664(a)(3)(B),
42USC,654b(c).

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Social Services, Office of Family Support, LR 23:304 (March
1997, amended LR 24:703 (April 1998), LR 25:320 (February
1999), LR 31:2266 (September 2005).

Ann S. Williamson

Secretary
0509#034

RULE

Office of Transportation and Development
Office of Highways/Engineering

"RV Friendly" Designations to Specific
Services (LOGO) Signs (LAC 70.111:115)

In accordance with the applicable provisions of the
Administrative Procedure Act, R.S. 49:950 et seq., the
Department of Transportation and Development hereby
amends Subchapter A of Chapter 1 of Part III of Title 70
entitled "Regulations for Control of Outdoor Advertising," in
accordance with R.S. 48:274.1(B)(2).

Title 70
TRANSPORTATION
Part III. Outdoor Advertising
Chapter 1. Outdoor Advertising
Subchapter A. Outdoor Advertising Signs
§115. "RV Friendly" Program

A. Purpose. The purpose of this rule is to establish
policies for the installation of "RV Friendly" symbols on
qualifying Specific Services (LOGO) Signs.

B. Definitions

"RV Friendly"Cthose businesses that can accommodate
large recreational vehicles by meeting specific facility and
access criteria.

C. Criteria

1. Roadway and Parking Surfaces
a. Roadways and parking lots must be all-weather
hard surface. Road surface types can include concrete,
asphalt, and aggregate such as gravel, limestone, and rap
material.
b. Roadway shall be free of ruts and potholes.
c. Lane widths shall be a minimum of 11 feet.
d. A minimum turning radius of 50 feet shall be
used on all connections and turns.
2. Parking Spaces



a. Facilities must have two or more spaces that are
12 feet wide and 65 feet long.

b. A turning radius of 50 feet is required at both
ends to enter and exit the spaces.

c. All designated parking spaces must be clearly
marked with the "RV Friendly" logo.

d. Gas stations without restaurants are exempt from
this requirement.

3. Vertical Clearance

a. Facility with canopies or roof overhangs must
have 15-foot minimum clearance.

b. Tree limbs and power lines must have a 15-foot
minimum clearance.

4. Fueling Stations

a. Facilities selling diesel fuel to RVs must have at
least one pump with non-commercial nozzle.

b. Fueling stations must have a turning radius of 50
feet at both ends to enter and exit the fuel islands.

c. All designated fuel pumps must be clearly
marked with the "RV Friendly" logo.

5.  Campgrounds

a. Campgrounds must have two or more camping

spaces that are 18 feet wide and 50 feet long.
D. "RV Friendly" Symbol
1. Description:

a. The "RV Friendly" marker shall be a bright
yellow circle with a crescent smile under the letters "RV."
The yellow background sheeting will be AASHTO Type 111
Sign Sheeting (High Intensity). The letters and crescent
smile shall be approved non-reflective black.

b. If necessary for mounting the sheeting may be
attached to an aluminum circle.

2. Dimensions

a. For mainline installations, the symbol shall have
a 12-inch diameter yellow circle with 5 1/2-inch black block
letters.

b. For ramp and trailblazer installations the symbol
shall be a 6-inch diameter yellow circle with 2 3/4-inch
black block letters and a crescent smile.

3. Attachment and Placement

a. The symbol shall be located within the business
logo panel. On new signs it shall be designed and fabricated
as part of the logo panel.

b. On existing logo panels, the symbol sheeting may
be directly applied to the sheeting of the logo panel or it may
be attached to an aluminum circle that can then be attached
to the logo panel with approved fasteners.

c. On existing logo panels, the placement location
of the symbol will be determined by the department. If
placement of the symbol is not possible because of a lack of
space between existing legends, the business will not be
allowed to participate in the program until new logo panels
that are designed and fabricated with the symbol are
supplied to the department.

E. Administration
1. Application

a. Facilities that already participate in the LOGO
program will submit an "RV Friendly" application form to
the department.

b. Facilities that do not belong to the LOGO
program will submit a LOGO application as well as an "RV
Friendly" application.
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c. The facility may be inspected by the department
to assure that the facility meets the "RV Friendly" qualifying
criteria.

d. Facilities that have qualified for "RV Friendly"
signs, but at a later date no longer meet the criteria listed in
Subsection C above will be removed from the "RV Friendly"
program and will be required to cover the "RV Friendly"
symbols with their business signs.

2. Fees and Special Requirements

a. For a business to participate in the "RV Friendly"
program, all of its logo panels must be fabricated or
modified to include the "RV Friendly" symbol.

b. No additional fees will be charged to new
facilities that include the "RV Friendly" symbol in their
business logo panels.

c. Facilities that already participate in the Logo
program will be charged a one-time processing, material,
and installation fee of $25 for each "RV Friendly" symbol.

d. Facilities that have qualified for "RV Friendly"
signs, but at a later date no longer meet the criteria listed in
Subsection C above will be removed from the "RV Friendly"
program, must have their business signs cover the "RV
Friendly" symbols and shall be charged $25 for each symbol
that must be covered.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
48:274.1(B)(2).

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Transportation and Development, Office of Highways/Engineering,
LR 31:2266 (September 2005).

J. Michael Bridges, P.E.

Undersecretary
0509#031

RULE

Department of Wildlife and Fisheries
Wildlife and Fisheries Commission

Alligator Regulations (LAC 76:V.701)

The Wildlife and Fisheries Commission does hereby
eliminate the suspension of $1.00 of the $4.00 alligator hide
tag fee.

Title 76
WILDLIFE AND FISHERIES
Part V. Wild Quadrupeds and Wild Birds
Chapter 7. Alligators
§701. Alligator Regulations

A. The Department of Wildlife and Fisheries does hereby
establish regulations governing the harvest of wild
populations of alligators and alligator eggs, raising and
propagation of farmed alligators, tanning of skins and
regulations governing the selling of hides, alligator parts and
farm raised alligators. The administrative responsibility for
these alligator programs shall rest with the Department
Secretary; the Assistant Secretary, Office of Wildlife; and the
Fur and Refuge Division.

1.-3.
4. Licenses, Permits and Fees
a. The licenses and fees required for activities
authorized by these regulations are as prescribed under
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provisions of Title 56, or as prescribed in these regulations,
and are:
L-X. ...
xi.  $4 for each alligator hide tag;
4.axii.- 17.c. ...

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
56:115, R.S. 56:259, R.S. 56:262, R.S. 56:263 and R.S. 56:280.

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Wildlife and Fisheries, Wildlife and Fisheries Commission, LR
16:1070 (December 1990), amended LR 17:892 (September 1991),
LR 19:215 (February 1993), LR 20:321 (March 1994), LR 26:1492
(July 2000), LR 28:1996 (September 2002), LR 30:2338 (October
2004), LR 30:2878 (December 2004), LR 31:2267 (September
2005).

Dwight Landreneau

Secretary
05094027

RULE

Department of Wildlife and Fisheries
Wildlife and Fisheries Commission

Bird Dog Training Areas (LAC 76:V.321)

The Department of Wildlife and Fisheries, Wildlife and
Fisheries Commission does hereby create and establish rules
for bird dog training areas on wildlife management areas.

Title 76
WILDLIFE AND FISHERIES
Part V. Wild Quadrupeds and Wild Birds
Chapter 3. Wild Birds
§321. Bird Dog Training Areas

A. Purpose. Bird dog training areas (BDTA) are
established to afford users of Wildlife Management Areas
(WMA) an opportunity to train pointing dogs and flushing
retrievers or spaniels with live released birds. The BDTA is
not intended to serve as a hunting preserve. The following
regulations are adopted to ensure that users of the BDTA
utilize the area as intended, and to minimize the potential for
negative impacts on wildlife.

B. Establishment and Posting. BDTAs may be
established on any WMA. Portions of the WMA without
significant wild quail populations, and where wildlife will
not be negatively impacted, are suitable for establishment of
BDTAs. BDTAs must be marked with signs and/or paint
clearly indicating the boundaries.

C. Permits and Licenses. Each party using the BDTA for
dog training must include at least one permittee, and the
permittee must have a valid permit in his/her possession
while engaged in dog training on the BDTA. For purposes of
this Rule, a person or party will be considered to be engaged
in dog training if they possess or release live bobwhite quail
or pigeons at any time, or if they are present on the BDTA
with pointing dogs, spaniels or retrievers during the time
quail, woodcock, or waterfowl season is closed on the
WMA. Each BDTA requires a unique permit and permits are
valid only on the specific BDTA for which the permit is
issued. Permits will not be issued to applicants with Class 2
or higher wildlife violation convictions or guilty pleas within
3 years of the date of application. All users of the BDTA
must comply with the WMA self-clearing permit
requirements. Any person who takes or attempts to take
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released or wild bobwhite quail or pigeons on the BDTA
must comply with applicable hunting license and WMA
permit requirements.

D. Dogs. Only recognizable breeds of pointing dogs,
spaniels, and retrievers may be trained on the BDTA. All
dogs must wear a collar or tag imprinted with the name and
phone number of the owner or trainer. Trainers shall not
knowingly allow or encourage their dogs to pursue rabbits,
raccoons, or other wildlife.

E. Birds. Only bobwhite quail or pigeons may be
released for dog training activities on the BDTA. Bobwhite
quail and pigeons may only be released within the
boundaries of the BDTA. Bobwhite quail and pigeons may
be shot in conjunction with dog training activities. When
WMA hunting seasons are closed, only bobwhite quail and
pigeons may be taken and possessed. When the WMA quail
or woodcock hunting season is closed, bobwhite quail and
pigeons may only be shot within the boundaries of the
BDTA. No more than 6 quail per day may be released, taken,
or possessed per permittee. For example, a party consisting
of 1 permit holder and 2 helpers may not possess, release, or
take more than 6 quail per day. Wild quail may be taken on
the BDTA at any time the BDTA is open to dog training and
must be included in the 6-bird limit. There is no limit on the
number of pigeons that may be taken, released, or possessed.
All quail must be marked with a Department provided leg
band prior to entering the WMA, and if the bird is shot or
recaptured, the band must remain on the bird until arrival at
the trainer's domicile. Wild quail taken on the BDTA must
immediately be marked with a LDWF issued band. Pigeons
are not required to be banded. Bands will be provided by
LDWF when the permit is issued. Persons in possession of
live bobwhite quail must have a valid game breeders license
or bill of sale from a licensed game breeder.

F. Firearms. When the WMA hunting seasons are closed,
only shotguns with shells containing shot not larger than
lead size 8 or steel size 7 are permitted on the BDTA.
Firearms must be encased or broken down upon entering and
leaving the BDTA when the WMA hunting seasons are
closed. Pistols capable of firing only blanks are also
permitted.

G. Seasons. Unless specified, BDTAs are open to dog
training all year, except all BDTAs are closed to bird dog
training activities during the applicable WMA turkey season
and modern firearm either-sex deer season. Additional
closure periods may be adopted for some BDTAs. Such
closure periods will be listed in the annual hunting
regulations pamphlet for the WMA on which the BDTA is
located.

H. Hunter Orange Requirements. Persons engaged in dog
training on BDTAs during WMA hunting seasons must
comply with WMA hunter orange requirements.

I.  Wildlife Management Area Regulations. Except as
provided herein, all rules and hunting seasons applicable to
the WMA on which the BDTA is located are also applicable
to the BDTA. Additional regulations may be adopted for
some BDTAs and will be listed in the annual hunting
regulations pamphlet for the WMA on which the BDTA is
located.

J. Violation of Rules. A person who is convicted or
enters a guilty plea for violation of any provision of this
Rule shall be guilty of a Class 2 violation.



AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with R.S.
56:109(B), R.S. 56:115, and R.S. 56:141(C).

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Wildlife and Fisheries, Wildlife and Fisheries Commission, LR
31:2268 (September 2005).

Dwight Landreneau

Secretary
05094025

RULE

Department of Wildlife and Fisheries
Wildlife and Fisheries Commission

Deer and Elk Importation (LAC 76:V.117)

The Wildlife and Fisheries Commission does hereby
amend the rules governing white-tailed deer importation.

Title 76
WILDLIFE AND FISHERIES
Part V. Wild Quadrupeds and Wild Birds
Chapter 1. Wild Quadrupeds
§117. Deer and Elk Importation

A. Definitions
Elk or Red DeerCany animal of the species Cervus
elaphus.
Mule Deer or Black-Tailed DeerCany animal of the
species Odocoileus hemionus.
White-Tailed DeerCany
Odocoileus virginianus.

B. No person shall import, transport or cause to be
imported or transported live white-tailed deer, mule deer, or
black-tailed deer (hereinafter "deer"), into or through the
state of Louisiana. No person shall import, transport or cause
to be imported or transported, live elk or red deer

animal of the species
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(hereinafter "elk") into or through Louisiana in violation of
any Imposition of Quarantine by the Louisiana Livestock
Sanitary Board. Any person transporting deer or elk between
licensed facilities within the state must notify the
Department of Wildlife and Fisheries and provide
information as required by the department prior to departure
from the source facility and again upon arrival at the
destination facility. A transport identification number will be
issued upon providing the required information prior to
departure. Transport of deer or elk between licensed
facilities without a valid transport identification number is
prohibited. Notification must be made to the Enforcement
Division at (800) 442-2511. All deer or elk imported or
transported into or through this state in violation of the
provisions of this ban shall be seized and disposed of in
accordance with Wildlife and Fisheries Commission and
Department of Wildlife and Fisheries rules and regulations.

C. No person shall receive or possess deer or elk
imported or transported in violation of this rule. Any person
accepting delivery or taking possession of deer or elk from
another person has a duty to review and maintain bills of
sale, bills of lading, invoices, and all other documents which
indicate the source of the deer or elk.

AUTHORITY NOTE: Promulgated in accordance with the
Louisiana Constitution, Article IX, Section 7, R.S. 56:1, R.S. 56:5,
R.S. 56:6(10), (13) and (15), R.S. 56:20, R.S. 56:112, R.S. 56:116.1
and R.S. 56:171 et seq.

HISTORICAL NOTE: Promulgated by the Department of
Wildlife and Fisheries, Wildlife and Fisheries Commission, LR
24:1140 (June 1998), repromulgated LR 24:1325 (July 1998),
amended LR 28:2206 (October 2002), LR 31:2269 (September
2005).

Dwight Landreneau

Secretary
0509#026
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